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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 03rd July, 2009 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 19th
June, 2009.

LAKSHMAN  GOONEWARDENA,
Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
January 01, 2009.

AA

N.B.— Part IV(A) of the Gazette No. 1607 of 19.06.2009 was not published.

N. B.— (i) Deshamanya Ravindra Wanigasekara Foundation (Incorporation) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part II of the
Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of 20th February, 2009.

(ii) Lanka Nature Loving Foundation (Incorporation) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of 24th April, 2009.

(iii) Association of International Co-operation Sri Lanka (Incorporation) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part II of the
Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of 30th April, 2009.
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Appointments, &c.,  by the President

No. 190 of 2009

DRF/RECT/44 (VIII).

SRI     LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of the
undermentioned senior lady officer in the rank of Major General with
effect from 20th April, 2007:

Temporary Major General HELMALI INDIRA GITANJALI WIJERATNA,
USP.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
05th February, 2008.

06-487

No. 191 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2747.

SRI      LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 30th November, 2008:

Brigadier KATUWAPITIYAGE SARATH FERNANDO, RWP RSP USP
Ldmc (O/50786).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
24th December, 2008.

06-551

No. 192 of 2009

DRF/RECT/1105/AY.

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned Senior Lady Officer from the Regular Force of the
Sri Lanka Army with effect from 18th October, 2008:

Colonel AGAMPODI DULCI UDULA KRISHNARATNE, (O/60040).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
13th February, 2009.

06-547

No. 193 of 2009

NATIONAL    CADET   CORPS

Confirmation of Rank approved by His Excellency the
President

TO be Lieutenant Colonel with effect from 01.01.2008:

O/3065  Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) YK ABEYRATHNA

BANDA;
O/3047 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) MMU

MUNASINGHE;
O/3063 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) NK

WAKKUMBURA;
O/3127 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) MRU

GUNAWARDENA;
O/3145 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) AMI ADHIKARI;
O/3136 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) MLM NIMAL;
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O/3048 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) SL De LANAROLE;
O/3124 Major (Temporary Lieutenant Colonel) SJST

DHARMAPALA;

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo.

06-485

No. 194 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2739.

SRI     LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 01st October, 2008:

Lieutenant Colonel WICKRAMARATNA KODIPPILI ARACHCHI

PATABENDIGE JANAK ABEYSINGHE, SLAGSC (O/60335).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
28th November, 2008.

06-550

No. 195 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2745.

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the

President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRISEDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned senior officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 11 December 2008:

Lieutenant Colonel VITHANALAGE SHANTHA PUSHPAKUMAR DE

MEL, CR (O/60173).

TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the under
mentioned senior officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General)
Reserve with effect from 11 December, 2008:

Lieutenant Colonel VITHANALAGE SHANTHA PUSHPAKUMAR DE

MEL, CR (O/60173).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
28th November 2008.

06-519

No. 196 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2736.

SRI     LANKA     ARMY— REGULAR    FORCE

Confirmation of  Rank and retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of the
under mentioned officer in the rank of Major with effect from 10
March 2008:
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Captain (Temporary Major) SHAMINDA RATHSARA WIJETUNGA,
RSP GR (O/62314).

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of Sri Lanka Army
with effect from 11 March 2008 on medical grounds:

Major SHAMINDA RATHSARA WIJETUNGA RSP GR (O/62314)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
05th November 2008.

06-518

No. 197 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2734.

SRI   LANKA   ARMY—REGULAR  FORCE

Confirmation of rank and Retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION   OF   RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of the
under mentioned officer in the Rank of Major with effect from 30th
August, 2008:

Captain (Temporary Major) VITHANA PATHIRANAGE RANALAL

SAMPATH VITHANA, SLSR-(O/61814).

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 31st August, 2008:

Major VITHANA PATHIRANAGE RANALAL SAMPATH VITHANA, SLSR-
(O/61814).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
16th October, 2008.

06-546

No. 198 of 2009

DRF/RECT/580 (V) AY.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Posthumous promotion approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the posthumous
promotions of the under mentioned officers as stated below:

(a) Captain SAKALASOORIYA APPUHAMILAGE AJITH SUSANTHA

SAKALASOORIYA, GR (O/64884)-Posthumous promotion to the rank
of Major with effect from 04th September, 2008;

(b) Captain SAMINDA THIRANAGAMA, SLSR-(O/65235)-
Posthumous promotion to the rank of Major with effect from 02nd
September, 2008.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
29th October, 2008.

06-514

No. 199 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2731.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Confirmation of Rank and Retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved  the confirmation of the
under mentioned officer in the rank of Major with effect from 04th
September, 2008:

Captain (Temporary Major) SENANAYAKE AMARASINGHA MOHOTTI

APPUHAMILAGE MANUPRIYA BARANA SENANAYAKE, RWP psc SLSR-
(O/61357);

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army  with effect from 05 September, 2008:
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Major SENANAYAKE AMARASINGHA  MOHOTTI APPUHAMILAGE

MANUPRIYA BARANA SENANAYAKE, RWP psc SLSR-(O/61357).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
16th October, 2008.

06-521

No. 200 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2730.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 15 September, 2008 as provided by the
Regulation 33 of Pension and Gratuities Code 1981:

Captain (Temporary Major) PONNIMBADUGE PATLIN BIMAL

PRISHANTHA PERERA, SLAOC-(O/61093).

By His Excellency’s Command

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
16th October, 2008.

06-522

DRF/21/RECT/2746.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Withdrawal of Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the withdrawal of
Commission of the under mentioned officer from the Regular Force
of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 11 July, 2006:

Captain DAMINDA THARAKA SALGADU, SLAGSC-(O/65770).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
11th December, 2008.

06-517

No. 201 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2754.

SRI     LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 25th April, 2008 on medical grounds:

Captain MEKALA PRASAD MAHADIULWEWA, SLAC-(O/63171).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
05th January, 2009.

06-548

No. 202 of 2009

DRF/RECT/495.

SRI      LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR    FORCE

Inter Unit Transfer approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the
undermentioned officer from the Commando Regiment to the
Regiment stated against his name with effect from 02nd June, 2008:
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Captain WEERAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE PARAKRAMA PRABATH

WEERAKOON- The Gemunu Watch.

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
20th June, 2008.

06-488/3

No. 203 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2732.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the

President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 11th September, 2008:

Captain (Quartermaster) YAKDEHI ARACHCHIGE LUXMAN

SOORIYABANDARA, SLEME-(O/63774);

TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the under
mentioned officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve
with effect from 11th September, 2008:

Captain (Quartermaster) YAKDEHI ARACHCHIGE LUXMAN

SOORIYABANDARA, SLEME-(O/63774).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo.
16th October, 2008.

06-520

 DRF/21/RECT/2729.

SRI    LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Withdrawal of Commission approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the withdrawal of
Commission of the under mentioned officer from the Regular Force
of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 15th November, 2008:

Temporary Captain HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE NALIN CHAMINDA

WIJERATHNA, SLSR-(O/64702).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
28th November, 2008.

06-516

No. 204 of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2741.

SRI     LANKA    ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 31st March, 2008:

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) PATTINIYA DURAGE SARATH

SUMANASIRI, GR-(O/64383).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
28th November, 2008.

06-552
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No. 205 of 2009

NATIONAL    CADET   CORPS

Promotion approved by His Excellency the President

To be Lieutenant with effect from 01st October, 2007.

O/6063 2/Lieutenant RPN CHANDRASEKARA

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
, 2009.

06-486

No. 206  of 2009

DRF/21/RECT/2742.

SRI     LANKA     ARMY—REGULAR   FORCE

Retirement and Transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the

President

RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
under mentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 26th August, 2008.

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE UPALI PERERA

SLLI (O/64381)

TRANSFER TO THE   SRI    LANKA   ARMY   REGULAR
(GENERAL)   RESERVE

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the under
mentioned officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve
with effect from 26th August, 2008.

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE UPALI PERERA

SLLI (O/64381)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo.

06-515

No. 207 of 2009

DRF/RECT/495.

SRI  LANKA  ARMY—VOLUNTEER   FORCE

Inter Regiment Transfer approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Inter Regiment
Transfer of the undermentioned officer from the Sri Lanka Army
Pioneer Corps to the Sri Lanka Rifle Corps with effect from 08th
July, 2008:

Major JAYASINGHE KANKANAMLAGE NALIN SAMEERA JAYASINGHE

SLAPC (O/3682).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
29th October, 2008.

06-488/1

No. 208  of 2009

DRF/RECT/495.

SRI    LANKA     ARMY—VOLUNTEER   FORCE

Inter Regiment Transfer approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Inter Regiment
Transfer of the under mentioned officer from the Sri Lanka Sinha
Regiment to the Military Intelligence Corps with effect from 04th
August, 2008.

Major RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE JANAKA GUNASEKARA, SLSR-
(O/3572)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
19th December, 2008.

06-549
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No. 209  of 2009

DRF/RECT/495.

SRI      LANKA    ARMY—VOLUNTEER   FORCE

Inter Regiment Transfer approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Inter Regiment
Transfer of the undermentioned officer from the Sri Lanka Army

National Guard to the Military Intelligence Corp (Volunteer) with
effect from 30th November, 2006.

Temporary Major RONNIE BERTHOLAMIUZE SLNG (O/3597).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GOTABAYA RAJAPAKSA, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security,
Law and Order.

Colombo,
05th March, 2007.

06-488/2

Appointments, &c.  by the Cabinet of Ministers

No. 210  of 2009

THE    FOLLOWING   APPOINTMENT   HAS  BEEN   MADE  BY  THE  CABINET  OF  MINISTERS

Mr. A. G. Dharmadasa, Class I of the Sri Lanka Administrative Service as Commissioner General of the Department of Registration of
Persons with effect from 22nd December, 2008 until further orders.

06-468

Other Appointments, & c.,
SLAF/C.718/2/P2.

No. 211  of 2009

SRI     LANKA    AIR   FORCE

Promotions Approved by the Commander of the Air Force

UNDERMENTIONED Officers are promoted to the rank of Flight
Lieutenant with effect from the dates stated against their names.

Flying Officer HENEGAMA MUTHUKUMARANAGE RAJANI (02092)
Ad/Regt 01.09.2003

Flying Officer NAGODA VITHANAGE SARATH (02204) Ad/Regt
30.12.2004

Flying Officer POLGAMPOLAGE JAYANTHA KUMARA POLGAMPOLA
(02376) Ad/Regt 12.07.2005

Flying Officer KODITUWAKKU KANKANAMGE JEEVANA VIMUKTHI
(02175) Euip 02.12.2005

Flying Officer KASADORUGE NUWAN PUESHAN PERERA (02214) Ad/
Regt 02.12.2005

Flying Officer PANIKKA MUDYANSELAGE NUWAN SUDARAKA
KULATHUNGA (02266) Ad/Regt 02.12.2005

Flying Officer JAYANTHA CHANAKA MANAWADU (02289) Ad/Regt
02.12.2005

Flying Officer KEKULAGE DON MUDITHA THUSARA GUNARATNE

(02290) Ad/Regt 02.12.2005

Flying Officer JAYASURIYA MAHATHELGE LAKSHANTHA PRADEEP

PEIRIS (02306) Tech/Eng 02.12.2005
Flying Officer MAHEEPALA MUDALIGE JINENDRA WIJAYANTHA

(02308) Tech/Sig 02.12.2005
Flying Officer DINETH ERANDA GEEGANAGE (02322) Tech/Sig

08.02.2006
Flying Officer DAMINDA RAMBUKWELLA (02337) GD/P 22.03.2006
Flying Officer SHAMEEL NIROSHAN KIRIWELLA (02328) Tech/Eng

22.03.2006
Flying Officer SAMANDA MARAKKALA ASANKA ROSHAN SILVA

(02340) Tech/Eng 22.03.2006
Flying Officer BILINGAHAMULA GEDARA ATHULA PREMACHANDRA

(02215) Ad/Regt 28.04.2006
Flying Officer HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE LALITH SAMEERA

LANKATHILAKE (02330) Tech/Sig 10.05.2006
Flying Officer LALITH SAPUMAL JAYAWEERA (02324) Equip

10.05.2006
Flying Officer RATHNAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE ASANKA UDAYA

RATHNAYAKE (02339) GD/P 10.05.2006
Flying Officer GAYAN SANJAYA PERERA KAHANDAWALAARACHCHI

(02326) Admin 10.05.2006
Flying Officer CHAMINDA SAMPATH PIYASUNDARA (02334) Ad/Regt

27.06.2006
Flying Officer KAPUGAMA GEEGANAGE LALITH KRISHANTHA

KAPUGAMA (02327) GD/P 27.06.2006
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Flying Officer PADUKKAGE AMITH PRASANNA PRIYADARSHANA

(02336) Equip 27.06.2006
Flying Officer DE SILVA MALITHA SAJEEWA RANGODAGE (02338)

Tech/Eng 27.06.2006
Flying Officer WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE DISHANTHA

TENNAKOON BANDARA (02320) Ad/Regt 27.06.2006
Flying Officer GOTHATUWA GEDARA CHINTHAKA PRASANNA

GUNARATHNE (02335) GD/P 27.06.2006
Flying Officer PRIYANKA RAJAGURU HERATH (02323) GD/P

27.06.2006
Flying Officer DON LASHANKA ASITHA MANAGE (02331) Tech/Eng

27.06.2006
Flying Officer PRABATH SRI WIJAYA MOLLIGODA (02332) Ad/Regt

27.06.2006
Flying Officer JAYASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE SANATH CHANDANA

BANDARA (02319) Ad/Regt 27.06.2006
Flying Officer DON CHANDANA PUSHPAKUMARA MUNASINGHE

(02333) Ad/Regt 27.06.2006
Flying Officer RANKOTH GEDARA JANAKA PRASAD KOTINKADUWA

(02329) Ad/Regt 27.06.2006
Flying Officer MEDAGAMAGE DIHAN RAJITHA FERNANDO (02345)

GD/P 20.07.2006
Flying Officer GURUGALGODA MUDIYANSELAGE INDIKA PREMADASA

(02346) GD/P 20.07.2006
Flying Officer WATHSALA VIRAJ  KARUNARATNE WEERAMAN (02347)

GD/P 20.07.2006
Flying Officer METHTHASINGHE ARACHCHIGE REHAN ANTON

FERNANDO (02348) GD/P 20.07.2006
Flying Officer MUTHUKUTTI ARACHCHIGE SURANGA HESHAL (02349)

Tech/Sig 20.07.2006
Flying Officer PRAMUDITHA LIYANA GUNAWARDENA (02350) Tech/

Sig 20.07.2006
Flying Officer IJESH CHANDRATHILAKE (02351) Tech/Sig 20.07.2006
Flying Officer MANA DEWAGE NANDANA PRASAD AMARAJEEWA

(02352) Tech/Sig 20.07.2006
Flying Officer THAMBADIYA LILAN CHAMPIKA JAYASINGHE (02353)

Equip 20.07.2006
Flying Officer RAMBUKKANAGE JANAKA PRIYASHANTHA (02354)

Equip 20.07.2006
Flying Officer LIYANAARACHCHIGE DON VIKASHITH LALINDA (02355)

Equip 20.07.2006
Flying Officer HANTHANA ARACHCHIGE NALAKA NALIN BANDARA

ETIPOLA (02356) Equip 20.07.2006
Flying Officer DON SURIYARACHCHI CHAMINDA PRASAD WIJESINGHE

(02357) Equip 20.07.2006
Flying Officer KIRAKANKANAMGE JANAKA SURESH FERNANDO (02358)

Admin 20.07.2006
Flying Officer GURUSINGHEGE CHATHURA JAYANATH WICKREMASINGHE

(02359) Ad/Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer ASELA JUDE RANGANA KURUVITAARACHCHI (02360)

Ad/Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer MOHAMED THOWFEEK MOHAMED SAFRASK (02361)

Ad/Regt 20.07.2006

Flying Officer WICKRAMA ARACHCHIGE PRABATH MANJULA (02362)
Ad/Regt 20.07.2006

Flying Officer GURUSINGHE DEVAGE DINESH PUSHPA KUMARA

HATHURUSINGHE (02363) Ad/Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer CHANAKA NILANTHA KARAVITA (02365) Ad/Regt

20.07.2006
Flying Officer KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE KANISHKA BANDARA

JAYASEKARA (02366) Ad/Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer AMILA SUMAL KARUNARATNE (02367) Ad/Regt

20.07.2006
Flying Officer BUDDHIKA PRASAD WIDANAPATHIRANE (02368) Ad/

Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer HARAGALAYA WATTEGEDARA PRIYANKA MANJULA

WATTEGEDARA (02369) Ad/Regt 20.07.2006
Flying Officer NISHANTHA PRIYADARSHANA UDAGEDARA (02370)

Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer EDIRISURIYA MOHOTTIGE THARANGA DANUSHKA DE

SERAM (02371) Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer DODANGODA LIYANAGE JANAKA RUWAN KUMARA

(02372) Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer SOBANA HANDI GAYAN THARANGA SILVA (02373)

Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer WEWAKUMBURA GEDARA NALIN DARSHIKA

WEWAKUMBURA (02374) Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer ANTHINGNA MARAKKALA YASANKA CHINTHANE DE

SILVA (02375) Ops Air 20.07.2006
Flying Officer LASITHA YASANGA WICKREMA SENEVIRATHNE (02486)

GD/P 24.08.2007
Flying Officer MALAKA MIHIRA DHARMAWEERA (02518) Tech/Sig

06.01.2008
Flying Officer KARIYAPPERUMA ATHUKORALAGE DON DUMIDU THILAK

KARIYAPPERUMA (02519) AFC 06.01.2008
Flying Officer KAHANDA KORALAGE HARSHA RAVINDRA (02467)

Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer LEKAMWASAM SAMPATH PRIYADARSHANA SIRIWARDENA

(02458) Tech/Eng 09.01.2008
Flying Officer WITTACHCHI KORALALAGE DON CHAMARA ERIC

ADIKARAM (02459) Tech/Sig 09.01.2008
Flying Officer PUAHINNAGE DON THUSHANTHA RODRIGO (02460)

Tech/Sig 09.01.2008
Flying Officer MORAWAKAGE NIROSH SANJAYA FERNANDO (02461)

Tech/Sig 09.01.2008
Flying Officer JAUFEER MOHAMED  AMAAN (02463) Admin

09.01.2008
Flying Officer MUJITHA KUMARA HEWAPATHIRANE (02464) Admin

09.01.2008
Flying Officer THEUWARA HENNADIGE ISHAN SARANGA CHANDRASIRI

(02465) Admin 09.01.2008
Flying Officer MANIMEL WADU SAJITH MOHAN THILAKERATHNE

(02466) Admin 09.01.2008
Flying Officer THALPE HAWAGELAGE SUJITH NISHANTHA HEWAGE

(02468) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer ABEDIWAKARA DAHAM RANGANA WICKRAMARATHNE

(02469) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer MEDAWATTA DUGGANNARALALAGE PARACKRAMA

BANDARA MEDAWATTA (02470) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer JAYASINGHE PATHIRATHNEHELAGE SAMPATH PRIYALAL

(02471) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
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Flying Officer MARASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE PRASATH MALINDA

MARASINGHE (02472) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer KULATHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE PRASAD SANJEEWA

KULATHUNGA (02473) Ad/Regt 09.01.2008
Flying Officer WIJESUNDARA DASSANAYAKE MUDIYANSE

RALAHAMILAGE AMAL NAYANAJITH BANDARA DASANAYAKE (02474)
Ad/Regt 09.01.2008

Flying Officer METIVITYE ACHARILAGE VIJITHA GOMIS (02475) Ad/
Regt 09.01.2006

Flying Officer KARUNAMUNIGE MANGALA BANDARA MENDIS (02476)
Ad/Regt 09.01.2008

Flying Officer ALAHAKOON ARACHCHILAGE GEDARA SUSANTHA

ALAHAKOON (02522) GD/P 09.01.2008
Flying Officer MAYAKADUWA GAMAGE HIRANTHA DE SILVA (02523)

GD/P 09.01.2008
Flying Officer WARNAKULASOORIYA THUSITHA SHENONE RODRIGO

(02445) Tech/Eng 05.02.2008
Flying Officer JAYAKODY ARACHCHIGE DON SRINEJA NIRANGA

(02399) Eq 08.02.2008
Flying Officer KANAKARATNE MUDIYANSELAGE DILSHAN BANDARA

KANAKARATHNE (02439) Tech/Eng 07.05.2008
Flying Officer DON SOORIYAARACHCHILAGE SUCHARITHA VICHITHRA

SOORIYAARACHCHI (02446) Eq 07.05.2008
Flying Officer RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE DON SADUN JINENDRA

(02438) Admin 07.05.2008

W. D. R. M. J. GOONETHILAKE,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo,
2009.

06-446/1

No. 212  of 2009

SLAF/C.718/2/P2.

SRI    LANKA    AIR    FORCE

Promotions Approved by the Commander of the Air Force

UNDERMENTIONED Officers are promoted to the Rank of Flying Officer
with effect from the dates stated against their names.

Pilot Officer WARNAKULASOORIYA THUSHITHA SHENONE RODRIGO

(02445) Tech/Eng 05.02.2005
Pilot Officer KANAKARATNE MUDIYANSELAGE DILSHAN BANDARA

KANAKARATHNE (02439) Tech/Eng 07.05.2005
Pilot Officer DON SOORIYAARACHCHILAGE SUCHARITHA VICHITHRA

SOORIARACHCHI (02446) Equip 07.05.2005
Pilot Officer RANASINGHE ARACHCHIGE DON SADUN JINENDRA (02438)

Admin 07.05.2005
Pilot Officer SOBANA HANDI SARIKA PRABATH LANKA DE SILVA

(02433) Tech/Eng 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer GALLENA WATTE RUKSHAN DHANUSHKA PREMACHANDRA

(02443) Tech/Eng 24.06.2005

Pilot Officer DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE YUDDIKA NAYOMA

DISSANAYAKE (02434) Tech/Eng 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer AMARAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SARATH KUMARA

AMARAKOON (02431) Euip 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer JAYALATH PATHIRANAGE AJITH KUMARA (02441)

Equip 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer AMBAWALAGE PRADEEP PUSHPA KUMARA AMBAWALAGE

(02444) Admin 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer DON NIMANTHA NALALAPERUMA ABEYWICKRAMA

JAYATHILAKE (02437) Equip 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE MADUSHA BANUKA MANJU

SRI BANDARA (02432) Ad/Regt 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer HORAWALA VITHANAGE GEMUNU MAHANAMA (02442)

GD/P 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer WITHANAGE DEVAKUMAR PRADEEP FERNANDO (02435)

Admin 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer KODIKARAGE DON WARNA KANCHANA (02440)

GD/P 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer WELLE KANKANAMAGE RASIKA UDAYAKUMARA (02447)

Admin 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer MADDUMA DODANGODAGE ASHAN DODANGODA (02430)

GD/P 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer Herath Mudiyanselage Thushara Kelum Kumara

Herath (02436) Ad/Regt 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer GANGODA GAMAGE IRANGA DILEEPA VIRAJ (02448)

Tech/Eng 24.06.2005
Pilot Officer SENARATHNA MUDIYANSELAGE NISANGA DILSHAN

SENARATHNA (02682) Tech/Eng 09.07.2005
Pilot Officer NANAYAKKARAGE DON RANJULA CHANAKA PERERA

(02564) GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE MUDITHA SAMARAKOON

(02565) GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer AKURATIYAGE BUDDIKA MANOJ DE SILVA (02566)

GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer ABEYWARDENA MULACHARIGE WASANTHA NIHAL

ABEYWARDENA (02567) GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer KULATHUNGA MUDALIGE DON SUDHEERA PRASANNA

KULATUNGA (02568) GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer SARANGA DILAN GORDON (02569) GD/P 16.07.2005
Pilot Officer KOTIGALAGE SHAYAM UPUL CRISHANTHA RANASINGHE

(02493) GD/P 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer HABRADHUWA GODELIYANAGE KELUM HARINDRA

RUPASINGHE (02494) Ops/Air 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer NANAYAKKARA WASAM THELIKADA PALLIYA GURUGE

CHAMINDA NANAYAKKARA (02488) Eq 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer WEERAKKODY MUDIYANSELAGE MADAWA

WICKRAMASINGHE BANDARA (02487) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE COLLIN WISHWANATH

(02497) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer RUPASINGHE ARACHCHIGE SAMPATH SADARUWAN PERERA

(02491) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer SAWALAPPUGE DANUSHA LALINDA SRI PERERA

(02492) Ops/Air 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer SHIHAN ANTHONY JOHN (02489) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer WETHTHASINGHEGE DINUKE UDAYANGA WETTASINGHE

(02498) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer KALUWA DEWAGE HARSHANA KAUSHALYA (02490)

Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
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Pilot Officer WITHANA APPUHAMILAGE ASELA INDRAJITH VITHANA

(02499) Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer KORALAGE LAKMAL NAVEEN THISSERA (02496)

Ad/Regt 01.03.2006
Pilot Officer CHANNA ARAVINDA PEDURUHEWA (02520) Admin

06.07.2006
Pilot Officer WIJENAYAKE ARACHCHILAGE BUDDHI CHINTHAKA

RUPASINGHE (02521) Admin 06.07.2006
Pilot Officer HUREEGOLLE GEDARA NANDIKA PRIYADHARSHANA

HURIGOLLA (02549) Amin 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer THAMMAHETTI  MUDALIGE NALIN SANJEEWA PEIRIS

(02550) Amin 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer FRANCISKU HETTIGE AMILA SURANJAN SILVA (02551)

Admin 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer DINESH NUWAN SAMEERA WEERARATHNE (02552)

Admin 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer JAYAKODY ARACHCHIGE SUMITH PRIYANKARA (02553)

Ad/Regt 07.07.2006
 Pilot Officer GANEGODAGE MANJULA CHANDIMAL GANEGODA

(02555) Ad/Regt 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer DASANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE ASANKA DARSHANA

BANDARA DAMBAKOTUWA (02556) Ad/Regt 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer PANAGODA JANAKA HEMACHANDRA (02557) Ad/Regt

07.07.2006
Pilot Officer SENANAYAKE MOHOTTI MUDIYANSELAGE MAHESH

MALINGA SENANAYAKE (02570) GD/P 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer MASEWGE RUWAN BUDDHIKA FERNANDO (02571)

GD/P 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer ARJUNA FERNANDOPULLE (02572) GD/P 07.07.2006
Pilot Officer CHARITH CHATHURANGA THALPE GAMAGE (02608)

Tech/Eng 04.12.2006
Pilot Officer KADAWATHGAMA ETHUGALAGE NAWEEN DHANUSHKA

GUNARATHNE (02609) Tech/Eng 04.12.2006
Pilot Officer UDITHA ISHARA  ADDRA PATHIRANA (02573) Ad/Regt

08.01.2007
Pilot Officer SIKURADHIPATHIGE DAMMIKA SAJNAYA

SIKURADHIPATHIEY (02574) Ad/Regt 08.01.2007
Pilot Officer BULATHWATTE WALAWWE TILAK SUMITH BANDARA

(02575) Ad/Regt 08.01.2007
Pilot Officer AMAL PRIYANKARA KARAGODA PATHIRANAGE (02576)

Ad/Regt 08.01.2007
Pilot Officer SAJITH RANSIRI SIYAMBALAPITIYA (02577) Ad/Regt

08.01.2007
Pilot Officer DILUKA KAWINDA KALUARACHCHI (02578) Ad/Regt

08.01.2007
Pilot Officer LUWIS PONSA ARACHCHIGE BANDULA LASANTHA (02579)

Ad/Regt 08.01.2007
Pilot Officer MEEGAHAGE MONATH IRESH PERERA (02603) GD/P

08.01.2007
Pilot Officer TUAN MOHOMED ERSHAD MUTALIPH (02604) GD/P

08.01.2007
Pilot Officer HITIHAMILLAGE SENAKA PUBUDU BANDARA

KURAGAMAUWA (02605) GD/P 08.01.2007

Pilot Officer RUPASINGHE APPUHAMILLAGE THAMEERA NAMAL

RUPASINGHE (02610) Eq 08.01.2007
Pilot Officer EDIRISINGHE PATHIRANAGE DINUSHA RANGANA

EDIRISINGHE (02582) Tech/Eng 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer MUTHUKUDA ARACHCHIGE GAYAN RAJINDRA

KUMARAGAMA (02584) Tech/Eng 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer HERATHMUDIYANSELAGE DON ANURUDDHA DASARATH

PERERA (02589) Tech/Eng 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer MARASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE DUMIDU DARSHANA

MARASINGHE (02588) GD/P 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer CHAMILA PRADEEP KUMARASINGHE (02585) Tech/Eng

05.04.2007
Pilot Officer ERANGA ROSHAN WADUGE (02591) Ad/Regt

05.04.2007
Pilot Officer ASANKA CHANDIMAL WIJESINGHE (02592) Tech/Sig

05.04.2007
Pilot Officer WITHANAGE CHATHURA MADURANGA (02586)

Tech/Eng 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer OPATHA KANKANAMGE NUWAN CHANDANA GUNASEKERA

(02583) Tech/Sig 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer UDITHA KELUM LAKMAL MAHANAMA  (02587)

Tech/Sig 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer PREMANAYAKE GODAKANDAGE UPUL NISHANTHA

DHARMAPALA (02581) Ops/Air 05.04.2007
Pilot Officer MELANTHA RASANJAN SENANAYAKE (02590)

Tech/Eng 05.07.2007
Pilot Officer JAYAWEERA MUDIYANSELAGE UPUL JANAKA

MANANANDA (02563) AFC 12.07.2007
Pilot Officer SURAJ CHINTHAKA MADUWALA (02606) Admin

14.07.2007
Pilot Officer POLWATHTHA MALAWWE DAMMIKA BANDARA

RATHNAYAKA (02607) Ad/Regt 14.07.2007
Pilot Officer PONNAMPERUMA ARACHCHIGE CHAMIRA KRISHAN

(02614) GD/P 14.07.2007
Pilot Officer PRASAD CHINTHAKA HETTIARACHCHI (02615) GD/P

14.07.2007
Pilot Officer WEERASINGHE ARACHCHIGE SURESH RANGANA

WEERASINGHE (02616) Ad/Regt 06.01.2008
Pilot Officer MANAMPELI MAHAPATABENDIRALALAGE SURANGA

NAMAL COORAY WANIGARATHNE (02617) Ad/Regt 06.01.2008
Pilot Officer DHANUSHKA AGALAKADA (02600) AFC 14.01.2008
Pilot Officer WADDUWAGE UPUL PUSHPA KUMARA PERERA (02601)

AFC 14.01.2008

W. D. R. M. J. GOONETHILEKE,
Air Marshal,

Commander of the Air Force.

Colombo,
2009.

06-446/2
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No. 213  of 2009

PR/1/4/69.

THE  Minister of Foreign Affairs of Sri Lanka is pleased to recognize Mr. Dudley Francis Suthanthiranayagam Thambinayagam as Honorary
Consul of the Republic of Estonia at Colombo with effect from 01st June, 2009.

PALITHA T. B. KOHONA,
Secretary,

Ministry of Foreign Affairs.

Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
Republic Building,
Colombo 01.
02nd June, 2009.

06-569

Government Notifications

DECLARATION  OF  PILIYANDALA  CENTRAL  COLLEGE  AS  A  SPORTS  SCHOOL

PILIYANDALA  Central College, which is a National School, situated within Piliyandala Education Zonal, is declared as a Sports School
with effect from 02.06.2009.

The Secretary,
Ministry of Education, Isurupaya, Battaramulla.

06-668

Revenue and Expenditure Returns

NATIONAL    INSTITUTE   OF   LIBRARY   AND   INFORMATION  SCIENCES    (NILIS)    UNIVERSITY   OF
COLOMBO

Annual    Report - 2007

1. Introduction

National Institute of Library and Information Sciences (NILIS) was established by order dated 19th April, 1999 of Ordinance
No. 01 made by the Minister under section 24A of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and affiliated to the University of Colombo on
19th April, 1999. NILIS was established with aid from the World Bank. NILIS is a partly self financed Institute as the other affiliated
Institutes of the University.

2. Our Mission

Definitive mission of NILIS is to improve the fields of Teacher Librarianship and Information Management and to strengthen
the link between the formal education and continuing education or continuing professional development for librarians and paraprofessionals.

3. Authorities of NILIS

The authorities of NILIS are:

The Board of Management
The Academic Committee
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The Board of Management

Board of Management was constituted in terms of Sec. 9 of the Ordinance No. 1 of 1999 and is the Academic and Executive body
of this Institute. Following were the members of the Board of Mangement during the year under review.

1. Professor Rohan Rajapakse (Chairman/SCOLIS/UGC) as Chairman of the BOM
2. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge (Director/NILIS)
3. Professor H. P. R. Gunawardena (Dean/Education, University of Colombo-until June, 2007)
4. Prof. S. Sandarasegaram (Dean/Education from July, 2007)
5. Professor Jayadeva Uyangoda (Head/Dept. of Political Sc. and Public policy, University of Colombo)
6. Professor Russell Bowden (Honarary IFLA Fellow)
7. Mr. Upali Amarasiri (Director General NLDSB)
8. Mr. S. S. N. de Silva (Sr. Asst. Secretary/Higher Education-until August, 2007)
9. Mrs. Malini Peiris (Sr. Asst. Secretary/Higher Education-from September, 2007)

10. Rupa Ekanayake (Sr. Asst. Secretary/Ministry of Science and Tech-until August, 2007)
11. Mrs. M. B. Ekanayake (Add Secretary/Ministry of Science and Tech-from September, 2007
12. Mrs. Ruwani Kodikara (Librarian/University of Moratuwa)
13. Mrs. D. Warnasuriya (President/Sri Lanka Library Association-until June, 2007)
14. Mr. P. Ranasinghe (President/Sri lanka Library Association-from July)
15. Dr. (Mrs.) Wathmanel Seneviratne (Librarian/Open University-from March, 2007)
16. Mr. P. Vidanapathirana (Librarian/University of Sri Jayewardenepura-from March, 2007)
17. Mr. S. Kuruppuarachchi (Director/SLDU/MOE-as Invited member)

Academic Committee

Academic committee was constituted under Sec. 12 of the Ordinance No. 1 of 1999. The following were the members of this
committee during the year under review.

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge (Director/NILIS)
2. Prof. Russell Bowden (Honorary IFLA Fellow)
3. Mr. P. Ranasinghe (Head/Dept. of LIS, Unversity of Kelaniya)
4. Mr. L. A. Jayatissa (Librarian, University of Kelaniya)
5. Mrs. Ruwani Kodikara (Librarian, University of Moratuwa)
6. Mr. Gihan Seneviratne (Senior Lecturer/UCSC)
7. Mr. W. S. Punyawardena (Deputy Director/NLDSB until March, 2007)
8. Mrs. V. Gangabadaarachchi (from November, 2007)
9. Mrs. Shivanthi Weerasinghe (Education Officer/SLLA)

10. Mrs. D. Daniel (Librarian/NLDSB from March to October, 2007)
11. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera (Sr. Lecturer/NILIS)
12. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa (Sr. Lecturer/LILIS)
13. Mr. U. P. Alahakoon (Assistant Librarian)
14. Mr. N. Nandasena (Deputy Director/SLDU-as invited member)

Curriculum Development Sub-Committees

The following are the members of the Curriculum Development Sub-Committees during the year 2007.

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Information and Communications Technology

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Dr. D. A. S. Atukorale-UCSC, University of Colombo (UC)
3. Dr. Priyantha Hewagamage-UCSC, (UC)
4. Mr. G. Senevirathne-UCSC, (UC)
5. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Management

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Mr. P. Randivela-Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Finance and Management, (UC)
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3. Mr. Gamini De Alwis-Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Finance and Mangement, (UC)
4. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Education

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Prof. L. S. Perera-Former Dean Faculty of Education, (UC)
3. Prof. R. Gunawardene-Dean Faculty of Education (UC)
4. Dr. Manjula Vidanapathirana-Senior Lecturer, Fac. of Education (UC)
5. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
6. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
7. Mr. Sepala Kuruppuarachchi-Director/SLDU

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Postgraduate courses in Librarianship

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Mrs. S. C. Jayasuriya-Librarian University of Colombo
3. Mr. P. Ranasinghe-Head Dept. of LIS, Unversity of Kelaniya
4. Mr. L. A. Jayatissa-Librarian, University of Kelaniya
5. Mrs. W. Senevirathne-Librarian, Open University
6. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
7. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
8. Mrs. D. C. Kuruppu-Senior Asst. Librarian, Medical Faculty, University of Colombo

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Certificate courses in Librarianship

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
3. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
4. Mr. U. P. Alahakoon-Asst. Librarian, NILIS

Curriculum Development Sub Committee for Community Information Mangement

1. Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS (Convener)
2. Prof. W. G. Kularathne Head, Dept. of Social Sc. Ed., Fac. of Education (UC)
3. Dr. W. K. Hiriburegama-Director IHRA, (UC)
4. Dr. (Mrs.) W. Senevirathne-Librarian/OUSL
5. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
6. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa-Senior Lecturer, NILIS
7. Mr. M. D. H. Jayawardene (Former Librarian, Public Library/Colombo)

4. Staff Information

Director
Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge functioned as the Director during the year under review.

Academic Staff
Following Senior Lecturers functioned during the year.

1. Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera
2. Mr. P. G. Pemadasa

Assistant Librarian
Mr. U. P. Alahakoon functioned as the Asst. Librarian during the year.

Senior Assistant Bursar
Mr. G. H. Gamini functioned as the Senior Assistant Bursar during the year.

Assistant Registrar
Ms. Asoka Abeyratne functioned as Assistant Registrar during the year.
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Computer Applications Assistant
Ms. Jeevika Jayamini functioned as the Computer application Assistant.

5. Education Programmes

Winning an award

NILIS was honoured with an awarded on 30th October, 2006 by the National Library and Documentation Services Board for
the development of Library Services in Sri Lanka by conducting Postgraduate degree and Diploma programmes and many other short-term
programmes.

Postgraduate, Diploma and Certificate Programmes
New student registrations during 2007.

Course Number

1. Ph.D full time 07
2. Masters in Library Science (MLS) full time 05
3. Postgraduate Diploma in Teacher Librarianship 23
4. Postgraduate Diploma in Library and Information Science (Part time) 07
5. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management (PLIM) 19
6. Intermediate Certificate in Library and Information Mangement (ILIM) 14
7. Certificate in Teacher Librarianship (CTL) 03
8. Certificate in School Librarianship (CSL) 92
9. B.Ed Education Programme-(Library Science module) 68

–––––
Total 238

6. Workshops Conducted during 2007

1. One-day workshop on Community Information Management for Community Development Officers-January
2. Three-day workshop Advanced MS Office workshop for Senior Assistant Registrar and Assistant Registrars-January
3. Two-week workshop for ICT Trainers of the Ministry of Education-February/March
4. One-day seminar on How to write the concept paper for MPhil students-April
5. Three-day workshop on Empowering 8 with orientation programme for Postgraduate students and Diploma students-September
6. One-day seminar on Research works for the MPhil Students-October
7. Two-day NILIS/ITLIS Joint International workshop on Managing E-resources for Excellence-15th and 16th December, 2007.

Significant Professional Contribution in 2007

2. Director participated at the following Committees as a member.

* Special Committee on Science and Technology Information-National Science Foundation.

* Sri Lanka Disaster Mangement Committee-Library and Archival Services of the National and Library Documentation Services
Board.

* IFLA 2007-General Conference held in Durban, South Africa.

8. Staff Training

* Mrs. Asoka Abeyratne, Assistant Registrar/NILIS-Participated at three day workshop on MS Office for SAR/AR At NILIS on
23rd 24th and 25th January.

* Mrs. K. G. P. G. Wijetunge, Director/NILIS and Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera, Senior Lecturer/NILIS-Participate at the National
Conference on Library and Information Studies (NACLIS) 2007 on 8th and 9th March, 2007 conducted by Sri Lanka Library
Association.

* Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera, Senior Lecturer/NILIS and Mr. U. P. Alahakoon, Assistant Librarian/NILIS-Participated at the workshop
on Grcenstone Digital Library Software (GSDC) 21-24 March, 2007 at UCSC conducted by the National Science Foundation.
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* Mr. R. P. P. Ranaweera, Senior Lecturer/NILIS and Mr. U. P. Alahakoon, Assistant Librarian/NILIS-Participated at the Seminar
on Preservation of Documentary Heritage in Sri Lanka on 23rd and 24th July, 2007 conducted by National Library and
Documentation Services Board.

* Mrs. K. G. P. G. Wijetunge, Director/NILIS-Participated at one day workshop at the Staff Development Centre on 10th December,
2007.

9. International Conference Papers and other Publications By NILIS staff

Mrs. Pradeepa Wijetunge-Director/NILIS-Presented a paper titled “A strategic model for developing a National repository of
indigenous knowledge in Sri Lanka” at the International Caliber 2007 conference, Organised by Inflibnet Centre, UGC, Ahmedabad in
collaboration with Panjab University, Chandigarh, India, February 8-10, 2007.

10. Resources

Source Capital (in Rs. Millions) Recurrent (in Rs. Millions)
Treasury 2.2 M 5.5 M
Total 2.2 M 5.5 M

Director/NILIS

National Institutive of Library and Information Sciences Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2007.
(Figures adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

Note 2007 2007 2006 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Fixed Assets 04 10,460.721 13,891,935
Current Assets
(a) Stocks in Hand 41,132 45,215
(b) Loans and Advances to Staff 05 959,613 382,673
(c) Bank Gurantee 30,000 0
(d) Miscellaneous Advances (2,213) (2,213)
(e) Debtors 0 509,000
(f) Pre-payments 06 43,756 93,894
(g) Seven day’s Call Deposits 0 1,928,914
(h) Fixed Deposit 1,767,907 0
(i) Cash Book Balance 07 1,761,653,34 4,601,848 1,529,459 4,486,942

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Assets 15,062,569 18,378,877

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a) Accrued Expenses 08 276,733 276,858
(b) Salaries Payable 360 360
(c) Academic Program Income 09 1,701,574 1,795,116
(d) Refundable Library Deposit 145,000 2,123,667 122,500 2,194,834

–––––––––––

Non Current Liabilities
Provision for Gratuities 1,750,814 1,478,049

Total Liabilities 3,874,481 3,672,883

Total Net Assets 11,188,088 14,705,994
––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

University Fund
Capital

(a) Capital Grant Spent 2,089,952 2,394,780
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(b) Capital Grant Unspent 9,132 0
(c) Contribution to Capital Expenses by

Ministry of Education-GEP II 23,132,739 25,231,823 23,132,739 25,527,519
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Reserves
Specific Reserve
General Reserve (12,154,956) (8,675,829)
Income and Expenditure A/C (3,727,906) (15,882,862) (3,984,823) (12,660,652)

––––––––––– –––––––––––

Restricted Fund
(a) Development Fund 1,839,127 1,839,127

1,839,127 1,839,127
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Capital Receipts
Revaluation Reserve Account

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Total Net Assets 11,188,088 14,705,994

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

Prepared by Senior Assistant Bursar

For and on behalf of the Board of Management,

Director Asst. Registrar

National Institute of Library and Information Sciences Income and Expenditure Account for the year Ended 31st December, 2007
(Figures Adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

2007 2006
Operating Revenue

Rs. Rs.
01. (a) Govt. Grant for Recurrent Expenditure 5,515,000 5,927,000

(b) Govt. Grant for Rehabilitation and
Maintenance of Capital Assets 0

(c) Grant from UGC for Salary 45,100
02. Interest from Investments 167,497 81,000
03. Interest from Loans 30,123 13,758
04. Rent from Properties 0
05. Sale of Old Stores 0
06. Sale of Produce 0
07. Reimbursements 0
08. Miscellaneous Receipts 26,750
09. Registration Fees (Undergraduate) 0
10. Registration Fees (Postgraduate) 0
11. Tuition Fees (Certificate Courses) 1 1,325,688 731,693
12. Tuition Fees (Postgraduate) 1 1,431,803 271,737
13. Examination Fees (Undergraduate) 0
14. Examination Fees (Postgraduate) 0
15. Sale of Publications 2,475 7,300
16. Library Fines 0 90
17. Medical Fees 0
18. Services Rendered to outsiders 52,576 65,269
19. Proceeds from Ancillary Activities 0
20. Advance Accounts and Other Activities 0
21. Workshop and Seminars 471,500 846,742

––––––––––– –––––––––––
9,068,512 7,944,589

––––––––––– –––––––––––

Note 2007 2007 2006 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
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Deduct-Operating Expenses : Note
1. Personal Emolument 2 5,469,493 4,706,298
2. Travelling Expenses 2 279,648 1,856
3. Supplies 2 366,682 390,073
4. Maintenance Expenses 2 182,104 148,907
5. Contractual Services 2 1,263,948 1,034,794
6. Other Recurrent Expenses 2 1,476,696 1,010,694
7. Externals Examinations 0
8. Ancillary Activities 0
9. Gratuities 3 272,765 1,020,894

10. Provision for Depreciation 4 3,632,082 3,615,895
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Total Operating Expenses 12,943,418 11,929,411
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Deficit from Operating Activities (3,874,906) (3,984,822)
Finance Cost 0 0
Gain on Sales of Properties 0 0

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Total non Operating Revenue 0 0

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Surplus before Extra Ordinary Items (3,874,906) (3,984,822)
Extra Ordinary Items 0 0

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Net Surplus for the Period (3,874,906) (3,984,822)

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

Income and Expenditure Appropriation A/C :
Balance B/F from Income and Expenditure A/C (3,984,824) (2,755,026)
Income And Expenditure Account B/F Balance (3,874,906) (3,984,822)
Transfers to General Reserve 3,984,824 2,755,026)
Adjustments in respect of past years 147,000 0

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Balance C/F to Balance Sheet (3,727,906) (3,984,824)

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

National Institute of Library and Information Sciences
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities (3,874,906) (3,984,822)
Surplus from ordinary activities

Non-cash movements
Depreciation 3,632,082 3,615,895
Increase in provisions relating to employee costs 272,765 347,439
Prior Year Adjustment 147,000 0
Decrease in payables (71,168) 244,674
Increase in other current assets 117,288 (700,497)
Increase in receivables
Extraordinary Items

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net cash flow from operating activities 223,062 (477,311)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Plant and Equipment (200,868) (339,151)
Proceeds from Sales of Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Sales of Investments

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net cash flow from  investing activites (200,868) (339,151)

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.
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Cash flow from financing activities
Capital Grants 210,000 292,000
Increase in Internal Funds 0 892,599
Proceed from Browning

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net cash flow from financing activities 210,000 1,184,599

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 232,194 368,135

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period Rs. 1,529,459
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period Rs. 1,761,653 232,194 368,135
––––––––––– –––––––––––

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. General Accounting Policies :

The financial statement of the Institute have been prepared on historical basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles applied on a consistent basis and in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Provisions have been made for all liabilities.

Income and expenditure with regard to academic programs have been accounted on cash basis. Equivalent amount of income to
the expenses of the programs during the financial period have been transferred to Income and Expenditure Account. Balance Income of the
programs has been recognized under current liabilities.

Income of academic programs will be recognized at the end of the budgeted period.

2. Assets and the Basis of Valuation :

Depreciation has not been provided on for the year of purchase of all assets, while full year depreciation is provided in the year
of disposal.

Fixed Assets shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation has been charged on cost of the assets at the following
rates per annum in order to write off such assets over their estimated useful economic lives:

Building and Structures 5%
Furniture and Equipment 10%
Motor Vehicles 10%
Computers 20%
Library Books and Periodicals 20%
Other Assets 10%

Vehicle is registered under the Register of the University of Colombo and value of the vehicle is has been recorded in the account.

The Building is used by the faculty of Education and the National Institute of Library and Information Sciences. Value of the
building Rs. 47,532,868.44 is not taken into accounts.

Closing stock of consumable stock has been valued at cost.

3. Liabilities and Provisions :

Full Provision is made in the accounts for retiring gratuity payable to all employees of the Institute. The provision is not
representing equivalent amount of fund and payments are made out of Treasury grant.

Masters Programs Rs.
1. Post-Graduate in Library and Information Science 05 A/C 115,350
2. Post-Graduate in Teacher Librarianship 05 A/C 305,245
3. Post-Graduate in Teacher Librarianship 06 A/C 457,825
4. Post-Graduate in Teacher Librarianship 07 A/C 200,000

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.
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Rs.

5. Masters in Teacher Librarianship 06 A/C 19,880
6. Masters in Teacher Librarianship 05 A/C 173,020
7. Masters in Library Science 07 81,009
8. Mphill/PhD - 07 79,475

–––––––––
1,431,803

––––––––––––––––––
Note: 3
Calculation of Gratuity Provision :

Name of the Employee Date of join to No. of Completed Basic Salary Provision
Service years Rs. Required

Rs.

1. Mrs. P. Wijetunge 1-Oct-1986 21 66,819 701,597
2. Mr. G. H. Gamini 1-Jun-1991 16 37,430 299,440
3. Mrs. A. Abeyrathna 19-Jun-1982 26 26,900 349,700
4. Mr. A. A. J. Abeysinghe 16-Jul-1976 31 21,625 335,188
5. Mrs. M. L. J. Jayamini 21-Nov-2000 7 18,540 64,890

Total 1,750,814
Less:- Opening Balance as at 1-1-2007 1,478,049

––––––––––
Provision for 2007 272,765

––––––––––––––––––––

Note: 4 0.60
Provision for Depreciation 25,231,823.00

Type of Assets Opening Balance Purchases Donation Disposals Closing Balance
Rs.  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

1. Lands and Building 721,568 0 0 0 721,568
2. Furniture and Office Equipment 8,715,519 3,847 0 0 8,719,366
3. Computers and Printers 5,426,609 11,500 0 0 5,438,109
4. Fixture and Fittings 0 0 0 0 0
5. Library Books and Periodicals 6,530,475 185,521 0 0 6,715,996
6. Motor Vehicles 3,603,493 0 0 0 3,603,493
7. Others 33,290 0 0 0 33,290

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
25,030,954 200,868 0 0 25,231,822
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Opening Balance Depreciation Rate of Closing
for the Year Depreciation  Disposals Balance

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Less:- Depreciation

1. Lands and Building 174,681 36,078 5% 0 210,759
2. Furniture and Office Equipment 4,030,527 871,552 10% 0 4,902,079
3. Computers and Printers 2,934,507 1,062,289 20% 0 3,996,796
4. Fixture and Fittings 0 0 0 0 0
5. Library Books and Periodicals 2,898,282 1,298,485 20% 0 4,196,767
6. Motor Vehicles 1,081,048 360,349 10% 0 1,441,397
7. Others 19,974 3,329 10% 0 23,303

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total 11,139,019 3,632,082 0 14,771,102

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Opening Depreciation

Net Value Balance for the year Purchases
Rs. Rs. Rs.

1. Lands and Building 546,887 -36,078 0 0 510,809
2. Furniture and Office Equipment 4,684,992 -871,552 3,847 0 3,817,287
3. Computers and Printers 2,492,102 -1,062,289 11,500 1,441,313
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4. Fixture and Fittings 0 0 0 0 0
5. Library Books and Periodicals 3,632,193 -1,298,485 185,521 0 2,519,229
6. Motor Vehicles 2,522,445 -360,349 0 0 2,162,095
7. Others 13,316 -3,329 0 0 9,987

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Total 13,891,935 -3,632,082 200,868 0 10,460,721

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Note: 09
Academic Programs Rs.

1. Mandatory Training Program 06 2,000
2. Certificate Course in Public Librarianship 07 5,500
3. Diploma in Teacher Librarianship 07 56,250
4. Certificate Course in School Librarianship-06 17,200
5. Certificate Course in School Librarianship-07 72,550
6. Certificate in Teacher Librarianship 07 35,500
7. Certificate in Information Technology for Teacher Librarians-07 4,450
8. Intermediate Certificate in Library and Information Management 05 7,469
9. Intermediate Certificate in Library and Information Management 07 93,500

10. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 05 4,513
11. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 06 41,896
12. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 07 137,350
13. English Diploma 2006 1,900
14. English Diploma 2007 3,450
15. Post-Graduate Diploma in Library and Information Science 05 11,780
16. Post-Graduate Diploma in Library and Information Science 07 96,000
17. Post-Graduate Diploma in Teacher Librarianship 05 38,268
18. Post-Graduate Diploma in Teacher Librarianship 06 114,275
19. Post-Graduate Diploma in Teacher Librarianship 07 447,250
20. Masters in Teacher Librarianship 05 77,938
21. Masters in Teacher Librarianship 06 132,820
22. Masters in Teacher Librarianship 07 33,200
23. Masters in Library Science 07 2,991
24. Mphill/PhD-07 263,525

–––––––––––
1,701,574

––––––––––––––––––––––
Note: 01
Academic Programs Rs.

Certificate and Diploma Programs
1. Certificate Course in Public Librarianship 06 7,818
2. Mandatory Training Program 06 87,200
3. Librarianship 06 12,575
4. Certificate Course in School Librarianship 07 532,200
5. Certificate Course in School Librarianship 06 183,200
6. Certificate in Teacher Librarianship 07 56,000
7. Certificate in Teacher Librarianship 06 6,000
8. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 05 4,140
9. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 06 213,704

10. Preliminary Certificate in Library and Information Management 07 5,400
11. Intermediate Certificate in Library and Information Management 05 132,601
12. English Diploma 2006 84,850

–––––––––––
1,325,688

––––––––––––––––––––––

Opening Depreciation
Balance for the year Purchases

Rs. Rs. Rs.
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Note: 05
Loans and Advances to the Staff Balance
Type of Loan Rs.

1. Computer Loan 57,000
2. Vehicle Loan 262,841
3. Distress Loans 621,462
4. Festival Advances 4,200
5. Staff Loan 14,110

–––––––––
959,613

––––––––––––––––––
Note: 06
Pre-payments

1. Service Agreement for 2008 9,775
2. Insurance Payment of Vehicle for 2008 32,384

–––––––––
42,159

––––––––––––––––––
Note: 07
Cash Book Balances as at 31.12.04

1. People’s Bank Thimbirigasyaya Current A/C
165-005922-3 251,811
165-006296-1 1,509,842

–––––––––
1,761,653

––––––––––––––––––
Note: 08
Accrued Expenses

1. Telecommunication Exp.–Dec. 2007 12,700
2. Electricity Exp.- 2007 131,283
3. Special Services-Audit Fee 2006-2007 113,050
4. Other Recurrent Expenses 2,000
5. Salary Areas 17,700

–––––––––
276,733

––––––––––––––––––
Note No. 2
Payment Schedule

Ad. Exp. CPL 06 MTP-06 CSL & CSL 06 CSL 07 CTL 06 CTL 07 PLIM 05 PLIM PLIM ILIM Eng.
A/C CTL 06  06 07 05 Dip 06

Description
Personal Emolument
Salaries and Wages
U. P. F.
Pension
E. T. F.
Acting Pay
Interim Allowance (10%)
M. C. A.
Academic Allowance
Equalization Allowance
Other Allowances
Interim Allowance
Gratuity
Salaries Areas
Interim Allowance
Cost of Allowance

Salaries and Wages 510,112
U. P. F. 61,456
Pension
E. T. F. 11,960
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Acting Pay
Interim Allowance (10%)
M. C. A.
Overtime 193,533
Holiday Payments 1,638
Other Allowances
Language Proficiency

Allowance
Gratuity
Interim Allowance
Equalization Allowance
Salaries Areas
Interim Compensatory

Allowance
Cost of Allowance

Travelling Expenses
Domestic 4,804
Foreign 99,575

Supplies
Stationery and Office 63,526

Equipment
Fuel and Lubricants 73,950
Uniforms/Tailoring 2,417

Charges
Mechanical and Electrical 558

Goods
Chemicals and Glassware
Medical Supplies
Other Supplies 98,407 31,300

Maintenance Expenses
Vehicles 42,950
Plant, Machinery and 56,823

Equipment
Buildings and Structures
Furniture
Others

Contractual Expenses
Transport 920
Telecommunication 21,213
Postal Charges 19,970
Electricity 70,143
Security Services
Water
Cleaning Services 71,465
Rents and Hire Charges
Rates and Taxes to Local

Authorities
Printing Advertising etc. 269,936
Other Contractual

Services

Other Recurrent
Expenses

Travel Grants for postgr.
Studies
(reimbursed by U. G. C.)

Special Services-Council 55,000
and Committees

Special Services-
Professional and
Other Fees

Ad. Exp. CPL 06 MTP-06 CSL & CSL 06 CSL 07 CTL 06 CTL 07 PLIM 05 PLIM PLIM ILIM Eng.
A/C CTL 06  06 07 05 Dip. 06
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Workshops, Seminars
Academic Reserch
Staff Development 2,000
Grants to Other

Organizations
Holiday Warrants and

Season Tickets 2,640
Entertainment Expenses 168,874
Bank Charges
Award and Indemnities
Contributions and

Membership Fees
Convocations 6,145
Examination Expenses 4,140 21,962 7,000 6,846
Other Recurrent

Expenses 162,200 6,000 12,000 18,000 12,000 6,000
Visiting Lecture Fees

(Including Travelling and
Subsistence) 20,250 7,800 7,200 15,597 5,400 18,601 42,004

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
2,066,068 6,000 32,250 7,800 7,200 49,300 - - 4,140 43,704 5.400 37,601 54,850

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

Note No. 02
Payment Schedule

PGI IS PGTL PGTL PGTL MTL MTL MLS Mphill/ Wo. Shop Treasury Sub Total
05 05 06 07 06 05 -07 PhD-07 & Sem. Ex. Funds Total

Description
Personal Emolument
Salaries and Wages 1,304,570 1,304,570
U. P. F. 115,534 115,534
Pension 129,467 129,467
E. T. F. 49,000 49,000
Acting Pay - -
Interim Allowance (10%) 35,625 35,625
M. C. A. 491,108 491,108
Academic Allowance - -
Equalization Allowance - -
Other Allowances 24,650 24,650
Interim Allowance - -
Gratuity - -
Salaries Areas - -
Interim Allowance - -
Cost of Allowance 69,750 69,750

Salaries and Wages 1,861,960 2,372,072
U. P. F. 293,448 354,904
Pension 17,818 17,818
E. T. F. 62,253 74,213
Acting Pay - -
Interim Allowance (10%) - -
M. C. A. 7,500 7,500
Overtime 2,172 0 195,705
Holiday Payments - 1,638
Other Allowances - -
Language Proficiency Allowance 21,660 21,660
Gratuity - -
Interim Allowance 88,030 88,030
Equalization Allowance - -
Salaries Areas - -
Interim Compensatory Allowance - -
Cost of Allowance 116,250 116,250 5,469,493

- - -
- - -

Travelling Expenses
Domestic 460 642 5,906 279,648
Foreign 174,167 273,742
Supplies - -
Stationery and Office Equipment 22,972 26,080 112,578
Fuel and Lubricants 40,245 114,195
Uniforms/Trailoring Charges 0 2,417
Mechanical and Electrical Goods - 558
Chemicals and Glassware - -

Ad. Exp. CPL 06 MTP-06 CSL & CSL 06 CSL 07 CTL 06 CTL 07 PLIM 05 PLIM PLIM ILIM Eng.
A/C CTL 06  06 07 05 Dip 06
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Medical Supplies - -
Other Supplies 7,227 136,934 366,682

Maintenance Expenses - - -
Vehicles 55,050 98,000
Plant, Machinery and Equipment 27,281 84,104
Buildings and Structures - -
Furniture - -
Others - - 182,104

Contractual Expenses
Transport 2,900 3,820
Telecommunication 100,372 121,585
Postal Charges 16,425 36,395
Electricity 405,304 475,447
Security Services - -
Water - -
Cleaning Services 146,886 218,351
Rents and Hire Charges - -
Rates and Taxes to local Authorities - -
Printing Advertising etc. 1,070 17,595 15,000 27,313 62,715 393,628
Other Contractual Services 14,722 14,722 1,263,948

Other Recurrent Expenses
Travel Grants for postgr. Studies - -
(reimbursed by U. G. C.)
Special Services-Council and

Committees 34,500 89,500
Special Services-Professional and

Other Fees 42,525 42,525
Workshops, Seminars 9,550 9,550
Academic Reserch - -
Staff Development 12,000 14,000
Grants to Other Organizations - -
Holiday Warrants and Season Tickets 8,160 10,800
Entertainment Expenses 6,462 88,570 50,553 314,459
Bank Charges 21,015 21,015
Award and Indemnities - -
Contributions and Membership Fees - -
Convocations 7,500 5,805 4,172 23,622
Examination Expenses 1,850 4,370 4,080 4,142 13,520 - 67,910

Other Recurrent Expenses - 45,700 39,020 180,973 481,892
Visiting Lecture Fees (Including

Travelling and
Subsistence) 6,000 44,000 40,650 15,738 19,500 81,009 22,250 55,424 401,423 1,476,696

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
15,350 55,245 62,325 - 19,880 48,020 81,009 79,475 175,444 6,187,510 9,038,571 9,038,571

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

The Director,
National Institute of Library and Information Science

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the National Institute of Library and Information Science Affiliated to the
University of Colombo for the year ended 31st December, 2007 in terms of Section 108 (2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and
Section 13 (7) (a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

The audit of financial statements of the National Institute of Library and Information Science Affiliated to the University of Colombo for
the year ended 31st December, 2007 was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of the Constitution
of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Sections 108 (1) and III of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978
and Sub-sections (3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 (1) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108 (2)
of the Universities Act and Section 13 (7) (a) of the Finance Act.

1.2 Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

PGI IS PGTL PGTL PGTL MTL MTL MLS Mphill/ Wo. Shop Treasury Sub Total
05 05 06 07 06 05 -07 PhD-07 & Sem. Ex. Funds Total
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1.3. Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion :

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions.
The scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit coverage as possible within the limitations
of staff, other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit includes the
examination on a test basis of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessment of accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the management in the prepartion of financial statments as well as evaluating
their overall presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of the audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. Sub-
sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine
the scope and extent of the Audit.

2. Financial Statements

2.1 Opinion

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to me, I am of opinion
that the National Institute of Library and Information Science had maintained porper accounting records for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 and except for the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2.2 of this report,
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the National Institute of Library and Information Science as at 31st December, 2007 and the financial results
of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 Accounting Deficiencies

The draft financial statements were presented for audit on 29th February, 2008. The accounting deficiencies pointed out after
the examination of those financial statements were rectified and the amended financial statements were presented again for
audit on 30th April, 2008. Further accounting deficiencies observed in those financial statements are given below.

Even though the Expended Capital Grants and the capital grants received under the Project GEP11 of the Ministry of Education
totalled Rs. 25,222,691, the assets Generated therefrom totalled Rs. 25,231,822, thus indicating a difference of Rs. 9,132.

2.2.2 Idle Money

A sum of Rs. 1,700,000 had been invested in fixed deposits during the year under review without the prior approval of the
Treasury. Novertheless, a cash balance of Rs. 3,529,560 had been retained in fixed deposits and Bank accounts as at 31st
December, 2007.

2.2.3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

The following instances of non-compliance were observed.

Reference to Laws, Non-compliance
Rules, Regulations, etc.

(a) Public Administration Circular No. Even though the fuel consumption of all motor vehicles should be
41/90 of 10th October, 1990  tested once in every Six months, it had not been so done.

(b) Public Enterprises Circular No. 95 of The benefits specifically approved by the Cabinet of Ministers,
14th June, 1994 the Ministry of Public Administration or the Treasury only can
Paragraph 02 be paid to the employees with the approval of the Board of

Governors, Nevertheless, contrary to such stipulation  a sum of
Rs. 18,000 out of the income from courses had been paid to a
Director as course co-ordination allowance.
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(c) Letter No. UGC/F/GA/2002 dated 13th A Development Fund had been established utilizing a sum of
January, 2003 of the Chairman of the Rs. 1,839,127 out of the course fees charges form the year 2004.
University Grants Commission

(d) Financial Regulation 1645 Log Books had not been maintained for the motor vehicle of the
Institute.

2.2.4 Transactions not covered by Adequate Authority

(a) Even though the Director General of Public Enterprises had by his Circular No. BD/PF/1/174/1 of 25th October, 2002, instructed
that the allowance for proficiency in the second and third languages should not be made applicable to the Public Corporations
and Boards, contrary to such instructions a sum of Rs. 21,660 had been paid as salaries and incentive allowance for the proficiency
in the second and third languages.

(b) A sum of Rs. 93,630 had been overpaid as contributions to the Universities Provident Fund and the Employees’ Trust Fund
due to the erroneous inclusion of the academic allowance to the salary. The Director General of National Budget had by his
letter No. BD/INS/CLUS-A/078 dated 18th July, 2003, instructed that such irregular payments were erroneous and that the
payments already made should be recovered. Nevertheless it had not been so done.

3. Financial and Operating Review :

3.1 Financial Results

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the Institute for the year ended 31st December, 2007 had resulted
in a deficit of Rs. 9,389,906 before taking into account the Government Grant for recurrent expenditure as compared with the
corresponding deficit of Rs. 9,911,824 for the preceeding year. The deficit for the year under review had been reduced to
Rs. 3,874,906 due to the Government Grant of Rs. 5,515,000 received for the recurrent expenditure for the year under review while
the deficit for the preceeding year had been reduced to Rs. 3,984,824 due to the Government Grant of Rs. 5,927,000 received for
the recurrent expenditure of that year.

3.2 Performance

The National Institute of Library and Information Science had been incorporated with aid from the World Bank under the Second
General Education Project.

According to teh Project Plan the primary objective of the Institute is the provision the necessary arrangements for the improvement
of libraries and the education, training and research in the various sectors of the library and information science.

The functions to be performed for the achievement of that objective are given below.

i. Establishment of the Institute
ii. Recruitment of Academic and Non-Academic Staff.

iii. Training of the Academic and Non-academic staff locally and abroad.
iv. Commencement of certain courses
v. Improvement of the Library and Computer Unit of the Institute

vi. Training of 300-400 Teacher Librarians annually.

The following matters were observed during the course of audit.

(a) Even though it is the objective of the Institute to train 300-400 Teacher Librarian annually the number of students registered
for each course conducted from the inception of the Institute in the year 1999 to 31st December, 2007 had been 798 while
178 students had completed the courses and obtained certificates.

(b) The number of students registered for courses, from the year of commencement of courses up to the end of the year 2006
had decreased while a slight improvement of student registration in the year 2007 was observed.

Reference to Laws, Non-compliance
Rules, Regulations, etc.
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(c) Even though a sum of Rs. 63,537 had been spent for the publication of press advertisements on several occasions in connection
with the commencement of courses and workshops in the year 2007, the number of students registered for the courses in
the academic year 2007/2008 stood at 188 while 153 students had participated in the Workshops. It was also observed that
an adequate number of students do not register for certain courses.

3.3 Purchase of Library Books :

(a) The Institute had purchased 598 Children’s books valued at Rs. 82,603 from the year 2003 with the objective of starting
a Children’s Library while no steps for starting the library had been taken up to 31st March, 2008.

(b) A stock of 111 books valued at Rs. 23,910 purchased for the library in the preceding year had been stored in the Children’s
without issuing them to the library.

3.4 Budgetary Control :

Significant variances were observed between the estimated and the actual income and expenditure, thus indicating that the budget
had not been made use of as an effective instrument of management control.

4. Systems and Controls :

Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control.

(a) Accounting for Income
(b) Maintenance of Ledgers
(c) Preparation of Schedules

S. SWARNAJOTHI,
Auditor General.

Auditor General,
Auditor General’s Department,
Independence Square,
Colombo 07.
13th August, 2008.

Report of the Auditor General on the Accounts of the National Institute of Library and Information Sciences Affiliated to the
University of Colombo for the year ended 31st December, 2007 in terms of Section 108 (2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978
and Section 13 (7) (a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

Following are the replies of the Institute on the Audit Report No. CE/G/NILIS/FA/07 dated 31st July, 2008 on the accounts of this Institute.

2.2 Comments on Accounts

2.2.1 Accounting Deficiencies :

The difference of Rs. 9.132 between the Expended Capital Grants and the Capital Grants received under the Project GEP II
of the Ministry of Education will be rectified during the year 2008.

2.2.2 Idle Money :

Cash balance arises as income of the programs received from students at the beginning of the programs and the expenditure
is spread out throughout the year.

2.2.3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations :

(a) The fuel consumption of the motor vehicle has been tested and this process will be continued in future.

(b) Co-ordinators have been appointed for the 12 academic programs conducted by the Institute. These Co-ordinators may
be members of the Institute and outsiders to the Institute. They are paid monthly allowance for their services rendered
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for the programs. Other Universities too have paid allowances for the services of Co-ordinators. The Director has
performed co-ordinating works of academic programs and paid the allowance for co-ordinating works.

(c) This Development Fund has been established according to the decision of the Board of Managment.

(d) Vehicle Log book for the vehicle has been started to maintain from 2008 it will be continued.

2.2.4 Transactions not Covered by Adequate Authority :

These two allowances have been paid in accordance with the circular instructions issued by the University Grants Commission.
No instruction has been issued by the UGC to discontinue the payments.

3.2 Performance

The Institute was established in 2000 and the secondary objectives ‘i’ to (v) set out in the audit report have already been achieved.
Accordingly, (i.) Establishment of the Institute (ii.) Recruitment of Academic and Non-Academic staff (iii.) Training of the academic
staff  (iv.) Commencement of certain courses (v.) Improvement of Computer Unit have already been completed successfully. In
addition to the above, organization of National and International seminars, publication of periodic journals, representation of Sri
Lanka in the National and International Conferences, supporting to the Ministry of Education and Provisional Councils to organize
training programs and developing curriculum in the area of school library have been completed during this time period.

(a) There is a problem of not sending enough students by the Ministry of Education and Provisional Councils for the training
programs, although there is a plan to train 300-400 Teacher Librarians annually. There is problem of not considering the training
requirement of Teacher Librarian in the reparation of Service Minutes of Teacher Librarian by the Ministry of Education. We
have informed this situation to the Ministry of Education and the Ministry has taken action to submit Cabinet Paper for it.
However, the total number of students trained by the programs conducted by the Ministry of Education with our assistance
and Diploma and Post graduate courses will exceed target number of students.
Students register for the courses each year do not complete the course in the same year. Most of the programs will commence
in the middle of the year and complete during the next year.

(b) The major problems are indicated in the above (a) and will improve this situation in near future.

(c) All the educational institutes have faced common problem of not registering enough students for their courses. Limited publicity
on the educational programs, competition among institutions and the situation indicated above (a) under the preview of the
Ministry of Education.

3.3 Purchase of Library Books :

(a) Assitant Librarian has taken study leave now and the library will be open after recruiting the required staff.

(b) These books are required for the use of practical activities of the students of the Institute. If these books are issued to the
Library the books will not be available for the practical for cataloguing and other works.

3.4 Budgetary Control :
Action will be taken to use the Budget of the Institute as an effective management tool for control purposes.

4. Systems and Control :
Action will be taken to improve the controls over accounting for income, maintenance of Ledger and preparation of Schedules.

M. S. U. AMARASIRI,
Director.

06-513
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POST   GRADUATE   INSTITUTE   OF  MEDICINE
UNIVERSITY  OF  COLOMBO

Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2006
(Figures adjusted to the nearest rupee)

2005 Notes 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non current Assets

78,780,497 Property plant and equipment 1 77,521,425
29,565,600 Investment 2 26,065,600

Other financial assets(W.I.P.) 5,459,038 109,046,063
————————

Current assets
1,594,508 Inventories/Stock 3 1,605,685

16,691,628 Trade and other receivables 4 35,180,052
115,869 Prepayments 5 95,137

8,969,323 Cash and cash equivalents 6 9,820,299 46,701,173
—————— —————— —––————

135,717,425 Total assets 155,747,236

Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Interest from borrowings

9,045,562 Provision for gratuity 12,585,807
——————

Current Liabilities
2,762,654 Payables 7 4,003,086
4,922,944 Accrued Expenses 8 5,777,023

Short-term borrowings (o/D)
——————

Total Liabilites 9,780,109 22,365,916
—————— —————

118,986,265 Total Net Assets 133,381,320
—————— ——————————— —————

Net Assets/Equity
185,169,967 Accumulated Fund 9 197,177,944
(66,183,702) Reserves 10 (63,796,624)
————— —————
118,986,265 Total Assets/Equity 133,381,320
————— —––———————— —————

POST   GRADUATE   INSTITUTE   OF  MEDICINE
UNIVERSITY  OF  COLOMBO

Income and Expenditure Account
for the year ended 31st December, 2006

(Figures adjusted to the nearest rupee)

Income 11
36,600,000 Government grant 41,500,000
49,150,776 Other Income 66,239,822

25yrs Anniversary & South Asian
3,113,643 Conference

————— —————
88,864,419 107,739,822
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Expenditure
Recurrent Expenditure 12

24,588,571 Personal Emoluments 32,110,659
1,947,358 Travelling 3,970,540
2,879,390 Supplies 3,975,510

928,878 Maintenance 1,222,411
6,418,057 Contractual Service 6,648,170

20,778,859 Other Recurrent expenses 21,708,452
18,179,162 Postgraduate Training Expenses 21,220,312

—————— —————
75,720,275 90,856,054

25 yrs Anniversary & South Asian
3,594,111 Conference

10,047,230 Depreciation 11,127,862 101,983,916
—————— —————— ——————

(497,197) Surplus of Deficit over the income 5,755,906

Appropriation Account

(57,511,450) Balance b/f from previous year (66,315,547)
Add:

1,036,356 Other adjustments(credits) 13 9,561,324 (56,754,223)
—————— —————— ——————

(56,475,094) (50,998,317)

Less:
547,873 Payment in respect of previous year 552,911

8,795,383 Other Adjustments (debits) 14 12,349,807 12,902,718
————— ————— ——————

(66,315,547) Balance C/F to Balance Sheet (63,901,035)
–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Certified Correct,

Accounting Officer (Director). Deputy Bursar.

Notes to the Financial Statements

01. Significant Accounting Policies

1. General

1.1 The financial statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine has been prepared on the historical basis in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principals applied on a consistent basis and conformity with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

1.2 Provisions have been made for all known liabilities.

2. Assets and the Basis of their value

2.1 Lands and Building & Equipment Depreciation

The tangible assets are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged in straight line method at the following
rates per annum:-

Buildings 5%
Furniture & Office Equipment 10%
Lab & Teaching Equipment 20%
Library Books 20%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Cloaks 20%
Electrical Distribution 10%

Depreciation has not been provided for the year of purchase, While a full year depreciation is provided in the year of disposal.

2005 Notes 2006
Rs. Rs. Rs.



864 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'06'26
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 26.06.2009

2.2 Stocks

Stocks have been valued according to the first in first out basis.

3. Provision for Gratuity

Full provision is made in the accounts for the retiring gratuity payments to all the employees from initial year of joining the service. This
provision is not extremely funded.

Director,
Postgraduate Institute of Medicine,

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University
of Colombo for the year ended 31 December, 2006 in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Section
13(7)(a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

THE audit of financial statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University of Colombo for the year ended
31 December 2006 were audited under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with the Section 20 of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Ordinance No. 1 of 1980
enacted in terms of Section 18 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978, Sections 108(I) and III of the Universities Act and Sub - sections
(3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act
and Section 13(7) (a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

1.2 Scope of Audit

Audit opinion, comments and findings in this report are based on a review of the financial statements presented to audit and
substantive tests of samples of transactions. The scope and the extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an
audit coverage as possible within the limitations of staff, other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, methods and practices to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of meterial misstatements. The audit included examination of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in financial statements and assessment of accounting principles and significant estimates and judgments made in the preparation
of financial statements, evaluation of their overall presentation and determining whether accounting policies adopted were
appropriate, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. Sub-sections(3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of
1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent of the audit.

2. Financial Statements

2.1 Opinion

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I am of
opinion that the Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University of Colombo had maintained proper books of account for the
year ended 31 December, 2006 and except for the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2.2
of this report, the financial statements which are in agreement with the said books have been prepared and presented in accordance
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and the stated accounting policies as set out in the notes (from 1 to 14) and schedules (from
A to N) to the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the
University of Colombo as at 31 December, 2006 and the financial results of its operation and cash flows for the year then ended.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 Inappropriate Disclosures

Rs. 1,000,000 received in 2005 from the University Grants Commission for purchasing information technology equipment had
been spent on the purchase of computers and accessories. This amount had been shown in accounts as unspent capital grants.

2.2.2 Unreconciled Accounts

According to the financial Statements, the provision for gratuity allowance was Rs. 12,585,807 but the value of provision for
gratuity allowance submitted for audit appeared as Rs. 12,570,132 and thereby a difference of Rs. 15,675 has been disclosed.
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2.2.3 Accounts Receivable

(a) Action had not been taken to settle the advance of Rs. 4,566,253 granted to supply services and books, which remained
overdue for more than 03 years and to bring the unclaimed tender deposit of Rs. 44,900 into income.

(b) A sum of Rs. 94,932 which had been deposited by the institute in 05 suppliers and services supplies institutes over 10 years
ago had to be withdrawn at the end of each year and re-deposited only if supplies and services were to be obtained from
such institutes for the subsequent year. This requirement had not been complied with and deposits were allowed to remain
continously in such institutes.

2.2.4 Lack of Evidence for Audit

Schedules relating to the calculation of investment interest income amounting to Rs. 2,123,069, the purchase of fixed assets
to the value of Rs. 11,494,918 credit and debit adjustments respectively for Rs. 1,754,516 and Rs. 4,597,105 and related
particulars had not been submitted for audit and therefore they could not be satisfactorily vouched.

2.2.5 Non Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions

Instances of non compliance with laws, rules etc. are given below:-

Reference to Laws, Rules and Regulations Non Compliance

(a) Section 110 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978. Though the annual report for the respective year has to be tabled in
Parliament before lapse of ensuing year, the reports for 2004 and
2005 had not been submitted. The Annual Report for 2004 had been
forwarded only on 16 October 2006 to the Ministry of Higher
Education to table in Parliament.

(b) Financial Regulation 135 Delegation of powers, relating to the financial authority should be
reviewed annually and powers delegated to officers with necessart
reforms if any. However, the delegation of financial authority
approved by the Board of Management meeting held on 10th
February, 1996 had been implemented even in 2006 and the
financial control powers of the present Director had not been
delegated.

(c) Public Adimistration Circular No. 26/90 dated 18 May 1990 Contrary to the regulations of the institute. liquor to the value of
Rs. 5,220 had been purchased for a dinner party held on 18 March
2006 in respect of a Director who left the service.

(d) Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/25 dated 29 July 2004 Contrary to the regulation by 31st December, 2006, the institute had
invested Rs. 26,065,600 in fixed deposits and called up deposits
on interest rates ranging from 5% to 15%.

(e) Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/27 dated Within 60 days from the expiry of the financial year, the draft
27th January, 2005 annual report is required to be submitted for audit along with the

final financial statements. However, the draft annual reprot for the
year under review had not been submitted for audit.

2.2.6 Transactions not Supported by Adequate Authority

Complying with the circular issued by the University Grant Commission, but contrary to Public Enterprises Department circular
No. 95 of 14th June 1994. A sum of Rs. 229, 699 had been paid as salaries and incentive allowances for second and third language
proficiency during the year 2006.

2.2.7 Irregularity Transactions

Rs. 4,830 had been paid to clerks, drivers and minor employees for three wheeler charges to attend the official duties without
formal approval.
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3. Financial and Operating Review

3.1 Financial Review

3.1.1 Financial Results

According to the financial statements rendered, the working of the Institute for the year eneded 31 December, 2006 resulted
in a deficit of Rs. 35,744,094 before taking into account the Government grant for recurrent expenditure and the corresponding
deficit for the proceeding year amounted to Rs. 37,097,197. The deficit for the year was reduced to Rs. 5,755,906 due to the
Government grant for recurrent expenditure amounting to Rs. 41,500,000 for the year under review. Due to the Government
Grant of Rs. 36,600,000 for recurrent expenditure of the preceding year, deficit of that year was reduced to Rs. 497,197.

3.2 Operational Review

3.2.1 Performance

Following observations are made.

(a) For the year 2006, 171 and 311 students had registered themselves respectively for the Postgraduate Diploma and Degree
Courses and the duration of the courses were year 01-03. At the same time there were 343 students who had been registered
during the previous years but continued their studies during 2006.

(b) Three Medical Postgraduate examinations had been postponed due to non availability of external examiners in 2006. But
by March, 2007 these examinations had been held and results also had been released.

(c) According to the information furnished to audit the institute had awarded following degrees and diploma from its inception
till the end of the year 2006.

Period Degree Diploma

1980 - 1985 195 69
1986 - 1991 383 338
1992 - 1997 653 498
1998 - 2003 1,045 747

2004 216 139
2005 264 201
2006 224 171

——— ––——
2,980 2,163

——— ––————— ––——

Compared with the previous year the Degrees and Diplomas awarded by the Institute during the year under review showed
a decline of 15% and 14.9% respectively.

(d) According to the information furnished to audit the number of medical specialists trained by the Institute and certified by
the Board by the end of the year 2006 were 1,504 of this, 137 specialist doctors had been certified in 2006 alone.

(e) During the year 2006, Rs. 15,393,105 had been spent on foreign training, visas, insurance charges and monthly allowances
of 16 postgraduate students. Accordingly, the cost per student has become Rs. 962,069.

(f) From the inception of the Institute, the number of certified specialized doctors in respect of the following subjects were
5 or less than that.

Subject area No. of specialists certified

(a) Community Dentistry 4
(b) Restorative Dentistry 4
(c) Oral Surgery 3
(d) Nephrology 5
(e) Neuro Physiology 2
(f) Cardio electro physiology 3
(g) Gastroenterology 2
(h)  Endocrinology 2
(i) Medical parasitology 2
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(j) Chemical pathology 4
(k) Plastic Surgery 5
(l) Vascular and by pass surgery 2

(m) Thoracic Surgery 1

3.2.2 Management Inefficiencies

Following observations are made.

(a) The loan balance due from 5 employees who resigned from service stood as Rs. 197,104 as at 31 December 2006. The institute
had not taken adequate steps to recover this amount from any money due from the employees, from the University Provident
Fund, from sureties of from officers responsible for the matter. The loan balace thus overdue remained for more than 3 years.

(b) Fixed Deposit Register had not been updated. Especially, the percentages of fixed depost interest and the interest payable
for certain fixed deposits for the year 2006, were not mentioned in the register.

3.2.3 Budgetary Control

Following observations are made.

(a) The Budget for the year 2006 had been approved by the Board of Management on 11th February, 2006.

(b) It was not possible to determine whether the budget was prepared according to the activities expected to be preformed due
to non-preparation of a action plan for the year 2006.

4. Systems and Controls

Deficiencies observed in audit were informed to the Director of the institute from time to time. Special attention is needed in the following
areas of control.

(a) Staff loans
(b) Advances

P. A. PEMATILAKA,
Auditor General.

Report of the Auditor General on the Accounts of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine affiliated to the University of Colombo
for the year ended 31.12.2006 in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and Section 13(7)(a) of the Finance
Act of 1971 - Sinhala version

This refers to the Audit report dated 14th August 2007. As required I am submitting herewith to the replies regarding the queries
contained in the said report.

These replies are the offcial version of the PGIM since they have been approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of
Management of the PGIM.

2.2.1 Inappropriate disclosures

Comments are noted. Rs. 1 million had been fully utilized and will be transferred to appropriate Assets Accounts during the
year 2007.

2.2.2 Unreconcilied Accounts

Deficiencies in the schedule had been adjusted now.

2.2.3 Receivable Accounts

(a) Advances were paid to Foreign Suppliers for the purchase of Medical journals for the PGIM library and the branch library at
Peradeniya. Steps will be taken to inform to the suppliers to supply the Medical Journals. This work will be monitored by
the Senior Asst. Librarian.
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Book Allowance advance paid to Postgraduate trainees - Rs. 2.3 million

This relating to Book allowance advances paid to postgraduate trainees who went on PGIM scholarships 4-5 years back. Most
of postgraduate trainees were from the Ministry of Health. PGIM had requested them to submit bills/invoices to certify the
purchase of books. But no response were received from postgraduate trainees. Now, postgraduate trainees are given an advance
of US dollars 700 initially. To obtain the full amount they have to submit the bills/invoices.

Rs. 44,900 nclaimed Tender Deposits

Comments are noted. Steps will be taken to credit back unclaimed tender deposits of Rs. 44,900 to PGIM Revenue

(b) The buying of Petrol/Telecom/CEB etc. from approved service provides is a Continuous Service without the need for
interruption. Therefore the PGIM feels that getting deposit back is not a practical procedure for the PGIM.

2.2.4 Lack of evidence for audit

Following schedules and details information are available now for audit inspection :

* Updated fixed deposit register for the interest received from investemnts - Rs. 2,123,069
* Schedules for fixed assets for Rs. 11,494,918
* Schedules for Rs. 1,754,519 other adjustments credits
* Schedules for Rs. 4,597,105 other adjustments debits

2.2.5 Non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations and management decision.

(a) Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978

Translation of the annual reports 2004 and 2005 of the PGIM from English to Sinhala and Tamil languages had been extremely
difficult in view of the medical terms which were mentioned in the English version. In some instances, new words had to be
coined in consultation with eminent scholars when translation was done in the two languages. This was unavoidable in view
of the new words that were used when new sub-specialities came into existence in the Western world. Consequently, lot of
time was consumed for completion of the translation of the Sinhala and Tamil versions. In addition, compilation of the book
and obtaining approval etc., also took considerable amount of time these reports had to be finalized and published amidst all
other office work. However, AG’s instructions are noted for action and every possible efforts would be made to comply with
this requirement, in future.

(b) Financial Regulations - 135

Comments are note PGIM is an institution affiliated to University of Colombo and steps will be taken to revise the Financial
authority limits after obtaining revised limits from the Registrar, University of Colombo.

(c) Pub. Adm. Cir No. 26/90 dated 18/05/1990

Comments are noted for compliance in future.

(d) Pub. Enterprises Cir. No. PED/25 dated 29.07.2004

The PGIM has adopted policy of investing funds in fixed deposits in the state banks when funds are lying in the current accounts
but are considered an excessive funds at a given point of time. Interest being accrued from the fixed deposits are used to meet
urgent commitments and to avoid requesting additional allocation from the UGC. The PGIM has always sought necessary
approval from the General Treasury. The funds which had been so generated had been used to meet financial requirements for
activities for which funds had not been indentified in the annual budget. Noted to obtain treasury approval in future to invest
in fixed Deposits.

(e) Pub Enterprises Cir. No. PED/27 dated 27/01/2005

The PGIM consists of four branches of which academic & examination branches are heavily over burdened as 84 examinations
were conducted during the year 2006. In addition, meetings of the core groups were also held. The Academic branch was
instrumental in holding of monthly meetings of the nineteen Boards of study plus the Board of Management and enrolment
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of trainees, holding of Subcommittee meetings for making of decisions pertaining to the polity and for revision of curriculum
etc. This institute possesses only limited resource in terms of staff and facilitied. It is admitted that the draft report should have
been submitted within 60 days. However it was not possible to complete draft annual report within the specified period due
to the routing commitments of the saff officers concerned. Auditor General’s comments are noted for action and every possible
efforts would be made to comply with your instructions, in future.

2.2.6 The language proficiency allowance had been paid to PGIM staff in terms of UGC Est. Circular letter No. 10/2001 dated
10.08.2001. The PGIM is compelled to adhere to the instructions contained in the above UGC circular.

It is submitted that in pursuance of the instruction of the Auditor General, the UGC has now instructed that new recruits are
not eligible to receive the language proficiency allowance and the PGIM has strictly adhered to those instructions.

2.2.7 PGIM conduct 84 postgraduate examinations and 57 Academic postgraduate training programmes in a year. Three drives are
in service. Out of these drivers, one driver is assigned to the Director other two drivers are working relating to following
examination works.

* Transport foreign examiners from airport to hotel and hotel to PGIM exam Centre.

* Distribution of Answer packets to examiners for marking. Further, one post of driver had not been filled yet. All the vehicles
are released to examinations work when the examinations are held in Galle/Peradeniya.

Therefore, PGIM staff had to hire private three wheeler to attend following urgent and important work.

* To get down stores material to PGIM stores and to bring chemicals Glassware, requested for conduct of exams.
However, hiring of three wheeler will be done for urgent work with the approval of the Head of the Dept. in future.

3.1.1 Financial Results

Comments are noted.

3.2.1 Performance

PGIM performance has to be judged against needs (Ministry of Health/Universities/Armed forces & private sector) this is done
by a joint committee of PGIM & Ministry of Health.

In service specialities only 1 or 2 trainees per year is needed. In others trainees don’t pass the selections tests. In yet others,
even of trainees pass, the training places are limited. This is beyond the scope of the PGIM to correct.

This therefore is a matter of supply and demand and cannot be a matter that we can give detailed explanations to Audit.

3.2.2 (a) The University Provident Fund of the particular employees had not been released. Therefore steps will be taken to recover
the outstanding loans amounts from the employees university provident fund balance. This had been noted in the employees
personal files.

(b) Fixed Deposit Register is being up dated now and available for audit inspection.

3.2.3 Budgetary Control

(a) Financial allocation letter for the year 2006 received from UGC on 21.12.2005 and the programme budget prepared and
submitted to the Finance & Management Committee and the Board of Management approval obtained. But there was an
administrative delay in Ministry of Higher Education/UGC which is beyong our control.

(b) Action plan for the year 2006 of the PGIM had been prepared and forwarded to Treasury with copy to Superintendent
of Audit, University of Colombo on 22.03.2006. 84(Eighty four) postgraduate examinations were conducted during the
year 2006 which were the main function of the PGIM.
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4. Systems and Control :

(a) Staff Loan

Staff loans are being paid in terms of UGC circular No. 664 and loan register/other relevant accounting records are available for
audit inspection.

(b) Advances

More attention will be exercised in regard to payment of advances.

Professor Rezvi Sheriff,
Director/PGIM

Senior Professor of Medicine,
University of Colombo.

Copies to :- 1. Secretary/Ministry of Higher Education
2. Secretary/Ministry of Finance & Planning
3. Chairman/University Grants Commission
4. Vice Chancellor/University of Colombo
5. Chief Internal Auditor/University Grants Commission
6. Senior Asst. Internal Auditor/University of Colombo
7. Superintendent of Audit/University of Colombo
8. Deputy Registrar/PGIM

Postgraduate Institute of Medicine
University of Colombo

Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2007
(Figures adjusted to the nearest rupee)

2006 Notes 2007
Rs. Rs. Rs

Assets
Non current assets

77,521,425 Property plant and equipment 1 96,026,981
26,065,600 Investment 2 26,065,600

5,459,038 Other financial assets(W.I.P.) 122,092,581
—————

Current assets

1,605,685 Inventories/Stock 3 1,528,388
35,180,052 Trade and Other receivables 4 39,096,567

95,137 Prepayments 5 230,204
9,820,299 Cash and cash equivalents 6 11,867,591 52,722,750

————— ————— ——————
155,747,236 Total assets 174,815,331

Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Interest from borrowings

12,585,807 Provision for gratuity 13,667,038
—————

Current Liabilities
4,003,086 Payables 7 3,671,452
5,777,023 Accrued Expenses 8 6,702,212

—————
Short-term borrowings (O/D)
Total Liabilities 10,373,664 24,040,702

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
133,381,320 Total Net Assets 150,774,629

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––
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Net Assets/Equity
197,177,944 Accumulated Fund 9 213,824,508
(63,796,624) Reserves 10 (63,049,879)

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––
133,381,320 Total Assets/Equity 150,774,629

–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

POSTGRADUATE INSTITUTE OF MEDICINE
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER - 2007

(Figures adjusted to the nearest rupee)

2006 Notes 2007
Rs. Rs. Rs

Income 11

41,500,000 Government grant 43,052,000
66,239,822 Other Income 79,508,895

27th Anniversary Academic Session 948,700
—————— —————

107,739,822 123,509,595

Expenditure
Recurrent Expenditure 12

32,110,659 Personal Emoluments 35,325,161
3,970,540 Travelling 4,312,284
3,975,510 Supplies 4,815,836
1,222,411 Maintenance 1,837,195
6,648,170 Contractual Services 7,479,351

21,708,452 Other Recurrent expenses 24,980,960
21,220,312 Postgraduate Training Expenses 34,722,030

—————— ——————
90,856,054 113,472,817

27th Anniversary Academic Session 998,204
11,127,862 Depreciation 12,735,489 127,206,510—————— —————— ————–—

5,755,906 Surplus or Deficit over the income (3,696,915)

Appropriation Account

(66,315,547) Balance b/f from previous year (63,901,035)

Add:

9,561,324 Other adjustments (credits) 13 18,038,207 (45,862,828)
—————— ————— ———–——

(50,998,317) (49,559,743)

Less :
552,911 Payment in respect of previous year 800,879 -

12,349,807 Other Adjustments (debits) 14 12,695,557 13,496,436—————— ————— —–––———
(63,901,035) Balance C/F to Balance Sheet (63,056,179)

–––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
Certified Correct

Accounting Officer (Director) Deputy Bursar,

Vidyajyothi Professor Rezvi Sheriff
MBBS, MD, FRCP(Lon) FRCP(Edin) FCCP, FRACP(Hon.)
Director,
Postgraduate Institute of Medicine,
University of Colombo.

2006 Notes 2007
Rs. Rs. Rs
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Notes to the Financial Statements

01. Significant Accounting Policies

1. General :

1.1 The financial statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine has been prepared on the historical basis in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principals applied on a consistent basis and conformity with the Sri Lanka accounting standards.

1.2 Provisions have been made for all known liabilities

2. Assets and the Basis of their value

2.1 Lands and Building & Equipment Depreciation

The tangible assets are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged in straight line method at the following
rates per Annum :

Buildings 5%
Furniture and Office Equipment 10%
Lab & Teaching Equipment 20%
Library Books 20%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Cloaks 20%
Electrical Distribution 10%

Depreciation has been provided from the date of issue, While a full year depreciation is provided in the year of disposal.

2.2 Stocks :

Stocks have been valued according to the first in first out basis.

3. Provision for Gratuity :

Full provision is made in the accounts for the retiring gratuity payments to all the employees from initial year of joining the service.
This provision is not extremely funded.

The Director,
Postgraduate Institute of Medicine,

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University
of Colombo for the year ended 31 December 2007 in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Section
13(7) (a) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971.

THE audit of financial statement of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University of Colombo for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 20 of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Ordinance  No. 1 of 1980
enacted under Section 18 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978, Sections 108(1) and 111 of the Universities Act and Sub-Sections (3),
(4) and (7) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. This report is issued in terms of Section 108(2) of the Universities Act and
Section 13(7)(a) of the Finance Act.

1.2 Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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1:3 Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion :

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions.
The scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit coverage as possible within the limitations
of staff, other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit includes the
examination on a test basis of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessment of accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by the management in the preparation of financial statements as well as evaluating
their overall presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of the audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.
Sub-sections 93) and (4) of Secion 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to
determine the scope and extent of the Audit.

2. Financial Statements

2.1 Opinion :

So far as appears from my examination and to best of information and according to the examinations given to me, I am of opinion
that the Poatgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University of Colombo had maintained proper accounting records
for the year ended 31st December 2007 and except for the effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph
2.2 of this report, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine Affiliated to the University of Colombo as at 31st
December 2007 and the financial results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

2:2 Comments on Financial Statements :

2:2:1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Instances of non-compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards Nos. 3, 9 and 18 and accounting deficiencies totalling
Rs. 697,000 revealed at the audit test check were brought to the notice of the Director of the Institute.  Those deficiencies had
been rectified and the revised financial statements were presented for audit again on 09th May, 2008.

2:2:2 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observations are made :

(a) Distress loans and advances amounting to Rs.7,525 due from employees who had resigned from service remained without
being recovered over a period of one year while a loan of Rs. 56,450 due form an officer who had vacated post in the year
had been shown as loans due from the officers transferred out in the year 2007 without recovering that amount.

(b) Loans and sundry advances amounting to Rs. 93,950 due from officers transferred out remained without being recovered
for over two years while loans and sundry advances amounting to Rs. 46,015 due from officers who had vacated posts
remained without been recovered for over one year.

(c) The balance of the Book Advance Account as at 31st December, 2007 amounted to Rs. 2,921,619 and a sum of Rs. 2,316,546
representing 79 percent had been older than threee years.

(d) The total of balances of “other receipts” shown under trade and other receipts amounted to Rs. 94,932 as at 31st December,
2007 and those balances were older than three years.

(e) The balances of refundable tender deposits as at 31st December, 2007 totalled Rs. 73,100 and a sum of Rs. 17,000 or 23
percent out of that had been balances older than three years.

(f) The balances of sundry deposits as at 31 December, 2007 totalled Rs. 49,289 and a sum of Rs. 8,125 or 16 percent had been
balances older than three years.

(g) The balance of supervision fees payable as at 31 December 2007 totalled Rs. 348, 105 and a sum of Rs. 12,500 had been
balances older than 3 years.
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(h) The balances of advances for supplies and services as at 31st December, 2007 totalled Rs. 6,620,208 and a sum of Rs. 86,777
had remained without  being settled over periods exceeding three years.

2:2:3 Lack of Evidence for Audit

The physical existence of the inventory goods of the Institute valued at Rs. 87,606 issued to external instituting/Doctors during
the years 1996 to 2007 had not been confirmed.

2:2:4 Transactions of Contentious Nature

A sum of Rs. 251,509 had been paid in the year 2007 as salaries and incentive allowances for proficiency in second and third
languages in accordance with circulars issued by the University Grants Commission contrary to the Public Enterprises Circular
No. 95 of 14 June 1994.

2:2:5 Irregular Transactions

The follwoinf obervations are made

(a) Loan installments and interest recoverable monthly from the salaries of two members of the staff had not been recovered
without interruption.

(b) Even though the interest earned from the Special Reserve Funds should be utilized for the award of medals, instances of
utilization of the Fund balances exceeding the interest earned were observed.

(c) According to the Budget Statement for the year 2007, one third of the Value Added Tax payable to contractors with effect
from 01st January, 2007 should be withheld and remitted to the commissioner General of Island Revenue within the first
week of the month following. Nevertheless, the Value Added Tax amounting to Rs. 179,985 payable on 06 purchases and
02 contract payments had been paid in full to the contractors without withholding a sum of Rs. 59,995 equivalent to one
third of the tax.

(d) According to the amendments to the Value Added Tax Act, No. 14 of 2002 made effective from 01st January, 2007 the Value
Added Tax payable on the purchase of medical equipment is 5 per cent. Nevertheless, an overpayment of Rs. 135,200 had
been made to the contractors as the Value Added Tax had been paid at 15 percent.

3. Financial and Operating Review

3:1 Financial Review

3:1:1 Financial Results

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the Institute during the year ended 31st December, 2007 had
resulted in a deficit of Rs. 45,579,584 before taking into account the Government Grant for recurrent expenditure as compared
with the corresponding deficit of Rs. 35,744,094 for the preceding year. The deficit for the year under review had decreased
to Rs. 2,527,584 due to the Government Grant of Rs. 43,052,000 received for recurrent expenditure whereas the deficit for the
preceding year had been converted to a surplus of Rs. 5,755,906 due to the Government Grant of Rs. 41,500,000 received for
recurrent expenditure of that year.

3:2 Operating Review

3:2:1 Performance

The folowing matters were observed.

(a) The registration of new students during the year comprised 311 students enrolled for the Post Deploma and Degree Course
and 249 students registered for the Diploma Course, while 1,384 students registered prior to the year 2007 continued their
studies in the year 2007. Two students had abandoned the coruses.

(b) According to information made available to audit, the degrees and diplomas awarded from the inception of the Institute
up to the year 2007 had been as follows.
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Period 1980 to 2007 Number of Degrees Number of Diplomas

1980 - 1985 195 69
1986 - 1991 383 338
1992 - 1997 653 498
1998 - 2003 1,045 747
2004 216 139
2005 264 201
2006 264 171
2007 287 218

——— —––—
3,267 2,381

–––––– –––––––––––– ––––––

The degrees and diplomas awarded by the Institute, as compared with the preceding year indicated an improvement of 28 per cent
and 27 percent respectively.

(c) According to information frunished to audit, the number of medical specialists trained by the Institute and certified by
the Baord of Management as at the end of the year 2007 stood at 1,646 and out of that, the number of medical specialists
certified by the Board of Management in the year 2007 alone stood at 142 and as compared with the preceding year indicated
an increase of 4 per cent.

(d) The number of medical specialists certified for the following subject areas by the Baord of Management from the inception
of the Institute had been either 04 or at a lower level.

Subject Area Number of Medical Specialists Certified

(a) Neuro Physiology 2
(b) Cardio Electro Physiology 3
(c) Gastroenterology 2
(d) Endocrinology 2
(e) Medical Parasitology 3
(f) Chemical Pathology 4

(g) Vascular and Bypass Surgery 2
(h) Thoracic Surgery 1
(i) Medical Administration 1

3:2:2 Management Inefficiencies

The following observations are made

(a) Even though the service period of 06 months of the Direcror of the Master of Science in Sociology appointed for 06 months
on part-time basis as approved by the Board at its meeting held on 11 June 2005 expired on 24 February, 2006, action had
not been taken from that date up to October 2007 to appoint a part time Director for that coruse.

(b) Action had not been taken to recall a balance of Sterling Pounds 1,201 out of a sum of Sterling Pounds 30,965 paid in the
years 2005 and 2006 to a foreign supplier for the pruchase of library books.

(c) A stock of 04 items of usable stores goods valued at Rs. 113,370 had been lying in the stores for periods ranging from 01
year to 03 years without being issued. A suitable coruse of action had not been taken on those goods.

3:2:3 Library Administration

The following obervations are made

(a) The use of the library books had been limited to 25 persons at any given time due to the lack of adequate accommodation
facilities in the library.

(b) A stock of 4,000 books had been stored in a place outside the library due to the lack of storage facilities in the library.
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3:2:4 Contract Administration

The following observations are made.

(a) Estimates and bills of quantities of Rs. 407,879 and Rs. 124,487 inclusives of the Value Added Tax for the painting of
the inside and outside walls of the new building of the Institute respectively had been prepared by a minor employee
of the Institute and those estimates had not been approved by a Works Engineer.

(b) A considerable difference between the estimated square area for painting of 08 places of the new building and the finished
square area was observed and the information in the file did not reveal the reasons for such increases/decrease.

(c) The decision of the Director had been to paint only the inside of the walls of the new building in the first instance and
to paint the outside of the front wall of the Institute after the completion of the former work had also for the painting
of the staircase and the common areas thereafter. Thus the possibility of avoiding the requirement for obtaining the
approval of the University Grants Commission for services exceeding Rs. 500,000 in accordance with the supplement
added on 28th June 2007 to Section 2.14.1 of the Procurement Guidelines 2006 of the Democratic Republic of Sri Lanka
had arisen.

3:2:5 Corporate Plan and Action Plan

The following observations are made.

(a) The Corporate Paln prepared by the Institute had been for the period 2002-2006. A Corproate Plan for the year 2007
and the ensuing years had not been prepared.

(b) The Institute had not prepared an Action Plan for the year 2007. Thus it was not possible to examine in audit with regard
to the objectives and targets expected to be achieved in the year and the financial and physical progress thereon.

3:2:6 Uneconomic Transactions

The following observations are made.

(a) Rs. 12,296 was spent for removing and refitting an engine of a vehicle for carrying out repairs but the repair was not done.

(b) Arrangements had been made without due approval for the supply of photocopies required by Doctors calling at the
library on a fee charging basis through an outside institution. Nevertheless, action had not been taken for the recovery
of a fee on account of the electricity used for operating the photocopying machine and the accommodation supplied.

3:2:7 Budgetary control

The following observations are made.

(a) The budget estimates for the year 2007 had been approved by the Board on 03 February, 2007 after a long delay.

(b) It could not be ascertained in audit as to whether the budget had been prepared in accordance with the activities expected
to be implemented in the year as an Action Plan had not been prepared for the year 2007.

4. Systems and controls.

Deficiencies in systems and controls observed during the coruse of audit were brought to the notice of the Director of the Institute
from time to time. Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control.

(a) Inventory Goods and Inventory Registers,
(b) Festival Advances and Loan Registeres,
(c) Collection of Income,
(d) Petty Cash Imprest.

S. SWARNAJOTHI,
Auditor Genral.
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Dear Sir,

Final Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Postgraduate Institute of Medicine affiliated to the University of
Colombo for the year ended 31.12.2007 in terms of section 108(2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and 13(7)(a) of the Finance Act,
of 1971 - Sinhala Version.

This refers to final audit report dated 08th July 2008. A requried I am submitting herewith to the replies regarding the queries
contained in the said report.’

These replies are the official version of the PGIM since they have been approved by the Audit committee of the Board of
management of the PGIM.

2.2 Comments of Financial Statements

2.2.1 Submission of Financial Statements

Comments are noted.

2.2.2 Receivable and payable Accounts

(a) The Universities Provident Fund of the employees who had resigned from the service had not been released yet. Therefore,
steps will be taken to recover the outstanding loans/advance balances from the employees UPF. These information had been
noted in the employees personal files.

Outstanding loans/advances balances of Rs. 102,465 are due from Mr. RichieDriver who had resigned from service. PGIM
had finalized his UPF claim and submitted to Accountant/UGC on 02.07.2008 and indicated to deduct a sum of Rs. 102,465
from his UPF and remit same to the PGIM.

(b) Rs. 88,200 had been received on 10.06.2008 from institute of Indigenous Medicine, University of Colombo in respect of
outstanding loan balance of Mrs. Anoma Ratnayake/Asst. Registrar who went on promotion.

Details of loan balances are given below.

Distress Loan - Rs. 81,700
Computer Laon - Rs. 6,500

——————
Rs. 88,200

————————————

Further, PGIM had written to Bursars of relevant universities to settle the outstanding loans/advances balances of the staff
members who had been transferred from the PGIM to other universities.

(c) These relating to Book Allowance advances paid to postgraduate trainees who went on PGIM Scholarships 5-6 years back.
Most of the postgraduate trainees were from the Ministry of Health. PGIM had request them to submit bills/invoces to certify
the purchase of books. But, no response were received from portgraduate trainees. Now, trainees are given an advances of
US Dollars 700 initially. To obtain the full amount they have to submit the bills/invoices.

(d) PGIM is presently obtaining satisfactorily services from these organizations without any interruptions. Therefore the PGIM
feels that getting deposits back is not a practical procedure for the PGIM.

(e) Comments are noted. Unclaimed tender deposits more than three years will be credited to PGIM General Reserve.

(f) Miscellaneous deposits remaining more tha three years will be credited to PGIM General Reserve.

(g) Unclaimed Supervision fees remaining more than three years will be credited to PGIM General Reserve.

(h) Advance payments amount for the supplies and Services as at 31.12.2007 was Rs. 6,620,208 and a sum of Rs. 4,953,942 had
been settled as at 30.06.2008. Further, advance payments were made to the foreign suppliers for the supply of the medical
journals to the PGIM Library and the Branch library at Peradeniya. Medical journals are not published in time and hence there
are delay in settling the advances.

Setps are being taken by the Asst. Librarians to get down the Medical Journals from the foreign suppliers.
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2.2.3 Lack of Evidence for audit.

Comments are noted. Steps had been taken to get the confirmations from the outside training centers/units. This will be monitored
by the Asst. Registrar/Gen. Admin.

2.2.4 Transaction of a contentious Nature

Language Proficiency allowance had been paid to PGIM staff in terms of UGC Ests. Circulars letter No. 10/2001 dated
10.08.2001. The PGIM is compelled to adhere to the instructions contained in the above UGC circular.

It is submitted that in pursuance of the instruction of the Auditor General, the UGC has now instructed that new recruits are
not eligible to receive the language proficiency allowance and the PGIM has strictly adhered to these instructions.

2.2.5 Irregular Transactions

(a) Loan recoveries had already been recovered from following employees’ salaries:

1. Mr. K. G. K. Palitha - Computer Programmer
2. Mrs. Tamara De Silva - Data Entry Operator

This work will be supervised by the Assistant Bursar.

(b) Interest received was not sufficient to award the medals for the postgraduate trainees and PGIM Generated Income had
been used for this purposes with the approval of the Finance and Management Committee.

(c) Comments are noted. In terms of Circular instructions issued by the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue 1/3 of VAT
recovered and remitted to the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

(d) 5% of WHT is being deducted now and remitted to Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

3.2 Operating Review :

3.2.1 Performance

(a), (b) & (c) - Comments are noted.

(d) Regarding the query on the number of Board Certified. Consultants in difference specialities mentioned in the letter less
than four. The number of candidates for these examinations were also very low. Anyway this would be sufficient in
accordance with the country’s requirements and also numbers of raining units available also was limited.

3.2.2 Management Inefficiencies :

(a) Service of Part time course Director in Community Medicine had been extended further six months with the approval of
the Board of Management at its meeting held on 12th July, 2007 for same terms and conditions. Payments are made out
of PGIM Generated Funds.

(b) Medical Journals had been received now from the foreign suppliers for the balance amount of sterling pounds 1201 ordered
by the PGIM for the year 2005 and 2006. Relevant records are available for audit inspection.

(c) Cartridge for  Cannon photocopies were purchased and kept in the stores for the use of Academic branch and the PGIM
Library. These machines were broken and it was revealed that repairing these machines are not practical owing to heavy
costs. Instructed Store Keeper do discuss with supplier Metropolitan office (PVT) Ltd. and try to return the items and
settle the matter.

3.2.3 Library Administration :

Comments are noted. This is the biggest problem faced by the library and it cannot be solved until a spacious location is provided
for the library.

3.2.4 Contract Administration :

(a)  Estimates and BOQ for the colour washing were prepared by the Health Service Labourer who is especially trained on
BOQ and therefore qualified to prepare minor works and minor of repairs. Further he has been trained for preparation of
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BOQ for minor works by the PGIM at National Housing and Construction Development at ICTAD and National Certificate
in Technology at Sri Lanka Technical College, Maradana.

However, Comments are noted and in further certification will be obtained from the Works engineer/OUSL for any civil/
maintenance work.

(b) Due to the 27th Academic Sessions some of the urgent works were done on the recommendation of the organizing committee.
Such as painting of auditorium, lecture hall, external walls etc.

(c) On the recommendations of the organization committee it was decided to approve the colour washing work accordingly.
Your comments are noted and in future we will comply with instructions given in the procurement guide lines No. 2.14.1

3.2.5 Corporate Plan & Action Plan :

(a) Corproate plan of the PGIM from 2007 to 2011 had been finalized now and awaiting for the approval of the Board of
Management.

(b) Comments are noted. PGIM main function is conducting of Academic Programmes and examinations. Copy of the academic
programems and examinaitons conducted by the PGIM for the 2007 had been submitted to you.

However detailed action plan had been prepared and submitted to you for the year 2008.

3.2.6 Uneconomic Transactions :

(a) Van 30/8322 was handed over for repairs to M/S Associated Motorways Ltd. who was the authorised agent for this vehicle.
They have opened up the engine and submitted an estimate. As the estimate was not acceptable they have been asked to
refit the engine. This amount had been charged by them for refitting and this was paid out of PGIM Generated Income.
Further, this vehicle was not in running condition and PGIM Management has a view to dispose this vehicle. Hence, vehicle
revenue license had not been obtained in time.

(b) Comments are noted. As the number of photocopies are very limited and it was very ineconomical to attend this work
by the library Staff. Photocopy service was handed over to a private firm with the approval of the Director. However action
will be taken to get the approval from the Board of Management through Finance and Management Committee.

3.2.7 Budgetary Control :

(a) Financial allocation letter for the year 2007 received from the UGC on 21.12.2006 and the programme budget prepared
and submitted to the Finance and Management Committee and the Board of Management approval obtained. But, there
was an administrative delay in the Ministry of Higher Education/UGC which was beyond our control.

(b) Action plan for the year 2007 of the PGIM had been prepared and forwarded to Deputy Director of Public Enterprised,
General Treasury Colombo with copy to Supt. of Audit, University of Colombo. 96 (ninety six) postgraduate examinations
were conducted during the year which were the main function of the PGIM.

4. Systems and Control

More attention will be exercised in the following areas of control.
(a) Inventory items and inventory register;
(b) Festival advance and loan register;
(c) Collection of Revenue;
(d) Renewal of petty cash.

Professor REZVI SHERIFF,
Director/PGIM.

Senior Professor of Medicine,
University of Colombo.

Copies to :- (1) Vice Chancellor;
University of Colombo.

(2) Chairman;
University Grants Commission.

(3) Secretary;
Ministry of Higher Education.

(4) Secretary;
Ministry of Finance and Planning.

(5) Supt. of Audit;
Govt. Audit Branch;
University of Colombo.

06-464
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices

SEYLAN     BANK     PLC—DEVELOPMENT    BANKING
UNIT

(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 20th August, 2008 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank
PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Account No. : 0470-486817-001.

“Whereas S. W. D. Enterprise (Private) Limited a Company
incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 under
Registration No. N (PVS) 30435 at Kandy as “Obligor” has made
default in payment due on Bond No. 965 dated 29th June, 2004
attested by T. H. D. L. L. Jayasekera, Notary Public in favour
of Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now due and owing
to the Seylan Bank PLC as at 18th September, 2007 a sum of
Rupees Twenty-eight Million Eight Hundred and Sixty-five
Thousand Forty-one and Cents Forty-five (Rs. 28,865,041.45)
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC
under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that
the property morefully described in hte Schedule hereto and
mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 965 be sold
by Public Auction by Mr. Thusitha Karunaratne, Licensed
Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 28,865,041.45
together with interest at the rate of Thirty-five Percentum (35%)
from 19th September, 2007 to date of sale together with costs of
advertising, any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.”

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 3
depicted in Plan No. 2680 dated 03.11.1991 made by D. D. Hettige,
Licensed Surveyor being a Sub division of resurvey and amalgamation
of Lots 13, 14, 15 and 16 depicted in Plan No. 2579 dated 05.12.1990
made by D. D. Hettige, Licensed Surveyor situated at Thimbirigasyaya
in Ward No. 40, Thimbirigasyaya within the Municipal Council
Limits of Colombo in the District of Colombo Western Province
being bounded on the North by Lot 2, East by Canal, South by
Lot 4, West by Lot 17 in Plan No.  2579 (reservation for road 20 feet
wide) and turning circle containing in extent of Ten Decimal
Five Perches (0A. 0R. 10.5P.) and registered under
Volume/Folio A/967/42 at Land Registry Colombo. Inclusive of the
Canal reservation containing in extent Four Perches (0A., 0R., 4.0P.).

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4
depicted in Plan No. 2680 dated 03.11.1991 made by D. D. Hettige,

Licensed Surveyor being a Sub division of resurvey and amalgamation
of Lots 13, 14, 15 and 16 depicted in Plan No. 2579 dated 05.12.1990
made by D. D. Hettige, Licensed Surveyor situated at Thimbirigasyaya
in Ward No. 40, Thimbirigasyaya within the Municipal Council
Limits of Colombo in the District of Colombo Western Province
being bounded on the North by Lot 3 and Lot 17 (road reservation
and turning circle), East by Canal, South by Lot 5 and balance portion
of the same land, West by Lot 5 and containing in extent of Nine
Decimal Three Five perches (0A. 0R. 9.35P.) and registered under
Volume/FolioA/967/43 at Land Registry Colombo. Inclusive of
Canal Reservation containing in extent of Two Decimal Nought Five
Perches (0A. 0R. 2.05P.).

Along with the Right of way over Lot 17 depicted in Plan
No. 2579 dated 05.12.1990 made by D. D. Hettige, Licensed
Surveyor of the said land being bounded on the North by Lots 1, 3,
5, 7, 9, 11, 13 and 15 of the same Plan , East by Lots 15 and 16 of
the same Plan, South by Lots 2, 4, 6, 8, 10, 12, 14 and 16 of the same
Plan and West by Canal adjacent to Sarana Road and containing in
extent of Seventeen decimal Four Perches (0A. 0R. 17.04P.).

By Order of the Board of Directors,

M. K. PREMATILLEKE,
Assistant General Manager - Legal.

06-462/2

SEYLAN   BANK   PLC—YAKKALA  BRANCH
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies

Act, No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 31st March, 2009 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank
PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Account No. : 0350-N82920-101.

“Whereas Don Sameera Niwantha Dissanayake of Gampaha
as “Obligor” has made default in payment due on Bond No. 209
dated 28th February, 2007 attested by K. D. T. K. Kaluarachchi,
Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under
Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007) and
there is now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC as at 10th
December, 2007 a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Fifty Two
Thousand Three Hundred and Nineteen and Cents Fifty Three
(Rs. 352,319.53) on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of
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Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully described
in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the
said Bond No. 209 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. Thusitha
Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum
of Rs. 352,319.53 together with interest at the rate of Thirty Five
percentum (35%) from 11th December, 2007 todate of sale
together with costs of advertising, any other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.”

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 7
depicted in Plan No. 4093A dated 18.12.2001 made by
D. P. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Marapola
Estate “B” situated at Marapola in the Sub Office Area of Mabodala
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Minuwangoda in Dasiya
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale within the Registration Division and in
the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 7 is
bounded on the North by Lot 6, on the East by Lot 1 in Plan No. 1117
dated 25.09.1999 made by B. S. Nanayakkara, Licensed Surveyor,
on the South by Lot 8 and on the West by Lot 13 and containing in
extent Fifteen Perches (0A. 0R. 15P.) together with buildings trees
plantations and everything else standing thereon.

Together with Right of Way over the following lands :

1. Lot 13 depicted in the said Plan No. 4093A
2. Lot 3B in the said Plan No. 1117 and registered in

Volume/Folio A 238/289.

The above described Lots 7 and 13 are resurvey and Sub divisions
of the below described land.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 4093 dated 11.10.2001 made by D. P.
Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Marapola Estate
B situated at Marapola aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded
on the North by Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 1117, Lot 3B in the said
Plan No. 1117 (Road 30 feet wide) , Lot 3A in the said Plan No. 1117
(Road 20 feet wide), on the East by Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 1117,
on the South by Road (RDA) and on the West by Lot 3B in the said
Plan No. 1117 (Road 30 feet wide), Lot 3A in the said Plan No. 1117
(Road 20 feet wide) and containing in extent Three Acres One Rood
and Thirty Decimal Five Perches (3A. 1R. 30.5P.) together with
buildings trees plantations and everything else standing thereon and
registered in Volume/Folio A 238/284 at the Land Registry, Gampaha.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

C. KOTIGALA,
Senior Deputy General Manager - Legal.

06-462/1

HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK   OF  SRI  LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 1908700042.

“Whereas Marasinghe Arachchilage Chandrakanthi
Marasinghe and Ranatunga Jayasekara Koralalage Gunasekara
made a default in payment due on the Bond No. 1244 dated
01.10.2007 attested by S. M. Lekamge, Notary Public of Waikkala
in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation Bnak of
Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of
1997 as, amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a
sum of Rupees One Million and Four Hundred Sixty-one
Thousand and Two Hundred Fifty and Thirty-one
(Rs. 1,461,250.31) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.01.2009, on the
said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 03rd day of March, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the Shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. P. C. Perera, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of moneys
mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees One Million and Two Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand
and Two Hundred Forty-two and Forty-four
(Rs. 1,299,242.44) being the total unpaid portion of the said
loan, together with the interest in a sum of Rupees One
Hundred Sixty-two Thousand and Seven and cents Eighty-
seven (Rs. 162,007.87) due as at 31.01.2009 totaling to
Rupees One Million and Four Hundred Sixty-one Thousand
and Two Hundred Fifty and Thirty-one (Rs. 1,461,250.31).

2. Further interest at the rate of 24% per annum due on the said
sum of Rupees One Million and Two Hundred Ninety-nine
Thousand and Two Hundred Forty-two and Forty-four
(Rs. 1,299,242.44) from 01.02.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 127 dated 28.03.2007 made by J. A. Rohitha
Jayalath, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kosgahamulawatta
and Kosgahamulahena situated at Illuppugomuwa Village within the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Udubaddawa in Katugampola Hathpattu
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of Katugampola Korale South within the registration Division of
Kuliyapitiya in the District of Kurunegala North western Province
and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Premises of Central
College Kumbukgahamulla, East by Lot 2 in same Plan, South by
Pradeshiya Sabha Road, West by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and
containing in extent One Rood and Thirty-nine decimal One Perch
(0A., 1R., 39.1P.) or 0.2001 Hectares together with soil, trees,
building and everything standing thereon according to the said plan
No. 127 and Registered at the Kuliyapitiya land Registry in
Volume/Folio K 224/26.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-630

HOUSING     DEVELOPMENT    FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK   OF   SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. 1900002909.

“Whereas Rajapaksha Pedilage Sampath Awanka Rajapaksha
made a default in payment due on the Bond No. 849 dated
10.03.2006 attested by S. M. Lekamge, Notary Public of Waikkala
in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation Bnak of
Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of
1997 as, amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a
sum of Rupees Three Hundred Ninety-one Thousand and
Seventy-three and cents Sixty-three (Rs. 391,073.63) is due and
owing to the Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank
of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the Shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. P. C. Perera, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of moneys
mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Three Hundred Forty-seven Thousand and Six
Hundred Twenty-five and cents Forty-one (Rs. 347,625.41)
being the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with
the interest in a sum of Rupees Forty-three Thousand and
Four Hundred Forty-eight and cents Twenty-two
(Rs. 43,448.22) due as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees Three
Hundred Ninety-one Thousand and Seventy-three and cents
Sixty-three (Rs. 391,073.63).

2. Further interest at the rate of 18.90% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Three Hundred Forty-seven Thousand
and Six Hundred Twenty-five and cents Forty-one
(Rs. 347,625.41) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 124
depicted in P. P. PU 3562 dated 30.01.1997 made by Surveyor
General of the land called Mahayaya Watta situated at Kahatawila
Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wennappuwa in
Othara Palatha of Pitigal Korale South within the registration
Division of Marawila in the District of Puttalam North western
Province and which said Lot 124 is bounded on the North by Lots
112, 111 and 110 in same Plan, East by Lots 110 and 125 in same
Plan South by Lot 133 in same Plan, West by Lot 123 and 112 in same
Plan and containing in extent Twelve decimal Eight perches
(0A., 0R., 12.8P.)  or 0.0326 Hectares together with soil trees,
buildings and everything standing threon according to the said plan
No. 3562 and Registered in E 84/178 at the Marawila Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-631

HOUSING    DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK  OF  SRI   LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 2500000671.

“Whereas Alutwatta Disanayakalage Wasantha Disanayaka
has made a default in payment due on the Bond No. 1324 dated
21.02.1998 attested by K. Disanayaka, Notary Public of Colombo
in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation Bnak of
Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of
1997 as, amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a
sum of Rupees Sixty Thousand and Two Hundred Fifty-eight
and cents Seventy-three (Rs. 60,258.73) is due and owing to the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka,
as at 31.12.2005, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 23rd day of February, 2006 that the
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property and premises morefully described in the shcedule
hereto and mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by Public
Auction by W. M. I. Gallella, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery
of moneys mentioned hereunder :

1. Rupees Fifty Thousand Four Hundred Four and cents
Thirty-four (Rs. 50,404.34) being the total unpaid portion of
the said loan, together with the interest in a sum of Rupees
Nine Thousand and Eight Hundred Fifty-four and cents
Thirty-nine (Rs. 9,854.39) due as at 31.12.2005 totaling to
Rupees Sixty Thousand and Two Hundred Fifty-eight and
cents Seventy-three (Rs. 60,258.73).

2. Further interest at the rate of 17% per annum due on the said
sum of Rupees Fifty Thousand Four Hundred Four and cents
Thirty-four (Rs. 50,404.34) from 01.01.2006 up to the date
of auction. (Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 73
depicted in Plan No. 1651/A dated 15.10.1996 made by B. H. A. De
Silva, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called and known
as Kandegedara Estate situated in the Villages of Kandegedara and
Methangare in Katugampola Hathpattu of Meddeketiya Korale in
the District of Kurunegala, North Western Province and which said
Lot 73 is bounded according to the said Plan, on the North by Lot
70, on the East by Road Reservation marked Lot R1, on the South
by Lot 74, and on the West by Lots 71 and 72 and containing in extent
Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P.) together with the buildings,
plantations and also the right to use the right of way over and along
Lots R1 and R34 of the said plan and registered in N 86/15 at the
Kuliyapitiya Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-629

HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK  OF  SRI  LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0230002046.

“Whereas Biyagama Acharige Ananda has made a default in
payment due on the Bond No. 2811 dated 01.03.2007 attested

by S. Niriella, Notary Public of Negombo in favour of Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly
establshed under the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 as, amended by
Housing Development Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003.
(hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Three
Hundred Twenty-five Thousand and One Hundred Forty-eight
and cents Eighty-three (Rs. 325,148.83) is due and owing to the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka,
as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by W.
M. Wickremarathna, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of moneys
mentioned hereunder:

1. Rupees Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (Rs. 250,000) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Seventy-five Thousand and One
Hundred Forty-eight and cents Eighty-three (Rs. 75,148.83)
due as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees Three Hundred
Twenty-five Thousand and One Hundred Forty-eight and
cents Eighty-three (Rs. 325,148.83).

2. Further interest at the rate of 19.90% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Two Hundred Fifty Thousand
(Rs. 250,000) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land depicted in Plan
No. 566 dated 04th February, 1994 made by H. D. Rupasinghe,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Koongahawatta” together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
situated at Kehelella within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Divulapitiya (Kehelella Sub Office) in Dunagaha Pattu of Aluthkuru
Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said
Land is bounded on the North by P. S. Road, on the East by Road,
on the South by Land claimed by W. W. Sumith and others and on
the West by Land in Plan No. 558 and Road and containing in extent
One Rood and Ten decimal Five Perches (0A., 1R., 10.5P.) according
to the said Plan No. 556 and registered in E 999/39 at the Negombo
Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-632
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HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK  OF  SRI   LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100004368 and 0100005700.

“Whereas Heenatigala Badde Liyanage Sarathchandra Gunasiri
has made a default in payment due on the Bond No. 7306 and 211
dated 11.11.1999 and 26.02.2001 attested by J. A. Jayamanna
and S. G. P. S. K. Senanayake, Notary Public of Colombo and
Gampaha in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions),
Act, No. 7 of 1997 as, amended by Housing Development
Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred
as “the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Four Hundred Five Thousand
and Eight Hundred Eleven and cents Fifty-eight (Rs. 405,811.58)
is due and owing to the Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said
Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th January, 2009 that the property and
premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and mortgaged
under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by W. M.
Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of moneys
mentioned hereunder:-

1. Rupees One Hundred Ninety-five Thousand and Three
Hundred Two and cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 195,302.29) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Ten Thousand and
Five Hundred Nine and cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 210,509.29)
due as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees Four Hundred Five
Thousand and Eight Hundred Eleven and cents Fifty-eight
(Rs. 405,811.58).

2. Further interest at the rate of 19.50% and 18.50% per annum
due on the said sum of Rupees One Hundred Ninety-five
Thousand and Three Hundred Two and cents Twenty-nine
(Rs. 195,302.29) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 66
depicted in Plan No. 1120 dated 23.11.1996 made by K. D. G.
Weerasinghe, Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey and sub-division
of Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1092 dated 08.09.1996 made by K. D.

G. Weerasinghe, Licensed Surveyor the land called Lot R of Lot 1A
of Lot 1 of Orchard Estate also called as Orchard Estate together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
situated at Nambadaluwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Attanagalla in Udugaha Pattu of Siyane Korale District of Gampaha
Western Province and which said Lot 66 is bounded on the North by
Lot 67, on the East by Lot 65, on the South by Lot 128 and on the
West by Lot 130 and containing in extent Ten decimal Nought Eight
Perches (0A., 0R., 10.08P.) together with everything standing
thereon and registered in F 221/40 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along Lot 128 and Lot
130 depicted in Plan No. 1120.

By order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-625

HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK   OF  SRI   LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0104400529.

“Whereas Hettiarachchige Ranjith Rathnasiri has made  default
in payment due on the Bond No. 1309  dated 08.01.1997 attested
by W. K. N. P. Vithana, Notary Public of Buthpitiya in favour
of Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri
Lanka, duly established under the Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 as,
amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation Act,
No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a sum
of Rupees Ninety-one Thousand and Thirty-two and cents
Fifty-nine (Rs. 91,032.59) is due and owing to the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at
30.09.2007, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th November, 2007 that the property and
premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and mortgaged
under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by W. M.
Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of moneys
mentioned hereunder:-

1. Rupees Seventy-six Thousand and Eight Hundred
Ninety-three and cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 76,893.87) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Fourteen Thousand and One
Hundred Thirty-eight and cents Seventy-two  (Rs. 14,138.72)
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due as at 30.09.2007 totaling to Rupees Ninety-one Thousand
and Thirty-two and cents Fifty-nine (Rs. 91,032.59).

2. Further interest at the rate of 15.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Seventy-six Thousand and Eight Hundred
Ninety-three and cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 76,893.87) from
01.10.2008 up to the date of auction. (Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 5
depicted in Plan No. 403A dated 25.04.1994 made by A. A. P. J.
Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Thalagahakumbura alias
Imbulgahakumbura, Horiyanwela, Imbulgahakumbura alias
Kitulekumbura, Deniyakumbura, Kahatagahakumbura and
Wetakeyakumbura situated at Mahara Pinnameda bearing Assessment
No. 128/13/B, Dalupitiya Road, within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits
of Mahara No. 01, Mahara Sub Office in Adikari Pattu of Siyane
Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said
Lot 5 is bounded on the North by remaining portion of Lot 4A in Plan
No. 515/1991, on the East by Lot 14, on the South by Lots 6 and 16
and on the West by Lots 16 and 4 and containing in extent Thirteen
decimal Five Perches (0A., 0R., 13.5P.) according to the said Plan
No. 403A. Together with right to use roadways marked Lot 14
(Reservation for Ela, Lot 15 (Reservation for road 15 feet wide), Lot
16 (Reservation for Road 15 feet wide), Lot 17 (Reservation for Road
12 feet wide), and Lot 18 (Reservation for Road 20 feet wide),
depicted in the said Plan and registered in C 437/62 at the Gampaha
Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-626

HOUSING    DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION   BANK   OF   SRI   LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0104400596.

“Whereas Hewagamage Dona Ganga Priyangika Perera and
Hettimudiyanselage Upul Ranjith Jinadasa has made default in
payment due on the Bond No. 7988  dated 10.03.1997 attested
by M. P. Pathiratna, Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka,
duly established under the Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997,
amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation Act,

No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a sum
of Rupees One Hundred Sixty-seven Thousand and One Hundred
Seventy-seven and cents Forty-seven (Rs. 167,177.47) is due
and owing to the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
moneys mentioned hereunder:-

1. Rupees One Hundred Thousand and Six Hundred Fifty-two
and cents Forty-three (Rs. 100,652.43) being the total unpaid
portion of the said loan, together with the interest in a sum of
Rupees Sixty-six Thousand and Five Hundred Twenty-five
and cents Four (Rs. 66,525.04) due as at 31.12.2008 totaling
to Rupees One Hundred Sixty-seven Thousand and One
Hundred Seventy-seven and cents Forty-seven
(Rs. 167,177.47).

2. Further interest at the rate of 16.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees One Hundred Thousand and Six Hundred
Fifty-two and cents Forty-three (Rs. 100,652.43) from
01.01.2009 up to the date of auction. (Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 4A
depicted in Plan No. 484 dated 25.09.1996 made by J. A. W.
Carvolho, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Hikgahawatta bearing
Assessment No. 669/2, Katugastota Road, within the Pradeshiya
Sabha Limits of Minuwangoda in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 4A
is bounded on the North by Lot 3 in Plan No. 361, on the East by
Lot 2A in Plan No. 1825 dated 16th August, 1989 made by
S. Rasappha, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by Road (V. C.) and
on the West by Lot 5 in Plan No. 361 and containing in extent Sixteen
decimal Six Nought perches (0A., 0R., 16.60P.) together with trees,
plantations and everything else standing thereon according to Plan
No. 484 and registered in A 152/281 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-628
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HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0104401548.

“WHEREAS Thrimaviyhana Rathnasiri has made defualt in payment
due on the Bond No. 3591 dated 15.07.2002 attested by C. H.
Gamage, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special
Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development
Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (herein after referred as
“the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Forty Thousand and
Nine Hundred Fourteen and cents Thirteen (Rs. 240,914.13) is due
and owing to the Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank
of Sri Lanka, as at 30.09.2007, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of November, 2007 that the
property and premises morefully described in the shedule hereto
and mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public
Auction by W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for
Recovery of moneys mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Two Hundred Seventeen Thousand and Two Hundred
Fourty and cents Eighty-two (Rs. 217,240.82) being the total
unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the interest in
a sum of Rupees Twenty-three Thousand and Six Hundred
Seventy-three and cents Thirty-one (Rs. 23,673.31) due as at
30.09.2007 totaling to Rupees Two Hundred Fourty Thousand
and Nine Hundred Fourteen and cents Thirteen
(Rs. 240,914.13)

2. Further interest at the rate of 14.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Two Hundred Seventeen Thousand and
Two Hundred Fourty and cents Eighty-two (Rs. 217,240.82)
from 01.10.2007 up to the date of auction. (Both dates
inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 16
depicted in Plan No. 4203A dated 09.11.1999 made by M. D. N.
Fernando Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kahatagahalanda
situated at Wetara village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Homagama (Wetara Sub Office) in Udugaha Pattu of Salpiti Korale
in the District of Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot 16
is bounded on the North by Lto 15 on the East by Lot F in Plan

No. 5058 Kahatagahalanda claimed by Petikitige Don Wijewardhane
on the South by Road (H) from Colombo to Horana and on the West
by Lot 15 and containing in extent Nine decimal Seven Two perches
(0A., 0R., 9.72P.) according to the said Plan No. 4203A aforesaid.
Together with the trees, plantations and  everything else standing
thereon and Registered in N 320/74 at the Homagama Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along Lot 15 depicted
in Plan No. 4203A.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-624

HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100008151.

“WHEREAS Koggala Hewage Sarath Edirisinghe has made default
in payment due on the Bond No. 8656 dated 22.04.2008 attested by
C. W. Rajapaksha, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly
established under the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing
Development Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter
referred as “the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Two Million Eight
Hundred Twenty Thousand and Three Hundred Eighty-six and
cents Seventy-four (Rs. 2,820,386.74) is due and owing to the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as
at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramarathne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
moneys mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Two Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand and
Three Hundred Twenty and cents Thirty-nine
(Rs. 2,490,320.39) being the total unpaid portion of the said
loan, together with the interest in a sum of Rupees Three
Hundred Thirty Thousand and Sixty-six and cents Thirty-
five (Rs. 330,066.35) due as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees
Two Million Eight Hundred Twenty Thousand and Three
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Hundred Eighty-six and cents Seventy-four
(Rs. 2,820,386.74).

2. Further interest at the rate of 25% per annum due on the said
sum of Rupees Two Million Four Hundred Ninety Thousand
and Three Hundred Twenty and cents Thirty-nine (Rs.
2,490,320.39) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 04 in
Plan No. 756A dated 17.03.1988 (as per deed 17th March, 1988 and
17th and 04th January, 1988) made by B. H. A. De Silva, Licensed
Surveyor of the land called Batadombagahawatta (as per deed
Batadombagahawatta and Batadombagahalanda) together with the
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at
Malabe within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kaduwela (Kaduwela
Unit) in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo
Western Province and which said Lot 04 is bounded on the North by
Lot 13 (10 feet wide road), on the East by Lot 12, on the South by
Lot 05 and on the West by Lot 03 and containing in extent Ten
perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and Registered in G 1075/236 at the
Homagama Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along Lot 12 in Plan
No. 756A.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-621

HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0104401077.

“WHEREAS Jaliya Srimantha Samarasekara has made default in
payment due on the Bond No. 1982 dated 08.03.2001 attested by
P. Ruhunuhewa, Notary Public of Negombo, in favour of Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly
established under the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing
Development Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter
referred as “the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Three Hundred
Seventy-five Thousand and Nine Hundred Eighty-one and cents

Fifty                            (Rs. 375,981.50), is due and owing to the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at
31.05.2007, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 23rd day of July, 2007 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Three Hundred Twenty-one Thousand and Three
Hundred Fifteen and cents Fifty-four (Rs. 321,315.54) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Fifty-four Thousand and Six
Hundred Sixty-five and cents Ninety-six (Rs. 54,665.96) due
as at 31.05.2007, totaling to Rupees Three Hundred
Seventy-five Thousand and Nine Hundred Eighty-one and
cents Fifty (Rs. 375,981.50).

2. Further interest at the rate of 14.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Three Hundred Twenty-one Thousand
and Three Hundred Fifteen and cents Fifty-four
(Rs. 321,315.54)  from 01.06.2007 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 16
depicted in Plan No. 4203A dated 09.11.1999 made by M. D. N.
Fernando Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kahatagahalanda
situated at Wetara village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Homagama (Wetara Sub Office) in Udugaha Pattu of Salpiti Korale
in the District of Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot 16
is bounded on the North by Lot 15 on the East by Lot F in Plan
No. 5058 Kahatagahalanda claimed by Petikitige Don Wijewardhane
on the South by Road (H) from Colombo to Horana and on the West
by Lot 15 and containing in extent Nine decimal Seven Two perches
(0A., 0R., 9.72P.) according to the said Plan No. 4203A aforesaid.
Together with the trees, plantations and everything else standing
thereon and Registered in N 320/74 at the Homagama Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along Lot 15 depicted
in Plan No. 4203A.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-619
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HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0104400240.

“WHEREAS Blossom Chamene Marie Irugalbandara and
Athukoralage Mohan Susiranath Perera has made defualt in payment
due on the Bond No. 3838 dated 16.07.1995 attested by N. F. V.
Cooray, Notary Public of Kandana in favour of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special
Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development
Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (herein after referred as
“the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees One Hundre Twenty-six Thousand
and Seven Hundred Forty-five and cents Seventy-eight
(Rs. 126,745.78) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said
Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees One Hundred Twenty-two Thousand and Two
Hundred Thirty-four and cents Thirty-one (Rs. 122,234.31)
being the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with
the interest in a sum of Rupees Four Thousand and Five
Hundred Thirteen and cents Forty-seven (Rs. 4,513.47) due
as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees One Hundred
Twenty-six Thousand and Seven Hundred Forty-five and
cents Seventy-eight (Rs. 126,745.78).

2. Further interest at the rate of 18.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees One Hundred Twenty-two Thousand and
Two Hundred Thirty-four and cents Thirty-one
(Rs. 122,234.31)  from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 4
depicted in Plan No. 87 dated 19.10.1992 made by D. D. C. A. Perera,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kongahawatta bearing
Assessment No. 55/11, Fatima Road, situated at Nagoda within the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Ja-Ela (Kandana Unit) in the Ragam

Pattu of Aluth Kuru Korale in the District  of Gampaha Western
Province and which said Lot 4 is bounded on the North by Lot 06
(Reservation for road 4.5 M. Wide), on the East by Lot 03, on the
South by Lands of L. Ranasinghe and others, W. D. Aloysius and
others and R. D. Josephin and others and on the West by Lot 05 and
containing in extent Fourteen perches (0A., 0R., 14P.) according  to
the said Plan No. 87,  Together with the right of way over 20 feet wide,
road in Plan No. 87 and Registered in B 323/108 at the Gampaha Land
Registry.

Together with the right of way over Lot 6 (reservation for road
4.5M. wide) in the said Plan No. 87.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-620

HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100004841 and 0100001285.

“Whereas Amitha Premalal Edirisinghe has made default in payment
due on the Bond No. 367 and 382 dated 02.11.1999 and 31.12.1987
attested by D. K. Abegunawardane and M. D. Siriwardane, Notary
Public of Colombo in favour of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation
Act, No. 15 of 2003. (herein after referred as “the Bank”) and a sum
of Rupees Two Hundred Fifty-five Thousand and One Hundred
Forty-nine and cents Seventy-five (Rs. 255,149.75) is due and owing
to the Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri
Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Two Hundred Fifteen Thousand and Fifty-two and
cents Thirty-three (Rs. 215,052.33) being the total unpaid
portion of the said loan, together with the interest in a sum of
Rupees Forty Thousand and Ninety-seven and cents Forty-
two (Rs. 40,097.42) due as at 31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees



889I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'06'26
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 26.06.2009

Two Hundred Fifty-five Thousand and One Hundred Forty-
nine and cents Seventy-five (Rs. 255,149.75).

2. Further interest at the rate of 19.50% and 12.50% per annum
due on the said sum of Rupees Two Hundred Fifteen Thousand
and Fifty-two and cents Thirty-three (Rs. 215,052.33) from
01.01.2009 up to the date of auction. (Both dates inclusive).

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of  land marked  depicted
in Plan No. 189/1987 dated 19.04.1987 made by K. A. Rupasinghe,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Jambugahawatta situated at
Pelahela in the Gangaboda Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of
Gampaha Western Province and bounded on the North by portion
of this land belonging to H. G. Seemon and others East by portion
of this same land owned by E. A. Jayawardena, South by Dimunge
Kumbura of M. P. Amis Singho and on the West by portion of this
land belonging to H. Missinona and others Cart Road and E. A.
Somaratne and containing in extent One Acre and Twenty decimal
Seven perches (1A., 0R., 20.7P.) or Hectares 0.4570 and Registered
under title D 164/380 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-627

HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100004920 and 0100005736.

“Whereas Egodage Upathissa Alwis has made default in
payment due on the Bond No. 471 and 683 dated 16.02.2000 and
23.03.2001 attested by K. U. G. E. Perera, Notary Public of
Colombo in favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions),
Act, No. 7 of 1997 amended by Housing Development Finance
Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003 (hereinafter referred as “the
Bank”) and a sum of Rupees One Hundred Twenty-six Thousand
and Eight Hundred Ninety-three and cents Twenty
(Rs. 126,893.20) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.08.2008, on the
said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 17th day of October, 2008 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees One Hundred Two Thousand and Eight Hundred
Fifty-one and cents Seventy-one (Rs. 102,851.71) being the
total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the interest
in a sum of Rupees Twenty-four Thousand and Forty-one and
cents Forty-nine (Rs. 24,041.49) due as at 31.08.2008 totaling
to Rupees One Hundred Twenty-six Thousand and Eight
Hundred Ninety-three and cents Twenty (Rs. 126,893.20).

2. Further interest at the rate of 15% and 13.90% per annum due
on the said sum of Rupees One Hundred Two Thousand and
Eight Hundred Fifty-one and cents Seventy-one
(Rs. 102,851.71) from 01.09.2008 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 12B
depicted in Survey Plan No. 834L dated 12.02.1995 made by T. A.
D. A. Senanayaka, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
Suwandakaraldeniyegodella, Suwandakaraldeniye Godella alias
Hiriketiyewaladeniya Godella together with everything standing
thereon and situated along Jayaweeragoda Road in the Village of
Pahala Hanwella within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Hanwella
and in the Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo
Western Province and bounded on the North by Lot 23 (Road) in Plan
No. 834A, on the East by Lot 20, in Plan No. 834 A on the South
by Lot 21 in Plan No. 834A and on the West by Lot 12A and
containing in extent Twelve decimal Seven perches (0A., 0R., 12.7P.)
according to the said Plan No. 834A and Registered in N 149/282 at
the Avissawella Land Registry.

Together with the right of over and along Lot 23 depicted in
Survey Plan No. 834A dated 20.11.1994 made by T. A. D. Senanayake,
Licensed Surveyor.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-618
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HOUSING    DEVELOPMENT    FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK   OF   SRI  LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0900000799.

“Whereas Seena Patabedige Sunil has made default in payment due
on the Bond No. 2054 dated 30.01.2003 attested by G.E. Munasinghe,
Notary Public of Tangalle in favour of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bnak of Sri Lanka, duly established under the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special
Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 as, amended by Housing Development
Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as
“the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Eighty-nine
Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-seven and cents Seventy-nine
(Rs. 289,437.79) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.07.2007, on the said
Mortgage Bond.”

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of August, 2007 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
G. P. Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of monies
mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees One Hundred Eighty-nine Thousand Seven Hundred
Eight and cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 189,708.29) being the total
unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the  interested
in sum of Rupees Ninety-nine Thousand Seven Hundred
Twenty-nine and cents Fifty (Rs. 99,729.50) due as at
31.07.2007 totalling to Two Hundred Eighty-nine Thousand
Four Hundred Thirty-seven and cents Seventy-nine
(Rs. 289,437.79)

2. Further interest at the rate of 10.50% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees One Hundred Eighty-nine Thousand
Seven Hundred Eight and cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 189,708.29)
from 01.08.2007 up to the date of auction. (Both dates
inclusive).

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of  land marked Lot 1569
depicted in Plan No. 465 made by Surveyor General of the Land
situated at Baminiyanwila, in Giruwa Pattu East, in the District of
Hambantota, Southern Province and which said Lot 1569 is bounded
on the North by Lot 113 & Lot 114, East by Lot 114 & Lot 1568,
South by Lots 1568, 1570 and 1571 and on the West by Lot 1572

and containing in extent Naught decimal Four Nought Eight Hectares
(0.408 Ha) or One Acre and One decimal Two Perches (1A.,0R.,1.2P.)
together with the trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon and registered in HA/21/2311/96 at Hambantota
Land Registry.

At Colombo on this 27th day of August, 2007.

General Manager.

06-616

HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK   OF  SRI  LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0130001358 & 0130001135.

“Whereas Galhenage Kinesley Jayalath Perera & Illeperumage
Jayakanthi & Life Interest Holder Weerakkodige Pavistina Alwis has
made default in payment due on the Bond Nos.958 and 751 dated
22.05.2007 and 18.10.2006 attested by E.R.L.K. Perera, Notary
Public of Colombo in favour of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bnak of Sri Lanka, duly established under the Housing
Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act,
No. 7 of 1997 as, amended by Housing Development Finance
Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as “the
Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Three Million Four Hundred Twenty-
one Thousand Three Hundred Forty-eight and cents Seventy-three
(Rs. 3,421,348.73) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.01.2009, on the said
Mortgage Bond.”

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 03rd day of March, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W.M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Two Million Nine Hundred Eighty-two Thousand
Six Hundred Eighty-four and cents Six (Rs. 2,982,684.06)being
the total unpaid portion of the said Loan, together with the
interest in sum of Rupees Four Hundred Thirty Eight Thousand
Six Hundred Sixty-four and cents Sixty-seven (Rs. 438,664.67)
due as at 31.01.2009 totaling to Rupees Three Million Four
Hundred Twenty-one Thousand Three Hundred Fourty-
eight and cents Seventy-three (Rs. 3,421,348.73).

2. Further interest at the rate of 22% and 19.90% per annum due
on the said sum of Rupees Two Million Nine Hundred Eighty-
two Thousand Six Hundred Eighty-four and cents Six
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(Rs. 2,982,684.06) from 01.02.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All monies and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 1377 dated 18.01.2001 made by A. Senanayake
Licensed Surveyor bearing Assesment No. 221, Colombo road of the
land called Kahatagahalanda situated at Maharagama within the U.C.
Limits of Maharagama in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the
District of Colombo Western Province and bounded on the North by
Road and High Level Road 2 on the East by High Level Road and path
on the South by Path and Lot 2 and on the west by Lot 2 and Road
and containing in extent Five Perches (A.0,R0,P5) and together with
the buildings, trees, plantations & everything else standing thereon
and registered under title M 2522/272 at the Mt. Lavinia Land
Registry.

At Colombo on this 3rd day of March, 2009.

General Manager.

06-617

HOUSING   DEVELOPMENT   FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK   OF  SRI  LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100004301 and 0114400435.

“Whereas Mudiyanselage Shanthi Herath and Glenroy Percival Van
Arkadie has made default in payment due on the Bond Nos. 413 and
265 dated 20.12.1998 and 20.03.1997 attested by K. U. Leelaratne,
Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bnak of Sri Lanka, duly established under the
Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank (Special
Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997 as, amended by Housing Development
Finance Corporation Act, No. 15 of 2003. (hereinafter referred as
“the Bank”) and a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Sixty-two Thousand
and Seven Hundred Sixty-four and cents Thirty-six (Rs. 262,764.36)
is due and owing to the Housing Development Finance Corporation
Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the said Mortgage Bond.”

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the shcedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance

Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W.M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
monies mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees One Hundred Seventy-two Thousand and Seven
Hundred Thirty-six and cents Ninety (Rs. 172,736.90) being
the total unpaid portion of the said Loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Ninety Thousand and Twenty-
seven and cents Forty-six (Rs. 90,027.46) due as at 31.12.2008
totaling to Rupees Two Hundred Sixty-two Thousand and
Seven Hundred Sixty-four and cents Thirty-six
(Rs. 262,764.36).

2. Further interest at the rate of 19.5% and 15.5% per annum due
on the said sum of Rupees One Hundred Seventy-two
Thousand and Seven Hundred Thirty-six and cents Ninety
(Rs. 172,736.90) from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 225
depicted in Plan No. 52/83 dated 10.10.1983 made by S. A. V. Perera,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Wanapotha Mukalana Estate
deed given as Wanapotha Mukalana alias Hambert Estate situated
at Koratota Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kaduwela
(Athurugiriya Sub Office) in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the
District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 225 is
bounded on the North by Lot R1, on the East by Lot R1, on the South
by Lot R1 and Lot 226 (according to deed Lot R1) and on the West
by Lot 226 and containing in extent Thirteen decimal Five perches
(0A., 0R., 13.5P.) according to the said Plan No. 52/83 together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
and Registered in G 705/292 at the Homagama Land Registry.

Together with the right of over and along Lot 3 depicted in Plan
No. 724, Lot X3A depicted in Plan No. 2781 and Lot R1 depicted
in Plan 52/83.

By the order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-623

SAMPATH   BANK  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

Account No. : 0038 5000 6333.



892 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'06'26
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 26.06.2009

AT a meeting held on 31st January, 2008 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Ranamuka Mudiyanselage Srinath Suriyabandara
and Ranamuka Mudiyanselage Gamini Gunathilake Dissanayaka
both of No. 131, Weerapedesa, Pollonnaruwa in the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the Ranamuka
Mudiyanselage Gamini Gunathilake Dissanayake of No. 131,
Weerapedasa, Polonnaruwa aforesaid as the Mortgagor have
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities granted
against the security of the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by
the Mortgage Bond No. 704 dated 24th November, 2006 attested
by S. Ranathunga of Polonnaruwa Notary Public in favour of
Sampath Bank Limited and there is now due and owing to
Sampath Bank Limited as at 16th October, 2007 a sum of  Rupees
Eight Hundred and Fifty-five Thousand Four Hundred and
Thirty-two and cents Eighty-five only (Rs.855,432.85) of lawful
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said
Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under
the powers vested by the Recovery  of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and  premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security for the
said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing No. 704 to be sold
in Public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of
Kandy of the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Eight Hundred
and Fifty-five Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-two and
Cents Eighty-five only (Rs.855,432.85) together with further
interest on a sum of Rupees Six Hundred and Twenty-one
Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-four and cents Forty only
(Rs.621,964.40) at the rate of Eighteen per centum (18%) per
annum from 17th October, 2007 to date of satisfaction of the total
debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 704 together with costs
of advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land morefully described
in Blocking out Plan made by Colony Officer, together with soil,
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon
with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and
appurtenances thereto belonging of the land situated at Weerapedasa
Village in Meda Paththu of Thamankaduwa Divisional Secretary’s
Division within the Registration Division of Polonnaruwa in the
District of Polonnaruwa North Central Province and bounded  on the
North by Road on the East by land claimed by R. M. S. Kumara on
the South by Paddy Field claimed by R. M. M. Bandara and on the
West by land claimed by Seeman Appuhamy  in extent Three Roods
(0A., 3R., 0P) and registered in Volume/Folio L. D. O. 5/27/2/11 at
the land Registry Polonnaruwa.

Which said land is according to a recent Plan No.2013 dated
27th August, 2006 made by D. Mudunkothge Licensed Surveyor and
Leveller is described as follows ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land morefully described
in Lot No. 01 in the Plan No. 2013 dated 27th August, 2006 made
by D. Mudunkothge Licensed Surveyor and Leveller together with

soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything standing thereon
with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and
appurtenances thereto belonging of the land situated at Weerapedasa
Village in Meda Paththu of Thamankaduwa Divisional Secretary’s
Division within the Registration Division of Polonnaruwa in the
District of Polonnaruwa North Central Province and bounded on the
North by Channel and Road Reservation and land of R. M. S. Kumara
Dissanayake on the East by land of R. M. S. Kumara Dissanayake
and Paddy Field of R. M. M. Bandara and on the South by Paddy
Field of R. M. M. Bandara and garden and Paddy Field of heirs of
Seeman Appuhamy and on the West by Garden and Paddy Field of
heirs of Seeman Appuhamy in extent Three Roods (0A., 3R., 0P).

By order of the Board,

Company secretary.

06-568/14

SEYLAN     BANK    PLC—RADDOLUGAMA    BRANCH
 (Registered under Ref PQ9 according to the Companies Act,

No. 07 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990

Account No. : 0620-02300087-101.

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 16.03.2009 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC
it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Ethige Ranjith Silva of Raddolugama as the
‘’Obligor’’ has made default in payment due on Bond No. 1692
dated 10.04.2007 attested by P. S. M. Gunasinghe, Notary Public
in favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under Ref PQ 9
according to the Companies Act, No.07 of 2007) and there is now
due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC as at 15th October, 2007
a sum of Rupees Seven Hundred and Sixty Thousand One
Hundred and Twenty-eight and cents Seventy-eight only
(Rs.760,128.78) on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of
Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990, do
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully described
in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the
said Bond No. 1962 be sold by Public Auction by I. W.
Jayasooriya, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum
of Rs.760,128.78 together with interest at the rate of Thirty
Three Percentum (33%) per annum from 16.10.2007 to date of
sale together with costs of Advertising, any other charges
incurred less payments (if any) since received.’’
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THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot D 12
depicted in Plan No.6732A dated 19.07.1994 made by L. J. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor, of the land called Meegahalanda alias
Meegahawatta, Koongahawatta situated at Akkaragama in the Sub
Office are Kehelella within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Divulapitiya in Dunagaha Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale within the
Registration Division of Negombo in the District of Gampaha,
Western Province and which said Lot D 12 is bounded on the North
by Lots D 15 and D 14, East by Lot D 13, South by Gunasara
Mawatha, West by Lot D 11 Containing in extent Twenty Perches
(0A., 0R., 20P) together with buildings trees plantations and
everything else standing thereon and Registered in volume/folio E
747/160 at the Land Registry, Negombo.

By order of the Board of Directors,

C. KOTIGALA,
Senior Deputy General Manager -

Recoveries/Legal.

06-656

PEOPLE’S     BANK—GALEWELA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank
Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.02.2009.

Whereas Ihala Gedara Kapilaratne alias Ihala Gedara
Kapilaratne Banda has made default of payment due on Mortgage
Bond bearing No. 688 dated 25.08.1994, attested by S. K.
Abeykone, Notary Public of Matale, in favour of the People’s
Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum
of Rupees Four Hundred and Thirty  Two Thousand, Eight
Hundred and Seventy Eight and Cents Twenty Five Only
(Rs.432,878.25) on the said Mortgage Bond No. 688. The Board
of Directors of the People’s Bank under the power vested by the
People’s Bank Act No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act No. 32
of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property/Properties and
premises (if any) mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage
Bond No. 688, be sold by Public Auction by M/s. Schokman and
Samerawickreme Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for recovery of
the said sum of Rupees Four Hundred and Thirty-two Thousand,
Eight Hundred and Seventy-eight and cents Twenty-five only
(Rs.432,878.25) at 25% per centum per annum from 10.06.2002
to the date of sale with costs and other charges of sale less
payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY /PROPERTIES
AND PREMISES MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined portion of land called and known as
Tanahenayaya situated at Moragolla in Kandapalle Korale of Matale
North in the District of Matale, Central Province and marked as Lot
406 in Plan No. S 50406 and containing in extent Three Roods and
Seven Perches (0A., 03R., 07P.) and bounded as per the said Plan,
on the North by road reservation, East by Lot No. 260 and 538, South
by Lot No. 534 and on the West by remaining portion of same land
together with the buildings, plantations and everything standing
thereon and registered in D 362/3 at the Matale Land Registry.

The said land is described below according to a recent resurvey:

All that divided and defined allotment of land called and known
as Tanahenayaya situated at Moragolla in Kandapalle Korale of
Matale North in the District of Matale, Central Province and marked
as Lot No.1 in Plan No. 587 dated 06.06.1994 made by W. D.
Dassanayake, Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent Three
Roods and  Seven Perches (0A., 03R., 07P.) and bounded as per the
said Plan, on the North by High Way Road from Aluthwewa to
Dewahuwa Tank, East by land of I. G. Ukkubanda now claimed by
I. G. Karunaratne and R. R. G. Abasin Banda, on the South West by
Lot 534 in village Plan No. 325 and on the West by means of access,
together with the buildings, plantations and everything standing
thereon.

By Order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
Matale.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
2, Meewattakumbura Road
Matale.

06-584

HOUSING      DEVELOPMENT     FINANCE
CORPORATION    BANK    OF    SRI    LANKA

Resolution under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by Bank
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

Loan No. : 0100007464.

“Whereas Balage Don Ajith Rohan Weerasuriya has made
default in payment due on the Bond No. 1105 dated 30.01.2006
attested by P. J. M. Kumarasiri, Notary Public of Colombo in
favour of Housing Development Finance Corporation Bank of Sri
Lanka, duly established under the Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank (Special Provisions), Act, No. 7 of 1997
amended by Housing Development Finance Corporation Act,
No. 15 of 2003 (hereinafter referred as “the Bank”) and a sum of
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Rupees One Million One Hundred Eighty-five Thousand and
Four Hundred Eighty-two and cents Ninety-two
(Rs. 1,185,482.92) is due and owing to the Housing Development
Finance Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, as at 31.12.2008, on the
said Mortgage Bond.

The Board of Directors of Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 had resolved on 27th day of January, 2009 that the property
and premises morefully described in the schedule hereto and
mortgaged under the said Bond to Housing Development Finance
Corporation Bank of Sri Lanka, be sold by public Auction by
W. M. Wickramaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for Recovery of
moneys mentioned hereunder.

1. Rupees Nine Hundred Eighty-one Thousand and Four Hundred
Twenty-five and cents Ninety-five (Rs. 981,425.95) being
the total unpaid portion of the said loan, together with the
interest in a sum of Rupees Two Hundred Four Thousand and
Fifty-six and cents Ninety-seven (Rs. 204,056.97) due as at
31.12.2008 totaling to Rupees One Million One Hundred
Eighty-five Thousand and Four Hundred Eighty-two and
cents Ninety-two (Rs. 1,185,482.92).

2. Further interest at the rate of 18.90% per annum due on the
said sum of Rupees Nine Hundred Eighty-one Thousand and
Four Hundred Twenty-five and cents Ninety-five
(Rs. 981,425.95)  from 01.01.2009 up to the date of auction.
(Both dates inclusive).

3. All moneys and costs recoverable under section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot A2
depicted in Plan No. 1842 dated 29.11.2003 made by Leslie
N. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Etambagahalanda
together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon situated at Heiyanthuduwa within the Pradeshiya
Sabha Limits of Biyagama (Makola Sub Office) in Adikari Pattu of
Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province and
which said Lot A2 is bounded on the North by Lot A1 and Averiwatta
Road, on the East by Lot 82 in Plan No. 774, on the South by land
of heirs of late Veicn Appu and on the West by Lots 84, 85 and 86
in Plan No. 774 and Lot A1 and containing in extent Eighteen perches
(0A., 0R., 18P.) according to the said Plan No. 1842 and Registered
in C 669/237 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the right of way and other rights in over and along
Lot 87 in Plan No. 774.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

General Manager.

06-622

DFCC    VARDHANA    BANK   LIMITED

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Vardhana Bank
Limited under Section 4 of the recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Marasinghage Gamini Marasingha of Badalgama
carrying on business as Sole Proprietor under the name style and
firm of New Marasinghe Motors has made default in payments
due on Mortgage Bond No. 4800 dated 25th June, 2008 attested
by Chandanie Dayaratne Notary Public  of Negombo in favour
of the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited and whereas there is as at
31st January 2009 due and owing from the said Marasinghage
Gamini Marasingha to the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited on the
aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 4800 a sum of Rupees Five
Hundred and Eighty Thousand One Hundred and Thirty Five and
cents Fifteen(Rs. 580,135.15)  together with interest thereon
from 1st February, 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees
Four Hundred and Thirty Seven Thousand and Five Hundred
(Rs. 437,500) at the rate of Twenty-seven per centum (27%) per
annum and on a sum of Rupees Eighty Eight Thousand Seven
Hundred and Ninety Four and cents Forty Four (Rs. 88,794.44)
at the rate of Thirty Six per centum (36%) per annum and whereas
the Board of Directors of DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited under
the powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
land and premises described below mortgaged to the DFCC
Vardhana Bank Limited by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
No. 4800 be sold by Public Auction by M/s. Schokman and
Samarawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the
recovery of the sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Eighty
Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-five and cents Fifteen
(Rs. 580,135.15) together with interest thereon from 01st February,
2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Four Hundred and
Thirty-seven Thousand and Five Hundred (Rs. 437,500) at the
rate of Twenty-seven per centum (27%) per annum and on a sum
of Rupees Eighty Eight Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety -
four and cents Forty-four (Rs. 88,794.44)  at the rate of Thirty
-six per centum (36%) per annum or any portion thereof remaining
unpaid at the time of sale together with the costs of advertising
and selling the said land and premises and all monies expended and
costs and charges incurred by the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited
in accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 4800

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted in Plan
No. SB/2007/80 dated 24.02.2007 made by S. Balendiran, Licensed
Surveyor of the land called Delgahawatta situated at Akaragama in
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PEOPLE’S    BANK—PUGODA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 24.04.2009.

“Whereas Muthuthanthrige Senaka Joy Chandula Pieris has
made default in payment due on the Bond No. 11855 dated
17.11.2006 attested by S. P. L. Wijesiriwardena, Notary Public
of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Hundred
and Ninety-five Thousand (Rs. 195,000) on the said Bond. The
Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested
in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property
and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond
No. 11855 be sold by Public Auction by E. S. Ramanayake,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of
Rupees One Hundred and Ninety-five Thousand (Rs. 195,000)
and with further interest on Rupees One Hundred and Ninety-
five Thousand (Rs. 195,000) at 22% per annum from 25.04.2008
to date of sale and costs of sale and moneys recoverable under
section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act, Less payments (if
any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of the land marked Lot 10A
depicted in Plan No. 4420 A dated 30.09.2005 made by B. S.
Alahakoon, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Alubogahalanda,
Muttettuwelanda, Muttettuwewatte, Alubogahalanda,
Alubogahadeniya and Hunganwaladeniya situated at Owitigama
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Dompe (Pugoda Sub Office)

in Gangaboda Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha,
Western Province and bounded on the North by Road 20ft. wide road
and Lot A in Plan No. 2588 made by V. A. L. Senarathne, Licensed
Surveyor East by Lot 09 in Plan No. 2588 made by V. A. L.
Senarathna Licensed Surveyor South by Lots 4 and 3 in Plan No. 1662
made by M. S. Fernando Licensed Surveyor and West by Lot 10B
and containing in extent Ten perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) or Hectare
0.02529 together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and
everything else standing thereon and registered at the Land Registry
of Gampaha under D 419/171.

Together with the right of over the reservation for road depicted
in the said Plan.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

06-588

SAMPATH   BANK  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. : 1076 5308 7595.

AT a meeting held on 27th March 2008 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Chaminda Lalith Kumara Jayasekera of No. 301/10,
Koswatte North, Kiriwattuduwa, Homagama in the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default
in the repayment of the credit facility granted against the security
of the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond
No. 1301 dated 26th January, 2006 attested by Ramya Alahendra
of Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank Limited
and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited as at
08th January, 2008 a sum of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred
and Fifty-two Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty and Cents
Seventeen Only (Rs. 1,952,730.17) of lawful money of Sri Lanka
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board
of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the powers vested
by the recovery of loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.
04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath
Bank Limited as security for the said credit facility by the said
Bond bearing No. 1301 to be sold in public auction by I. W.

Dunagaha Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale and within the Registration
Division of Negombo in the District of Gampaha Western Province
and which said land is bounded on the North by Land of Biyatrice
Piyaseeli, East by Land of Gamini Marasinghe, South by Lands of
R. A. Sunil and Sirinimal Samanpitiya, and West by Road (R. D. A.)
and containing in extent Thirty Four Perches (0A.,0R.,34P.) together
with everything standing thereon and registred at the Land Registry
Negombo.

L. G. PERERA,
Managing Director/

Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited,
No. 73, W. A. D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

06-564/1
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Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the
said sum of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred and Fifty-two
Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty and cents Seventeen only
(Rs. 1,952,730.17) together with further interest on a sum of
Rupees One Million Seven Hundred and Sixty Thousand Nine
Hundred and Sixty-nine and cents Twenty-seven only
(Rs. 1,760,969.27) at the rate of Thirteen decimal five per centum
(13.5%) per annum from 09th January, 2008 to date of satisfaction
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 1301 together
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less payments
(if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 2649 dated 29th May, 2002 made by P. H. M.
L. Premachandra, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called
“Ratawanalanda” together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon with all rights, ways, privileges,
easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging situated
at Uduwana in Palle Pattu Salpita Korale within the Pradeshiya
Sabaha limits of Homagama in the District of Colombo, Western
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by
Alubogahakumbura and Ratawanalanda of U. Somapala and others
on the East by Ratawalanalanda of U. Somapala and others and Lot
A2 in Plan No. 2377, on the South by Lot 5 and Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and
6 in Plan No. 828 dated, 19th June, 1994 made by M. A. Jayaratne,
Licensed Surveyor and on the West by Alubogahakumbura and
containing in extent Twenty-nine decimal Nine Naught Perches
(0A., 0R., 29.90P.) according to the said Plan No. 2649. Registered
in Volume/Folio G 1623/177 at the Land Registry, Homagama.

Together with the right of way over and along–

Lot 5 (Road Reservation) in Plan No. 2649 aforesaid.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/1

SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. : 0004 5004 2722.

AT a meeting held on 28th February 2008 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Chiththrangani Hewawitharana of No. 87,
Chithragara Road, Mahabuthgamuwa, Angoda in the Democratic

Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default
in the repayment of the credit facility granted against the security
of the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond
No. 3612 dated 14th December, 2005 attested by K. S. P. W.
Jayaweera Notary Public of  Colombo in favour of Sampath Bank
Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited
as at 14th November, 2007 a sum of Rupees One Million Nine
Hundred and Twenty-five Thousand One Hundred and Sixteen
and Cents Thirty-three only (Rs. 1,925,116.33) of lawful money
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond
and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the
powers vested by the recovery of loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security for the
said credit facility by the said Bond bearing No. 3612 to be sold
in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Million
Nine Hundred and Twenty-five Thousand One Hundred and
Sixteen and Cents Thirty-three only (Rs. 1,925,116.33) together
with further interest on a sum of Rupees One Million Seven
Hundred and Sixteen Thousand Six Hundred and Ten only
(Rs. 1,716,610) at the rate of Thirteen decimal five per centum
(13.5%) per annum from 15th November, 2007 to date of
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing
No. 3612 together with costs of advertising and other charges
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 744 dated 3rd November 2000 (but registered
as 3rd October, 2000) made by D. A. Weerakkody Licensed
Surveyor of the land called “Ketakelagahawaththa” together with the
soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing
thereon with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and
appurtenances thereto belonging situated at Pananwela in Dekatana
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Dompe in Gangabada pattu
of Siyane Korale and in the District of Gampaha, Western Province
an which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Road on the East
by Lot 2 in the aforesaid Plan on the South by the land belonging to
R. A. Sirisena and on the West by remaining portion of Lot B depicted
in Plan No. 658 dated 30th August, 1960 made by T. Amarasinghe,
Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent Twenty-one decimal
Eight Nought perches (0A., 0R., 21.80P.) according to the said Plan
No. 744 and registered in Volume/Folio D 391/152 at the Land
Registry, Gampaha.

By Order of the Board

Company Secretary.

06-568/2
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SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Ltd)

Resolution  adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Sepcial Provisions) Act No. 04 of 1990

A/C No : 0010 1000 8383.

AT a meeting held on 28th August, 2008 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously :

Whereas Samantha Jayawickrama and Company (Private)
Limited a Company duly incorporated under the Company Laws
of Sri Lanka and having its registered office at No. 83, Meera Road,
Issadeen Town, Matara in the Democratic Socialist Republic of
Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the repayment of the
credit facilities granted against the security of the properties and
premises morefully described under item 1, 2 and 3 respectively
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the
Mortgage Bond Nos. 610 dated 24 July 2006, 659 dated 17th
August, 2006, 1205 dated 30th January, 2008 and 1207 dated
30th January, 2008 all attested by W.S. Paranamana of Marara
Notary Public and 1135 dated 22th February, 2007 attested by
S. D. Hewavitharana Notary Public of Matara in favour of
Sampath Bank PLC holding Company No. PQ 144.

And whereas the said Samantha Jayawickrama and Company
(Private) Limited a Company duly incorporated under the
company Laws of Sri Lanka and having its registered office at
No. 83, Meera Road, Issadeen Town, Matara in the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor and Samantha
Jayawickrama of No. 83, Meera Road, Issadeen Town, Matara
as the Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the credit
facility granted  against the security of the property and premises
morefully described under item 4 in the Schedule hereto mortgaged
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 1153 dated 29
March, 2007 attested by S.D. Hewavitharana of Matara Notary
Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company No. PQ
144.

And there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank PLC
afroresaid as at 01 April, 2008 a sum of Rupees Fifty Five Million
One Hundred and Forty Six Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty
Nine and Cents Seventy Four Only (Rs.55,146,959.74) of lawful
money of Sri Lanka being  the total amount outstanding on the
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC
aforesaid under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the properties and premises morefully described under items
1,2,3 and 4 respectively in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit
facilities by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 610, 659, 1205, 1207,
1135 and 1153 to be sold in public auction by Schokman and
Samarawickrame Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Fifty-five Million One
Hundred and Forty-six Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty-nine
and cents Seventy-four only (Rs. 55,146,959.74) together with
further interest on a sum of  Rupees Forty Million Two Hundred

and Fifty-five Thousand Seventy-five only (Rs.40,255,075) at
the rate of Twenty per centum (20%) per annum and further
interest on a further sum of Rupees Twelve Million Three
Hundred and Forty Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty
Only (Rs.12,343,750) at the rate of Eleven per centum (11%) per
annum 02nd April, 2008 to date of satisfaction of the total debt
due upon the said Bonds bearing  Nos. 610,659,1205,1207,1135
and 1153 together with costs of advertising and other charges
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

1. All that the entierty of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon together with all rights,
ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and apputenances
thereto belonging of the defined allotment of land marked Lot
A depicted in Plan No. 497 dated 22 May, 2003 made by
W. R. Kularatne Licensed Surveyor of the land called
‘Indigahawatta’ situated at Thalaramba, in Weligam Korale,
in the District of Matara, Southern Province and which said
Lot A is bounded on the North by Lot 2 of the same land, on
the East by Lot 5 (8ft. wide road) of the same land and Lot
4C (4ft. wide road) of the same land, on the South by Lot 2
in Plan No. 244 and highway from Galle to Matara and on the
West by Portion of the same land and containing in extent of
One Rood and Twenty Eight decimal Three Perches
(A.0,R0,P28.3) according to the said Plan No. 497, Registered
at the Land Registry Matara under Volume /Folio D 860/328.

The above is a resurvey of the amalgamation of the following
three allotments of land :

All that the entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon of the defined allotment
of land marked Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 244 dated 17
November 1999 made by W.R. Kularatne Licensed Surveyor
of the land called “Sub-division of Lot 4A of Lot 4 of
Indigahawatta” situated at Thalaramba aforesaid and which
said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 4B of the same land,
on the East by Lot 2 of the same land on the South by Highway
from Galle to Matara and on the West by portionof the same
land and containing in extent of Fifteen perches
(0A., 0R., 15P.) according to the said Plan No. 244 and
registered in Volume/Folio D 860/320 at the Land Registry
Matara.

All that the entirety of the soil, trees, Plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon of the defined allotment
of land marked Lot 4B depicted in Plan No. 241 dated 26
October 1999 made by W.R. Kularatne Licensed Surveyor of
the land called “Sub-division of Lot 4 of Indigahawatta”
situated at Thalaramba, aforesaid and which said Lot 4B is
bounded on the North by Lot 3 of the same land on the East
by Lot 4C  (4ft. wide road) of the same land on the South by
Lots 1 and 2 in Plan No.  244 and on the West by portion of
the same land and containing in extent Five decimal Seven
Naught Perches (0A.,0R., 5.70P.) according to the said Plan
No. 241 and registered in Volume/Folio D1045/232 at the
Land Registry Matara.
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All that the entirety of the soil, trees, Plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon of the defined allotment
of land marked Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 41/1988 dated 09th
March, 1988 made by K. Siriwardena Licensed Surveyor of
the land called “Indigahawatta” situated at Thalaramba
aforesaid and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by Lot
2 of the same land on the East by Lot 5 (8ft. wide road) of the
same land on the South by Lot 4B of the same land and on the
West by portion of the same  land and containing in extent of
One Rood and Seven decimal Six Naught Perches (0A.,
1R.,7.60P.) according to the said Plan No. 41/1988 and
registered in Volume/Folio D 860/311 at the Land Registry
Matara.

Together with the right of way over and along :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 5
(8ft. wide road) depicted in Plan No. 41/1988 dated 09 March
1988 made by K. Siriwardana Licensed Surveyor, of the land
called “Indigahawatta” situated at Thalaramba, aforesaid and
which said Lot 5 is bounded on the North by Lot 2 of the same
land on the East by Lot 1 of the same land on the South by Main
Road from Walgama to Matara and on the West by Lots 3 and
4 of the same land and containing in extent of Eight decimal
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 8.5P) according to the said Plan
No. 41/1988 and registered at Land Registry Matara  in
Volume/Folio D860/330.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4C
(4ft. wide road) depicted inPlan No. 241 dated 26 October
1999 made by W.R. Kularatne Licensed Surveyor of the land
called Sub-division of Lot 4 of “Indigahawatta” situated at
Thalaramba, aforesaid and which said Lot 4C is bounded on
the North by Lot 3 of the same land on the East by Lot 5( 8ft.
wide road) of the same land on the South by Main road from
Galle to Matara and on the West by Lot 4A of the same land
and containing in extent of One decimal Nine perches
(A.0, R.0,P1.9) according to the said Plan No. 241 and
registered at Land Registry Matara in Volume/Folio
D 1045/233.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of the said
Mortgage Bond No. 610.

2. All that the entirety of the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon together with all rights,
ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenances
thereto belonging of the defined allotment of land marked Lot
1 depicted in Plan No. 239 dated 31 August 2004 made by
P.M. Abeygunawardena Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Amalagamation of Lots 6D, 6E and 6F of Lot 6 contiguous
Lots 4 or Lot D of Lot B of Ralahaminnewatta, Lot 5 of Lot
B of Ralahaminnewatta, Lot A of Ralahaminne Watta and the
portion of Bogahawatta, Lot B of Lot A of
Godakadurugahapittaniya alias Mahakoratuwa (or
Godakadurugahapittaniya alias Mahakoratuwa) and Lot C  of
Lot A Godakadurugaha alias Mahakoratuwa, also known as
Godakadurugahawatta alias Mahakoratuwa” bearing
Assessment Nos. 382 and 384 , Anagarika  Dharmapala

Mawatha, (Old assessment No. 376) situated at Pamburana
within the Municipal Council Limits and Four Gravets of
Matara of the District of Matara, Southern Province and
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 5 of the same
land on the East by Municipal Council Road on the South by
Lots 6A, 6B and 6C and on the West by Ralahaminnewatta
and containing in extent of Twenty Two decimal Eight
Perches (0A., 0R., 22.8P.) according to the said Plan No. 239
and registered at Land Registry Matara in Volume/Folio
A 469/207.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of the said
Mortgage Bond Nos. 659, 1135 and 1207.

3. All that the enitrety of the soil, trees, plantations and
everything else standing thereon together with all rights,
ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenances
thereto belonging of the defined allotment of land marked Lot
1 depicted in Plan No. 346 dated 26th October, 2006 made by
P.M. Abeygunawardena Licensed Surveyor (being a
re-survey and amalgamation of Lots 4A and 4B depicted in
Plan No. 899 dated 20th August, 1997 made by H.J. Samarapala
Licensed Surveyor) of the land called “Lot 4 of Lot A of
Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta” bearing assessment No.
14 (1), Anagarika Dharmapala Mawatha, situated at Walgama
within the Urban Council Limits and Four Gravets of Matara
in the District of Matara, Southern Province and which said
Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Main  Road from Galle to
Matara on the East by Lot B (road to houses) in Plan No. 899
on the South by Lot C in Plan No. 899 and on the West by Lots
1,2 and 3 of the same land and containing in extent Ten decimal
Nine Five Perches (0A., 0R., 10.95P) according to the said
Plan No. 346.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of the amalgamation of Lots 4A
and 4B fully as described below:–

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4A
depicted in Plan No. 899 dated 20 August 1997 made by H.J.
Samarapala Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Lot 4 of
Lot A of Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta” together with the
soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing
thereon, situated at Walgama aforesaid and which said Lot 4A,
is bounded on the North by Main Road from Galle to Matara
on the East by Lot B (15ft. wide road) of the same land on the
South by Lot C of Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta and on
the West by Lots 2 and 3 of Lot A and Lot 4B of Aththalaiwatta
alias Gedarawatta and containing in extent Ten decimal Six
Three Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 10.63P.) as per the said Plan
No. 899 and registered in Volume/Folio A 499/199 at the Land
Registry.

All that divided and defined alltoment of land marked Lot 4B
depicted in Plan No. 899 dated 20 August 1997 made by
H. J. Samarapala, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Lot
4 of Lot A of Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta” together with
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon, situated at Walgama aforesaid and which
said Lot 4B is bounded on the North by Lot 2 of the same land
on the East by Lot 4A in the same land on the South by Lot
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C of Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta and on the West by
Lot 1 of Lot A Aththalaiwatta alias Gedarawatta and containing
in extent One Perch (0A., 0R., 1P.) as per the said Plan
No. 899 and registered in Volume/Folio A 499/200 at the Land
Registry Matara.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of the said
Mortgage Bond No. 1205.

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 280 dated 04th April,  2004 made by
P.M. Abeygunawardana, Licensed Surveyor (being  a
re- survey of Lot 20 depicted in Plan No. 1000 dated 22nd
March, 1987 made by B. Attanayake Licensed Surveyor) of
the land called “Kahampale Kurunduwatta alias Issadeen
Town” bearing Assessment No. 83, Meera Road, together
with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon and together with all rights, ways, privilages,
easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging
situated at Hittatiya within the Four Gravets and Municipal
Council Limits of Matara in the District of Matara, Southern
Province and (bearing Assessment No. 79) which said Lot 1
is bounded on the North by Meera road on the East by Lot
18 in Plan No. 1230 (bearing Assessment No. 79) on the South
by Reservation for Road (10ft. wide Road) and on the West
by Lot 22 in Plan No. 1230 (bearing Assessment No. 87) and
containing in extent One Rood and Eight perches
(0A., 1R., 8P.) as per said Plan No. 280 and registered in
Volume/Folio A467/50 at the Land Registry Matara.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of the said
Mortgage Bond No. 1153.

By Order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/6

PEOPLE’S BANK—GANDARA  BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the people’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.03.2009.

Whereas Weeraratne Matara Mahavidana Muhandiramge
Nandawathie and Balage Krishan Indika Kumara have made
default of payment due on Mortgage Bond bearing No. 4334
dated 23.08.2007 attested by T. N. Rubasinghe, Notary Public,
Matara in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and
owing to the said People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Million
Three Hundred and Fifty-three thousand and Three Hundred and
Thirty-two (Rs. 1,353,332) only on the said mortgage Bond
No. 4334.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as
amended by Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond No. 4334 be sold by public auction by
G. P. Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer of Matara for recovery of the
said sum of Rupees One Million Thre Hundred and Fifty three
thousand Three Hundred and Thirty two (Rs. 1,353,332) only
with further interest on One Million Three Hundred and Fifty-
three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-two (Rs. 1,353,332)
at Twenty four per centum (24%) from 08.02.2008 to-date of sale
with costs and monies recoverable under section ‘29L’ of the said
People’s Bank Act, less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

An allotment of the land called Paluwatta situated at Devinuwara,
Wellaboda Pattu, Matara District, Southern Province and bounded
on the North by land where in Mitithotahewage Aberan was
residing and Olokkupara (Lane), East by Main Road, south by
Garden where in Suriyapatabedige Ago was residing, West by
Suriyapatabendigewatta and containing in extent Twenty six perches
(0A, 0R, 26P) and depicted in Plan No. 77 dated 08.02.1923 made
by H. B. Ernest, LIcensed Surveyor together with all the buildings
plantations and everything else thereon and registered at B 554/190
Matara District Land Registry.

Which said land is recently surveyed by undermentioned plan and
described as follows :

All that divided and defined Lot 01 of the land called Paluwatta,
bearing assessment No. 90, Sinhasana Road, situated at Devinuwara,
Wellaboda Pattu, Matara District, Southern Province which said Lot
01 is bounded on the North by land where in Mitithota Hewage
Aberan was residing, East by Sinhasana Road, South by Garden
where in Suriyapatabendiege Ago was residing, West by
Suriyapatabendige watta and containing in extent 26 perches (0A,
0R, 26) and depicted in Plan No. 1308B dated 07.02.2007 made by
W. P. Sunil, Licensed Surveyor together with all the buildings,
plantations & everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
38/1A, Esplanade Road,
Matara.

06-596

SAMPATH    BANK    PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited )

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. : 0037 1000 2516.

AT a meeting held on 28th September, 2006 by the Board of
Directors of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and
unanimously:
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Whereas Rythma shamalee Kumari Jayasinghe being the Sole
Proprietress of the business carried on at No. 200, Temple Road,
Maharagama in the Democratic Socialist republic of Sri Lanka
under the name and style of “Salasima Advertising Services” in
the said Republic as the Obligor has made default in payment due
on the Mortgage bond No. 2326 dated 16th September, 2003
attested by K. S. P.W. Jayaweera of Colombo Notary Public in
favour of Sampath Bank Limited and there in now due and owing
to Sampath Bank Limited as at 11th August, 2006 a sum of
Rupees Two Million Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred and
Forty one and cents Twenty only (Rs. 2,014,941.20) of lawful
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the siad
Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited by the said Bond
bearing No. 2326 to be sold in public auction by Dunstan Kelaart
Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Two Million Fourteen Thousand Nine Hundred and
forty One and cents twenty only (Rs. 2,014,941.20) together
with further interest on a sum of Rupees One Million Five
Hundred thousand Only (Rs. 1,500,000) at the rate of Seventeen
per centum (17%) per annum from 12th August, 2006 to date of
sale together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred
less payments (if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 642 dated 05th April, 2003 made by S. A. W.
Perera Licensed Survryor of the land called “Delgahawatta” together
with soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
bearing Assessment No. 198A, Temple Road and situated along
Railway Avenue within the Urban Council Limits of Maharagama
in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Portion
of same land claimed by R. S. K. Jayasinghe and U. P. Amarabandu
(Lot 1 in Surveoyr Plan No. 115) on the East by Lot 2 on the South
by Railway Avenue and on the West by Portion of same land claimed
by heirs of Hector Jayasinghe and containing in extent Twenty
decimal Three Five Perches (0A, 0R, 20.35) according to the said Plan
No. 642. Registered at the Land Registry Mount Lavinia in Volume/
Folio M 2684/32.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/5

NATIONS    TRUST    BANK  PLC

Notice   Resolution   passed  by  the Directors  of  Nations
Trust  Bank  PLC (reg. No. pq 118)  Under Section 4 of the

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
Nation Trust Bank PLC. (Reg. No. PQ. 118) on 30th April, 2009.

Whereas  by Mortgage Bond, bearing No. 6075 dated 02nd
September, 2004 (hereinafter referred to as the “Bond”) attested
by Deva Manoharan Swaminathan Notary Public of Colombo,
Maruthavel Saravana Kumar of No. 68/4, Thaladuwa Road,
Negombo (hereinafter referred to as the Mortgage) has mortgaged
and hypothecated the rights, property and premises more fully
described in the schedule hereto in favour of Nations Trust Bank
PLC (formerly known as Nations Trust Bank Limited) of
No. 242, Union Place, Colombo 02 (formerly of No. 76, York
Street, Colombo 01.) as a security for the due repayment of the
financial facilities obtained by the said Mortgaged.

And whereas the said mortgagor has made default in the
payment due on the said facilities secured by the said Bond and
there is now due and owing to Nations Trust Bank PLC as at
09.02.2009 a sum of Rupees Two Million Five Hundred and Nine
Thousand and Six Hundred and Eighty Eight and Cents Sixty
Eight (Rs. 2,509,688.68) on the said Bond.

It is hereby resolved under the powers vested by recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that the
rights, property and premises more fully described in the schedule
hereto be sold by Public Auction by Triad Auctioneers for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two Million Five Hundred
and Nine Thousand and Six Hundred and Eighty Eight and Cents
Sixty- eight (Rs. 2,509,688.68) with further interst from 10.02.2009
up to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Two Million Three
Hundred and Forty Thousand and One Hundred and Sixteen and
Cents Forty Six (Rs. 2,340,116.46) being the capital outstanding
on the Housing Loan as at 09.02.2009 at the rate of 26.25% per
annum together with attendant statutory levies. Costs of
advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 19 from
and out of the continuous allotments of land caleld Dangahakumbura
alias Kuruvikumbura, Abaranaratchigekumbura and
Marandagahakumbura alias Madangahakumbura, Telgahakumbura
amalgamated into one land converted into high land and situated at
First Division Bolawalana within the Municipal Council Limits of
Negombo within the Registration Division of Negombo in the
District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 19
according to Plan No. 1342 dated 26th July, 1969 made by
N. D. Sirisena, Licensed Surveyor is bounded on the North by Lot
33 (road reservation 20 feet wide) East by Lot 20, South by Lot 34
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(road reservation 15 feet wide) and West by Lot 18 containing in
extent Fifteen decimal Two Perches (0A, 0R, 15.2P) together with
everything standing thereon and registered in A 166/130 in the
Negombo Land Registry and which said land according to recent Plan
No. 4712/1986 (Lot 19) dated 29th September, 1986 made by
H. L. Cross Dabrera Licensed Surveyor called Lot 19 of
Dangahakumbura alias Kuruwikumbura, Abaranaratchigekumbura
and Marandagahakumbura alias Madangahakumbura,
Telgahakumbura situated at First Division Bolawalana aforesaid and
bounded on the North by M. C. Road to Queen Elizabeth II
Mawatha, East by Lot 20 of T. P. Rodrigo, South by Road 15 feet
wide and West by Lot 18 of B. C. Wilson containing in extent within
these boundaries Fifteen Decimal Two Perches (0A, 0R, 15.2P)
together with everything standing thereon bearing Assessment No.
33 Second Queen Elizabeth Mawatha.

Which said Lot 19 is the said Plan No. 4712/1986 according to
a more recent Plan No. 8612/2004 dated 19th July, 2004 made by
H. L. Cross Dabrera Licensed Surveyor is described as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land called Lot 19
depicted in the said Plan No. 8612/2004 of Dangahakumbura alias
Kuruvikumbura, Abaranaratchigekumbura and Marandagahakumbura
alias Marandagahakumbura, Telgahakumbura (in Plan No. 4712/
1986 of 29.09.1986 by H. L. Cross Dabrera Licensed Surveyor)
premises bearing Assessment No. 27, Queen Elizabeth II Mawatha,
situated at 1st Division Bolawalana within the Municipal Council
Limits and within the Registration Division of Negombo in the
District of Gampaha Western Province bounded on the North by
Municipal Road, East by Lot 20, South by Road and West by Lot
18 containing in extent Fourteen Decimal Six Perches (0A, 0R, 14.6P)
or 0.0369 Hectares according to the said Plan No. 8612/2004.

By order of the Board,

THEJA SILVA,
Company Secretary.

No. 242, Union Place,
Colombo 02.

06-554

PEOPLE’S    BANK

Resolution Under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as Amended by Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.01.2009.

Whereas Shankem (Pvt.) Limited has made default in payment
due on the Mortgage Bonds bearing Nos. 106 dated  08th October,
1993 attested by Manel Paranavidane Samaradivakara Notary

Public, 2518 dated 11th September, 1998 and 4009 dated 19th
March, 2003 and Supplementary Bond No. 3755 dated 30th
April, 2002 all attested by Gnana Ekanayake, Notary Public of
Colombo and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank
a sum of Rupees Six Million Seventy-five Thousand Six Hundred
Fifty-four and cents Fifteen (Rs. 6,075,654.15) together with
interest on the said Bonds.

The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961
as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgaged to the Bank by the said
Bond Nos. 106, 2518, and 4009 and Supplementary Bond
No. 3755 be sold by Public Auction by Schokman &
Samarawickrama, Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of
aforesaid sum of Rupees Six Million Seventy-five Thousand Six
Hundred Fifty-four and cents Fifteen (Rs. 6,075,654.15) with
further interest on Rupees Three Million Nine Hundred and
Fifty -six and Six and cents Seventy-seven only  (Rs. 3,956,066.77)
at the rate of 17.5% p. a (Seventeen Point Five Percent/Per
annum), Seven Hundred Nineteen Thousand Six Hundred Four
and cents Forty (Rs. 719,604.40) at the rate of 22% p.a
(Twenty -two percent/per annum) and One Million Four Hundred
Thousand Forty-two and cents Ninety-eight (Rs. 1,400,042.98)
at the rate of 21% p.a (Twenty One percent/per annum) from
15th September, 2008 to date of sale and costs of sale less
payment if any, since received and other charges.

SCHEDULE

1. All those leasehold rights in respect of divided and defined
allotment of land marked Lot 18 depicted in Plan
No. 8502-1 dated 08.07.1985 made by S. M. K. B.
Mawalagedera, Licensed surveyor situated at Peliyagoda
Integrated Development Scheme within the Urban Council
Limits of Peliyagoda in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
South in the District of Colombo, Western Province and
which said Lot 18 is bounded on the North and West by Lot
21, East by Lot 19 and on the South by Lot 4 and containing
in extent Thirteen decimal One Five Perches (0A, 0R, 13.15P)
or 0.03325 Hectares according to the said plan No. 8502-1 and
registered at the Colombo District Land Registry under B 831/
128.

2. All those leasehold rights in respect of divided and defined
allotment of land marked Lot 21 (Reservation along Canal)
depicted in the said Plan No. 8502-1 dated 08.07.1985 made
by S. M. K. B. Mawalagedera, Licensed surveyor situated at
Peliyagoda aforesaid and bounded on the North by Lot
No. 22 (Reservation for Canal) in the said Plan No. 8502-1,
East by Lot 110 in the said Plan, South by Lots 1, 4, 8, 10,
14, 15 NS and 18 to 20 in the said Plan and on the West by
Road and containing in extent One Acre and decimal Two Two
Perches (1A, 0R, 00.22P) according to the said Plan
No. 8502-1 and registered at the Colombo District Land
Registry under B 903/161.

3. All those leasehold rights in respect of divided and defined
allotment of land marked Lot 4 (Reservation for a Road -25
feet wide) depicted in the said Plan No. 8502-1 dated
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08.07.1985 situated at Peliyagoda aforesaid and bounded on
the North by Lots 3,9,10,14,15 and 18 to 21, East by Lots 5,
8, 11 - 13, 16 and 17, South by Road and Cassichettiwatta and
on the West by Lots 3, 9, 10, 14, 15 and 21 and containing in
extent One Rood and Twenty Eight Perches (0A, 1R, 28P) or
0.17200 Hectares according to the said Plan No. 8502-1 and
registered at the Colombo District Land Registry under
B 903/162.

By order of Board of Directors.

Assistant General Manager,
Corporate Credit I

06-595

DFCC   BANK

Notice Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank
(Formerly known as Development Finance Corporation of

Ceylon) under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Subaddarage Balasuriya of Anuradhapura has made
default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 2 dated 26th July,
2004 attested by U. Wijeratne, Notary Public in favour of the
DFCC Bank formerly known as Development Finance
Corporation of Ceylon and whereas there is as at 31st January,
2009 due and owing from the said Subaddarage Balasuriya to
DFCC Bank of  the aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 2 a sum of
Rupees Two Million Four Hundred and Sixty Seven Thousand
Four Hundred and Sixty Eight and cents Seventeen
(Rs. 2,467,468.17) together with interest thereon from 01st
February, 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees One Million
Two Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand Three Hundred and
Twenty (Rs. 1,283,320) at a rate of interest revised every 01st
January, 01st April, 01st July and 01st October each year which
will be Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per annum above
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded
upwards to the nearest higher 0.5% per annum and whereas the
Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank under the powers vested
in them by the recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)
Act, No. 4 of  1990 and the Development Finance Corporation
of Ceylon Act, No. 35 of 1955 as subsequently amended, do
hereby resolve that the Motor Vehicles mortgaged to the DFCC
Bank by the aforesaid Mortgaged Bond No. 2 be sold be Public
Auction by Mr. L. B. Senanayake,  Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for the recovery of the sum of Rupees Two Million
Four Hundred and Sixty-seven Thousand Four Hundred and

Sixty-eight and cents Seventeen (Rs. 2,467,468.17) together with
interest thereon from 01st February, 2009 to the date of sale on
a sum of Rupees One Million Two Hundred and Eighty-three
Thousand Three Hundred  and Twenty (Rs. 1,283,320) at a rate
of interest revised every 01st January, 01st April, 01st July and
01st October each year which will be Seven Decimal Five per
centum (7.5%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime
lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest higher
0.5% per annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the
time of sale together with the costs of advertising and selling the
said Motor Vehicles and all monies expended and costs and
charges incurred by the DFCC Bank in accordance with the
covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond in terms of Section 13
of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND NO. 2

Distinctive Description Chassis Engine Place where
Number Make, Model, Number Number kept

Horsepower
etc.

325-1423 Lanka Ashok LALG LUE- No. 388/36
Leyland, 01113 150393 Harischandra
Comet, Mawatha,
Motor Lorry Stage I,

Anurdhapura
or any other
place or places
where the
said vehicle
may be kept.

68-1150 Lanka Ashok LALG LVX- No. 388/36,
Leyland 03509 197449 Harischandra,
Comet, Mawatha,
Super Stage I,
Motor Lorry Anuradhapura

or any other
place or places
where the
said vehicle
may be kept.

Together with all accessories and tools appertaining thereto.

A. N. FONSEKA,
General Manager.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-553/1
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DFCC  BANK

Notice Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank
(Formerly known as Development Finance Corporation of

Ceylon) under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Fibrelite (Private) Limited a Company duly
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
under the companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 and having its registered
office at Matara (hereinafter called and referred to as ‘the
Company’ and Vidana Pathirana Hiran Prasanna Abeysinghe of
Matara (hereinafter called and referred to as ‘the Mortgagor’)
have made default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 300
dated 10th November, 2003 attested by D. R. Tiskumara Notary
Public in favour of the DFCC Bank formerly known as
Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon and whereas there
is as at 31st December, 2008 due and owing from the said Fibrelite
(Private) Limited and the said Vidana Pathirana Hiran Prasanna
Abeysinghe to the DFCC Bank on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
No. 300 a sum of Rupees Two Million Eighty Three Thousand
and Twenty-two and cents Sixty-nine (Rs. 2,083,022.69) together
with interest thereon from 01st January, 2009 to the date of sale
on a sum of Rupees One Million Eight Hundred and Fifty-three
Thousand Six Hundred and Thirteen (Rs. 1,853,613) at an
interest rate revised every 06 months each year at Nine per
centum (9%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime
Deposit Rate (AWDR) rounded upwards to the nearest higher
0.5% per centum per annum whereas the Board of Directors of
the DFCC Bank under the powers vested in them by the recovery
of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of  1990 and
the Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon Act, No. 35 of
1955 as subsequently amended, do hereby resolve that the land
and premises mortgaged to the DFCC Bank by the aforesaid
Mortgage Bond No. 300 be sold by Public Auction by
M/s Schokman & Samerawickrema, Licensed Auctioneer of
Colombo for the recovery of the sum of Rupees Two Million
Eighty-three Thousand and Twenty-two and cents Sixty-nine
(Rs. 2,083,022.69) together with interest thereon from 01st
January, 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees One Million
Eight Hundred and Fifty-three Thousand Six Hundred and
Thirteen (Rs. 1,853,613) at an interest rate revised every 06
months each year at Nine per centum (9%) per annum above the
Average Weighted Prime Deposit Rate (AWDR) rounded upwards
to the nearest higher 0.5% per centum per annum or any portion
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with the costs
of advertising and selling the said land and premises and all monies
expended and costs and charges incurred by the DFCC Bank in
accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 300

All that the entirety of the soil together with all the plantations
and buildings standing thereon and all the buildings that will be
constructed in the future of the defined Lot G of the land called
Medagoda alias Karanketiyemulana bearing Assessment No. 1/1,
Anagarika Dharmapala Mawatha, Matara situated at Gabada Veediya
within the Urban Council Limits and Four Gravets of Matara in the
District of Matara Southern Province and which said Lot G is
bounded on the North by Lot J (Road) of the same land on the East
by Lot F of the same land on the Souty by Nilwala Ganga on the West
by Lot H of the same Land and containing in extent One Rood and
Nine Decimal Five Perches (0A, 1R, 9.5P) as per Plan No. 728 dated
18.04.1951 made by R. D. Perera, L. S. filed and record in D. C.
Matara Partition Action No. 20644 and registered at the Matara Land
Registry.

A. N. FONSEKA,
General Manager.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-553/2

SAMPATH   BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. : 0065 1000 0720.

AT a meeting held on 29th September 2008 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Wanasinghe Arachchige Don Terrance Alexis
Wanasinghe of No. 50, Wijaya Road, Thunwana Kurana, Negombo,
Thiththalapitige Joseph Peiris and Thiththalapitige Anton Eric
Priyaraj both of No. 09, Udugampola Road, Kotugoda in the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka being the partners of
the business carried on at No. 2A, Kanaththa Road, Minuwangoda
under the name, style and firm of Peiris Printers in the said
Republic as the obligors and the said Wanasinghe Arachchige Don
Terrance Alexis Wanasinghe of No. 50, Wijaya Road, Thunwana
Kurana, Negombo afoesaid as the mortgagor have made default
in the repayment of the credit facilities granted against the
security of the property and premises morefully described in the
Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage
Bond No. 99  dated 29th March, 2006 attested by I. I. R.
Weragoda  of Gampaha Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank
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PLC holding company No. PQ 144  and there is now due and
owing to Sampath Bank PLC as at 10th June, 2008 a sum of
Rupees Two Million Five Hundred and Forty-six Thousand
Nine Hundred and Ninety-eight and Cents Sixty-nine only
(Rs. 2,546,998.69) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total
amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the
recovery of loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC
aforesaid as security for the said credit facilities  by the said Bond
bearing No. 99 to be sold in public auction by Schokman and
Samarawickreme, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two Million Five Hundred
and Forty-six Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-eight and
cents Sixty-nine only (Rs. 2,546,998.69) together with further
interest on a sum of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred and Fifty-
five Thousand Only (Rs. 1,955,000) at the rate of nine per centum
(9%) per annum and further interst on a further sum of Rupees
Five Hundred Thousand only  (Rs. 500,000) at the rate of
Seventeen per centum (17%) per annum from 11th June, 2008 to
date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond
bearing No. 99 together with costs of advertising and other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A1
depicted in Plan No. 2286 dated 27th June, 2003 made by M. D. N.
T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kongahawatta”
together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon and together with all rights, ways, privileges,
easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging bearing
Assessment No. 50, Wijaya Road, situated at 3rd Division,  Kurana
within the Municipal Council Limits of Negombo in the District of
Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot A1 is bounded on
the North by Wijaya Road, on the East by Lot B of same land of
K. L. Fernando, on the South by Lots A3 and A2 and on the West
by Lot A4 and containing in extent Twenty-seven decimal Two Five
Perches (0A., 0R., 27.25P.) according to the said Plan No. 2286
aforesaid and registered in Volume/Folio A 244/271 at the Land
Registry of Negombo.

Together with the right of way over and along :

Lot A3 in Plan No. 2286 dated 27th June, 2003 made by
M. D. N. T. Perera, Licensed Surveyor and registered in A 244/272
at the Land Registry of Negombo.

By Order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/15

SAMPATH     BANK    PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. 0030 5001 5849.

AT a meeting held on 27th December, 2007 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Liyana Arachchige Chrishan M. Priyadharshana
alias Liyana Arachchige Chrishan M. Priyadharshana Fernando
of No. 472/C, Thomas Fernando Mawatha, Wennappuwa  in the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the obligor has
made default in the repayment of the credit facility granted against
the security of the property and premises morefully described
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the
Mortgage Bond No. 962  dated 18th October, 2006 attested by
A. J. Bandara  of Kurunegala Notary Public in favour of Sampath
Bank Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank
Limited as at 18th October, 2007 a sum of Rupees Seven Hundred
and Eighty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-eight and
Cents Seventy only (Rs. 789,248.70) of lawful money of Sri
Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and
the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the
powers vested by the recovery of loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security for the
said credit facilities  by the said Bond bearing No. 962 to be sold
in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Seven Hundred
and Eighty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Forty-eight and
Cents Seventy only (Rs. 789,248.70) together with further
interest on a sum of Rupees Seven Hundred and Fifty Thousand
Six Hundred only (Rs. 750,600) at the rate of eighteen per centum
(18%) per annum from 19th October, 2007   to date of satisfaction
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 962 together
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less payments
(if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 5478 dated 09th day of June, 2004 made by
W. Luxman H. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Puswelkanda and Ambagahawatta alias Registrawatta” together
with the soil, tree, plantations, building and everything else standing
thereon with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitude and
appurtenance thereon situated at Thambagalla Village in Pitigal
Korale North of Munneshwaram Pattu in the District of Puttalam
North Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the
North by Lot 1 in Plan No. 381 made by A. G. S. B. Parakrama,
Licensed Surveyor on the East by Teak Watte (State Land), on the
South by a remaining portion of Lot 2 in Plan No. 381 aforesaid and
on the West by road and containing in extent five Acres
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(5A., 0R., 0P.) and registered in Volume/Folio C 185/198 at the Land
Registry, Chilaw

By Order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/13

SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No : 1046 5006 4224.

AT a meeting held on 27th December, 2007 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Jayadewage Chanaka Shrinath Dayarathne of
No. 43,  Uva Benhead Road, Welimada in the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka as the obligor has made default in the
repayment of the credit facility granted against the security of the
property  and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond
No. 13045 dated 18th February, 2005 attested by M.C.J. Peeris
of Bandarawela Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank
Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited
as at 21st September, 2007 a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and
Seven Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety Seven and Cents
Forty Only (Rs.307,397.40) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being
the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the powers vested by
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath
Bank Limited as Security for the said credit facility by the said
Bond bearing No. 13045 to be sold in public auction by I. W.
Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the
said sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Seven Thousand Three
Hundred and Ninety Seven and Cents Forty only (Rs.307,397.40)
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Two Hundred
and Eighty-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-five and cents
Seventy-four only (Rs. 289,655.74) at the rate of Fifteen per
centum (15%) per annum from 22nd September, 2007 to date of
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing
No. 13045 together with costs of advertising and other charges
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that defined and divided allotment of land called and known
as “Dimulwatta” situated at Agampodigama Village in Udukinda
Udapalatha  Korale in Badulla District of Uva Province and which
said Land is depicted as Lot 1 in Plan No. 1300 dated 11th October,

2004 made by Wimal Rajarathne, Licensed Surveyor and is bounded
according to the said Plan on the North by Foot path, on the East by
the land belonging to A.J. Hanifa, on the South by Road and on the
West by Foot path and the land belonging to K.D. Sopinona and
containing in extent within these boundaries Nine decimal Three
perches (0A., 0R., 9.3P.) together with the building and everything
else standing thereon with all rights, ways, privileges, easements,
servitudes and appurtenance thereon and registered in Volume/Folio
C 593/97 at the land Registry Badulla.

By Order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/11

PEOPLE’S    BANK—KESBEWA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 26.09.2008.

Whereas Mr. Patabendi Wasam Galappatti Baduge Ravindra
Ajith Aruna Kumara De Silva has made default in payment due
on the Mortgage Bond No. 2494 dated 31.05.2006 and attested
by Mrs. D. C. Induruwa, Notary Public of Colombo and
Mortgaged Bond No. 2962 dated 26.06.2007 and attested by
Mrs. P. Liyanage Notary Public of Colombo, in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s
Bank a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Thirty-eight Thousand
Nine Hundred and Nine and cents Thirty Three (Rs. 338,909.33)
and Rupees Two Hundred Thousand (Rs. 200,000) on the said
Bonds. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961
as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Bond Nos. 2494 and 2962 be sold by Public Auction by
Mrs. Samanmalee Ramanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo
for recovery of the said sums of Rupees Three Hundred and
Thirty Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Nine and cents Thirty
Three (Rs. 338,909.33) together with interest thereon at Twenty
point five percent (20.5%) per annum from 04.04.2008 and
Rupees Two Hundred Thousand (Rs. 200,000) together with
interest thereon at Twenty Three percent (23%) per annum from
30.07.2008 to date of sale together with money recoverable under
Section ‘29D’ of the said People’s Bank Act and costs less any
payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 5688 dated 27th May, 2001 made by P. D. G.
Weerasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Pidawiliwatta,
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together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon situated at Wetara within the Pradeshiya Sabha
Limits of Homagama(Wetara Sub Office) in Udugaha Pattu of Salpiti
Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said
Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Lots 1 and 3, on the East by Lot
B claimed by Munasinghe Jayawardana and Part of same land of
Petikirige Don Wimalasena, on the South by Part of same land of
Petikirige Don Wimalasena and on the West by Boraluketiya claimed
by Jayasinhage Dona Ranso Hamy and containing in extent Ten
Perches (0A.,0R.,10.0P.) or (0.0253Hectares) according to the said
Plan No. 5688.

Together with the right of way over and along :
Lot 3(Reservation for road) depicted in the said Plan No. 5688

Which said Lot 2 is a portion from and out of the land described
below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A3
depicted in Plan No. 3000 dated 18th January, 1995 made by P. D.
G.  Weerasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Pidawiliwatta,
together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon situated at Wetara aforesaid and which said Lot A3
is bounded on the North by Lots A1 and A2, on the East by Lot B
claimed by Munasinghe Jayawardana and Part of same land of
Petikirige Don Wimalasena, on the South by Part of same land of
Petikirige Don Wimalasena and on the West by Boraluketiya claimed
by Jayasinghege Dona Ranso Hamy and containing in extent Sixteen
Perches (0A., 0R., 16.0P.) or (0.0405 Hectares) according to the said
Plan No. 3000.

Which said Lot A3 is a Sub-division of the land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 2331 dated 15th June, 1980 made by
T. A. Burah, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Pidawiliwatta
situated at Wetara aforesaid and which said Lot A is bounded on the
North by State Main Road from Kesbewa to Pokunuwita, on the East
by portion of the same land claimed by Tanaweera Achchige Don
Ruben and Lot B of the same Land claimed by Masinghe Jayawardena,
on the South-East by portion of same land claimed by Patikirige Don
Wimalasena and on the West by Boraluketiya cliamed by Jayasinghe
Don Ranso Hamy and portion of the same Land claimed by
Doluwarawatta Gamage Setan and others and containing in extent
Thirty-six Perches (0A.,0R.,36P.) according to the said Plan
No. 2331.

Registered under N 379/40 at Homagama Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Asst. General Manager,
(Western Zone II).

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office(Colombo Outer),
No. 102, Stanley Thilakaratne Mawatha,
Nugegoda.

06-667

DFCC BANK

Notice of Resolution   passed by the DFCC Bank
(Formerly Known as Development Finance Corporation of

Ceylon) Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Bank.

Whereas  Subasinghage Don  Ranjith  Perera of Nuwara-Eliya
carrying on business as sole Proprietor under the name style and
firm of R. P. Rest has made default in payments due on Primary
Mortgage Bond No. 11537 dated 17th May, 2006 and Secondary
Mortgage Bond No.12422 dated 20th September, 2007 both
attested by I. M. P.  Ananda, Notary Public in favour of the DFCC
Bank formerly knows as Development Finance Corporation of
Ceylon and whereas there is as at 31st January, 2009 due and
owing from the said Subasinghage Don Ranjith Perera to the
DFCC Bank of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 11537 and
12422 a sum of Rupees Twelve Million One Hundred and
Seventeen Thousand and Twenty and cents Eighty-four
(Rs. 12,117,020.84) together with interest thereon from 1st
February, 2009  to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Five Million
One Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty
(Rs. 5,166,660/-) at a rate of interest calculated at Thirteen per
centum (13%) per annum and on a sum of Rupees Five Million
(Rs. 5,000,000/-) calculated at a rate of Ten decimal Five Zero per
centum (10.50%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime
Lending Rate (AWPR) or the average 91 day Treasury Bill Rate
net of withholding tax both rounded off to the nearest higher 0.5%
per annum which will be revised on 01st January, 01st April, 01st
July, and 01st October, of each year and whereas the Board of
Directors of the DFCC Bank under the powers vested in them by
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990 and the Development Finance Corporation of
Ceylon Act, No. 35 of 1955 as subsequently amended, do hereby
resolve that the land and premises mortgaged to the DFCC Bank
by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 11537 and 12422  be sold
by Public Auction by M/s Schokman & Samerawickrema, Licensed
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the sum of Rupees
Twelve Million One Hundred and Seventeen Thousand and
Twenty and  cents Eighty-four (Rs. 12,117,020/84) together
with interest thereon from  01st February, 2009 to the date of sale
on a sum of Rupees Five Million One Hundred and Sixty-six
Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty (Rs. 5,166,660/-) at a rate of
interest calculated at Thirteen per centum (13%) per annum and
on a sum of Rupees Five Million (Rs. 5,000,000/-) calculated at
a rate of Ten decimal Five Zero per centum (10.50%) per annum
above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) or the
average 91 day Treasury Bill rate nett of withholding tax both
rounded off to the nearest higher 0.5% per annum which will be
revised on 01st January, 01st April, 01st July and 01st October
of each year or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time
of sale together with the costs of advertising and  selling the said
land and premises and all monies expended and costs and charges
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incurred by the DFCC Bank in accordance with the covenants of
the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND NOS. 11537 AND 12422

All that divided and defined allotment of land called and known
as Blackpool Patana situated at Blackpool village in Oya Palata
Korale in the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Nuwara Eliya in the
District of Nuwara Eliya, Central Province depicted as Lot 1 in Plan
No. 7263 dated 23rd April 2000 made by R. Kanagarathnam,
Licensed Surveyor and bounded on the North by Lots 8, 1 in Plan
No. 7138 and road, East by road and land claimed by A. S. Sunil
Chandrawansa, South by land claimed by A. S. Sunil Chandrawansa
and on the West by land claimed by A. S. Sunil Chandrawansa and
Lots 4 and 8 in Plan No. 7138 and containing in extent Twenty
Perches (0A, 0R, 20P) together with everything standing thereon and
registered at the Nuwara Eliya Land Registry.

A. N. FONSEKA,
Company Secretary.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-553/4

 COMMERCIAL   BANK  OF  CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Commercial
Bank of Ceylon  PLC (Registration PQ No. 116) under
Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special

Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 30145.

AT a meeting held on 24th March 2009 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and unanimously
as follows :-

Whereas Veluppillai Kulanantharajah and Rathymalar wife of
Kulanantharajah as Obligors have made default in the payment
due on Bond No. 8615 dated 06th October, 2005 attested by
M. Thiyagarajah, Notary Public of Jaffna in favour of Commercial
Bank of Ceylon Limited now known as Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC  and there is now due and owing to the Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 19th November, 2008 a sum of Rupees
Two Million Two Hundred and Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred
and Thirteen and cents Seventy-nine (Rs. 2,215,213.79) on the
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Sepcial Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises morefully described in the
Schedule hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC by the said Bond No. 8615 be sold by public Auction
by Mr. L.B. Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of No. 99,

Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said sum
of Rupees Two million Two Hundred and Fifteen Thousand Two
Hundred and Thirteen and cents Seventy-nine (Rs.2,215,213.79)
with further interest on a sum of Rs. 1,480,581 at 24% per annum
from 20th November, 2008 to date of sale together with costs of
Advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

Land situated at Chulipuram in the Parish of Chankani in the
Division of Valikamam West in the District of Jaffna, Northern
Province Called Valakkamparai in extent 2-3//4Lms. V.C (according
to a recent Survey Plan No. 3155 dated 21st September 2005 made
by T. Mahendran, Licensed Surveyor the said land is found to contain
in extent of 2 Lms. V.C. and 13.50 Kls) with cultivated and
spontaneous plantations is bounded on the East by the property of
Kandiah Thillaiampalam and that of Sinnathamby Thambirajah, on
the North by the property of the heirs of Ampalavy Ramalingam on
the West by the property of Ariakuddy Thavarajah and on the South
by Lane, the whole hereof exculsive of the share of well standing in
this land appurtenant to the western boundary land, share of
Thoorvai and way and water course thereto and registered under
Volume/Folio/E746/46 at the Jaffna Land Registry.

Mrs. R.R. DUNUWILLE,
Company Secretary.

06-582

SAMPATH    BANK    PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

AT a meeting held on 28th September 2007 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Whereas Wickramasundara Wanigasuriya Muhandiram
Ralalage Niranjana Sasanka Bandara Kamburadeniya and
Aathapattu Mudiyanselage Bandara Menike both of Wewelpola,
Uhumeeya in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as
the Obligors and the said Aathapattu Mudiyanselage Bandara
Menike of Wewelpola, Uhumeeya aforesaid as the Mortgagor
have made default in the repayment of the credit facility granted
against the security of the property and premises morefully
described in the schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by
the Mortgage Bond Nos. 9160 dated 29 December, 2000 and
11586 dated 10th May, 2004 both attested by S. B. Wanduragala
of  Kurunegala, Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC
and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank PLC as at
15th  November, 2006 a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and
Thirty Eight Thousand Only  (Rs.338,000) of lawful money of
Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds



908 I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2009'06'26
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 26.06.2009

and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the
powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act No.04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security  for the
siad credit facility  by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 9160 and 11586
to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed
Acutioneers of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees
Three Hundred and Thirty-eight Thousand only (Rs.338,000)
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Two Hundred
and Eighty-one Thousand only (Rs.281,000) at the rate of Sixteen
decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum from 16th November,
2006 to date of sale together with costs of advertising and other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that allotment of land called Galagawahitina Watta of about
Three Lahas Kurakkan sowing extent situated at Wewelpola Village
in Rekopattu  Korale of Dambadeni Hatpattu in the District of
Kurunegala, North Western Province and bounded on the North by:
the land of Ausadahamy on the East by: Endaru Fence of the land of
Ranhamy on the South by: the land of Ranhamy and the Land of
Punchirala Vidane and on the West by: the land of  Appuhamy Ex
Officer together with the buildings, plantations and everything
standing thereon  together with all rights, ways, privileges, easements,
servitudes and appurtenance thereon and registered in Volume/Folio
F 1179/238 at the Land Registry, Kurunegala.

The above land is subsequently surveyed and is depicted as Lot
01 in Plan No. 98/53 dated 27th February, 1998 made by W.M.
Ariyarathna, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Galagawahitina
Watta situated at Wewelpola Village aforesaid and which said Lot 01
is bounded according to the said Plan on the North by the land claimed
by A. M. Gunathilaka and others and the land claimed by Wijerathna
Banda and others on the East by the land claimed by H. M.
Gnanawathie on the South by the V C Road from Ambahera to
Piduruwella on the South-West by land claimed by H. M. Gnanawathie
and on the West by the land claimed by A. M. N. Kumarihamy and
others containing in extent one Acre One Rood and Two Perches
(1A., 1R., 2P) according to the said Survey.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/9

PEOPLE’S    BANK—KIRINDIWELA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section

29D of the People’s Bank act No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act
No. 32of 1986 at their meeting held on 24.04.2009.

Whereas Pinnawala Appuhamilage Namal Wasantha has
made default in payment due on the Bond No. 11733 dated
09.10.2006 attested by S. P.L. Wijesiriwardena, Notary Public
of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due
and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Three Hundred
Thousand and Cents Eight Only (Rs.300,000.08) on the said
Bonds. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act No.29 of 1961
as amended by the Act No.32 of 1986 do hereby  resolve that the
property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
bond No. 11733 be sold by Public Auction by Ranjitha
S. Mahanama, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of
the said sum of Rupees Three Hundred Thousand and cents Eight
only (Rs.300,000.08) on and with further interest on Rupees
Three Hundred Thousand and cents Eight only (Rs.300,000.08)
on at 20.5% per annum from 08.11.2008 to date of sale and costs
of sale and moneys recoverable under Section “29L” of the said
People’s Bank Act less payments (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and allotment of land marked Lot D depicted in
Plan No. 302 dated 23.10.1993 made by S. M. Chandrasiri, Licensed
Surveyor of the land called Bogahawatte situated at Diyawala Village
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Dompe in Gangaboda Pattu
of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and
bounded on the North East by Lot C South East by Ela South West
by Lot E North West by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and  containing in
extent Twenty  Nine decimal Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 29.9P) together
with soil, trees,  plantations, buildings and everything else standing
thereon and registered under D 231/60, at the Land Registry of
Gampaha.

Together with right of way over  the reservation for road depicted
in the said Plan.

By order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No.131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

06-586
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SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990
A/c No.: 0035 5001 5357
AT a meeting held on 29th June 2006 by the Board of Directors of
Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Jayasinghage Lasantha Pradeep Pushpa Kumara and
Lionel Jayasinghe both of No.30, Mulana, Meepawala, Poddala
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors
and said Lionel Jayasinghe of No. 30, Mulana, Meepawala,
Poddala as the Mortgagor have made default in payment due on
the Mortgage Bond No. 66 dated 23 March 2001 Senaka D.
Hewawitharana of Matara, Notary Public in favour of Sampath
Bank Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank
Limited as at 19 January 2006 a sum of Rupees Four Hundred and
Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirteen and Cents Eighty
Eight Only (Rs.411,813.88) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being
the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of
Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the powers vested by
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04
of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath
Bank Limited by the said Bond bearing No. 66 to be sold in public
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Auctioneer of Colombo for the
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Four Hundred and Eleven
Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirteen and cents Eighty-eight
(Rs.411,813.88) together with further interest on a sum of
Rupees Two Hundred and Twenty One Thousand Nine Hundred
and Ninety Two and Cents Four Only (Rs.221,992.04) at the rate
of Seventeen per centum (17%) per annum and a further interest
on a further sum of Rupees One Hundred Thousand Only
(Rs.100,000) at the rate of Eighteen Per centum (18%) per annum
from 20 January 2006 to date of Sale together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No. 42
together with the buildings and every thing else standing thereon of
the land called Mulanahena depicted in P. P. Ga 2234 dated 06 April
1990  authenticated by the Surveyor General, situated at the Village
of Meepawala in Panmagama Grama Niladhari Division in Bope
Poddala Divisional Secretariet Division, Galle District, Southern
Province and which said Lot 42 is bounded on the North by Lot No.
41 of the same land depicted in the said Plan No. 2234 aforesaid on
the East by Lots 43 and 51 of the same land on the South by Lots
51, 52 and 23 (Road Reservation) of the same land and on the West
by Lots 23 (Road Reservation) and Lot 41 of the same land and
containing in extent Nought decimal Naught Five Four Naught
Hectares (0.0540), Twenty One decimal Three Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 21.35P) and Registered in L. D. O. B4/211 at the Land
Registry Galle.

By order of the Board

Company Secretary.

06-568/12

 PEOPLE’S     BANK—PUTTALAM    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank act No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act
No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 27.07.2007

Payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 3715 dated 23.01.2006,
attested by Mrs. Ruwini A. S. Dassanayake, Notary Public of
Marawila, Ahangama Liyanage Don Ranil, had made default and
there is now due and owing to the said Peoples Bank a sum of Rupees
Three Million Three Hundred and Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred
and Four (Rs.3,313,204) and  Rupees Four Hundred Thousand
(Rs.400,000), on the said Mortgage Bond. The Board of  Directors
of the People’s Bank under the powers vested by Section 29D of the
People’s Bank Act No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act No.32 of
1986 do hereby resolve that the property and premises mortgage to
the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond No. 3715 be sold by Public
Auction by Mr. W. P. C. Perera, Licensed Auctioneer of Negombo,
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Three Million Three
Hundred and Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred and Four
(Rs.3,313,204) and Rupees Four Hundred Thousand (Rs.400,000)
and with further interest on Rupees Three Million Three Hundred
and Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred and Four (Rs.3,313,204) and
Rupees Four Hundred Thousand (Rs.400,000), at Twenty One
Decimal Five Per Centum (21.5%) from 25.01.2007 and 01.09.2006
respectively, up to the date of sale, with costs and other charges vide
section 29L of the relevant Peoples Bank Act, Less payments (if any)
since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that allotment of land depicted as lot No. 01 in Plan No. 1914,
prepared by J. A. V. Rajanayagam, Licensed Surveyor, situated in
the Village of Karikkattiya, in the Grama Niladhari Division of 608B
Weerapura, within the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Mundalam,
within the land Registrar’s Division of Puttalam of Puttalam District,
North Western Province is bounded as follows :- North by Pradeshiya
Sabha road, East  by land claimed by Anthony, South : by Pradeshiya
Sabha road, West by Pradeshiya Sabha road and situated within these
boundaries bearing an extent of Two Acres, Two Roods. Eight
Perches (02A., 02R., 08 Perches) alias One Decimal Naught Three
One Nine Hectare (1.0319 Hect.) of land, and together with soil,
trees, plantation, buildings, and everything else standing thereon.

The Property is registered at the Puttalam Land Registry under
No. LDO 142/258.

By order of the Board of Directors.

Regional Manager,
Chilaw.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office - Chilaw,
No. 79, Marawila Road,
Nattandiya.

06-585
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SAMPATH     BANK    PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank  Ltd)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990.

A/c No.: 0052 5000 0377

AT a meeting held on 30th August, 2007 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Whereas Ranasinghe Arachchige Don Lalith of No.44,
Wewdeniya, Kottawa, Pannipitiya in the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the
repayment of the credit facilities granted against the security of
the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No.
2648 dated 29 January 2006 attested by W. G. K. Wijetunge of
Colombo Notary Public in favour of sampath Bank Limited and
there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited as at 04 May
2007 a sum of Rupees Two Million and Eighty Thousand Six
Hundred and Twenty-six and cents  Seventy-one only
(Rs.2,080,626.71) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total
amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank Limited under the powers vested by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank
Limited as security for the said credit facilities by the said Bond
bearing No. 2648 and to be sold in public auction by I. W.
Jayasooriya Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of
the said sum of Rupees Two Million and Eighty Thousand Six
Hundred and Twenty-six and cents Seventy-one only
(Rs.2,080,626.71) together with further interest on a sum of
Rupees One Million Nine Hundred and Eleven Thousand Four
Hundred and Forty-seven and cents Ninety-three only
(Rs. 1,911,447.93) at the rate of Fifteen Decimal Five per centum
(15.5%) per annum from 05th May, 2007 to date of sale together
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less payments
(if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 2172 dated 17 March 2005 made by S. G.
Ranasinghe Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Galabodawatta”
together with the soil trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing thereon and all rights, ways, privileges, easements,
servitudes and appurtenance thereto belonging situated at Kottawa
within the  Urban Council Limits of  Maharagama in Palle Pattu of
Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province and
which said  Lot A is bounded on the North by Road, on the East by
Lot C of same land, on the South by Lots D and B of  the same land
and on the West by Earth Drain and containing in extent Thirty-five
decimal FourNought Perches (0A., 0R., 35.40P) according to the said
Plan No.2172 and registered in Volume/Folio G 1621/89 at the Land
Registry Homagama.

Together with the right of way in over and along Lot 6 depicted
in Plan No. 3611 dated 7 October 1992 made by D. Kapugeekiyana
Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board

Company secretary.

06-568/3

PEOPLE’S    BANK—OLCOTT    MAWATHA
BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No.32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No.32of 1986 at their meeting held on 24.10.2008.

Whereas Chamara Vinivida Corner Sole Proprietor Addara
Pathirana Ge Pathirana has made default in payment due on
Mortgage Bond No. 3058 dated 03.05.2007 attested by Mrs. A.
D. R. Mendis Notary Public of Colombo and in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due owing, to the People’s Bank
a sum of Rupees Seven hundred thousand only (Rs.700,000) on
the siad Bond No. 3058. The Board of Directors of the People’s
Bank under the powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act,
No.29 of 1961 as amended by Act, No.32 of 1986 do hereby
resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to the said
Bank by the said Mortgage Bond No. 3058 be sold by Public
Auction by E. S. Ramanayake,  Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo
for recovery of the sum of Rupees Seven Hundred Thousand only
(Rs.700,000) with further interest on Rupees Seven Hundred
thousand only (Rs.700,000) at the rate of eighteen point two five
percent (18.25%) per annum from 06.02.2005 to date of sale with
costs and other charges of sale less payment (if any) since
received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as ‘Lot 4’
depicted in Plan No. 2575 dated 14th day of September 1975 made
by P. Kapugeekiyana, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called and
known as “Kongahawatta” Bearing Assessment No. 178/20A,
Madinnagoda within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kotikawatte-
Mulleriyawa in Ambatalen Pahala aluthkuru Korale South in the
District of Colombo, Western Provicne and which said “Lot4” is
bounded on the North by: Lot 3, on the East by: Property of Williom
Singho, on the South by: Lot 5, and on the West by: Lot 6 (Road
Reservation) and containing in extent Ten Decimal, Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 10.5P) together with buildings, plantations and everything
else standing thereon, and registered under G 1506/54 at the Land
Registry of Homagama.
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Together with right of way over and along :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot 6”
(Road Reservation 6 feet wide) depicted in Plan No.2575 aforesaid
of the land called and known as “Kongahawatta” bearing Assessment
No.178/20A, Madinnagoda situated at Madinnagoda Road as
aforesaid and which said “Lot 6” is bounded on the North by Lot Nos.
1 and 3, on the East by Lot 4, on the South by Lot Nos. 2 and 5 and
on the West by 1 and 2 containing in extent Three Perches
(0A., 0R., 3P) together with buildings, plantations and everything
else standing thereon,and Registered under G 1506/55 at the Land
Registry of Homagama.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Regional Manager,
(Colombo North).

Zonal Head Office, (Western Zone - 01),
No. 11, Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

06-592

SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Ltd)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.04 of 1990

W. D. L. Shantha and G. D. P. Nandani alias W. D. P.Nandani
A/C No. : 1019  5018  9909.

AT a meeting held on 29th January, 2009, by the  Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously :

Whereas Withanage Don Lal Shantha and Geekiyanage Dona
Padma Nandani alias Withanage Dona Padma Nandani both of
No. 341/113/1, Mihindupura, Mahayayawatte, Palanwatte,
Siddamulla, Piliyandala also of 341/1/1/3, Mihindupura,
Mahayayawatte, Palanwatte, Pannipitiya in the Democratic
socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the said
Withanage Don Lal Shantha of No. 341/113/1, Mihindupura,
Mahayayawatte, Palanwatte, Siddamulla, Piliyandala aforesaid
as the Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the credit
facility granted against the security of the Property and premises
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged and
hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 3505 dated 28 February
2007 attested by W. G. K. Wijetunge of Colombo Notary Public
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company : No. PQ 144
and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid
as at 02 December 2008 a sum of Rupees Four Hundred and
Seventy Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty Three and
Cents Three only (Rs.478,933.03) of lawful money of Sri Lanka
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board
of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC under the powers vested by

the recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04
of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath
Bank PLC aforesaid as security  for the said credit facility by the
said Bond bearing No. 3505 to be sold in Public auction by P. K.
E. Senapathie Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery
of the said sum of Rupees Four Hundred and Seventy Eight
Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty Three and Cents Thee Only
(Rs.478,933.03) together with further interest on a sum of
Rupees Four Hundred and Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and
Fifty Seven and Cents Forty Four Only (Rs.409,757.44) at the
rate of Twenty per centum (20%) per annum from 03 December
2008 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said
Bond bearing No. 3505 together with costs of advertising and
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B in Plan
No. 3166 dated 11 February  2006 made by D. Anura Dharmasiri
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Mahayaya, Mahayayehenbima,
Kahatagahalanda alias Delgahalanda, Dodaporagahakanatta and
Hedwakagahawatta now known as Mahayaya Estate” together with
soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing
thereon and together with all rights, ways, privileges, easements,
servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging situated at Pelenwatta
and Gorakapitiya (as per Deed Gorakapitiya) Village within the
Urban Council Limits of Kesbewa in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in
the District of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot B is
bounded on the North by: Lot 23 in Plan No. 484 (20 feet wide Road),
on the East by: Lot C, on the South by: Lot A and on the West by:
Lot A and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P) according
to the said Plan No. 3166 and registered in Volume/Folio
M 2929/35 at the Land Registry Mount Lavinia.

By Order of the Board

Company Secretary.

06-568/10

DFCC   BANK

Notice Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank  (Formerly
Known as Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon)

Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas  Vidana Pathirana Hiran Prasanna Abeysinghe and
Chinthika Priyadarshani Kumari Abeysinghe carrying on business
in Partnership at Matara under the name style and firm of Fibretec
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have made default in payments due on Further Mortgage Bond
No. 643 dated 01st October, 2007 attested by W. A. D. V.
Wanasinghe, Notary Public in favour of the DFCC Bank formerly
known as Development Finance Corporation of Ceylon and
whereas there is as at 31st December, 2008 due and owing from
the said Vidana Pathirana Hiran Prasanna Abeysinghe and
Chinthika Priyadarshani Kumari Abeysinghe to the DFCC Bank
on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 643 a sum of Rupees Four
Million Three Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand Eight Hundred
and Ninety-one and cents Sixty-six (Rs. 4,366,891.66) together
with interest thereon from 1st January, 2009 to the date of sale
on a sum of Rupees Three Million Seven Hundred and Ninety-
six Thousand Six Hundred and Nine (Rs. 3,796,609) at the rate
higher of the following base rates prevailing on the date of revision
plus a margin of Ten point Five Zero per centum (10.50%) per
annum (a) the Average weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR)
rounded off to the nearest higher 0.5% per annum (b) the average
91 day Treasury Bill rate net of withholding tax rounded off to
the nearest higher 0.5% per annum (the above base rates will be
subject to revision and will be revised on the 1st day of business
in the months of January, April, July and October each year
published on a weekly basis by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka)
and whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank under the
powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 and the Development
Finance Corporation of Ceylon Act, No. 35 of 1955 as
subsequently amended, do hereby resolve that the land and
premises mortgaged to the DFCC Bank by the aforesaid Mortgage
Bond No. 643 be sold by Public Auction by M/s Schokman and
Samerawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the
recovery of the sum of Rupees Four Million Three Hundred and
Sixty-six Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety-one and cents
Sixty-six (Rs. 4,366,891.66) together with interest thereon from
01st January, 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Three
Million Seven Hundred and Ninety-six Thousand Six Hundred
and Nine (Rs. 3,796,609) at the rate of higher of the following base
rates prevailing on the date of revision plus a margin of Ten point
Five Zero per centum (10.50%) per annum (a) the Average
weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded off to the nearest
higher 0.5% per annum (b) the average 91 day Treasury Bill rate
net of withholding tax rounded off to the nearest higher 0.5% per
annum (the above base rates will be subject to revision and will
be revised on the 1st day of business in the months of January,
April, July and October each year published on a weekly basis
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka) and or any portion thereof
remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with the costs of
advertising and selling the said land and premises and all moneys
expended and costs and charges incurred by the DFCC Bank in
accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 643

All that the entirety of the soil together with all the plantations
and buildings standing thereon and all the buildings that will be
constructed in the future of the defined Lot G of the land called

Medagoda alias Karanketiyemulana bearing Assessment No. 1/1,
Anagarika Dharmapala Mawatha, Matara situated at Gabada Veediya
within the Urban Council Limits and Four Gravets of Matara in the
District of Matara Southern Province and which said Lot G is
bounded on the North by Lot J (Road) of the same land, on the East
by Lot F of the same land, on the South by Nilwala Ganga, on the
West by Lot H of the same land and containing in extent One Rood
and Nine decimal Five perches (0A., 1R., 9.5P.) as per Plan No. 728
dated 18.04.1951 made by Mr. R. D. Perera, Licensed Surveyor filed
and record in D. C. Matara Partition Action No. 20644 and registered
at the Matara Land Registry.

A. N. FONSEKA,
General Manager.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-553/3

PEOPLE’S    BANK—CORPORATE   BANKING
DIVISION

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following Resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of  1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.01.2009.

Whereas  Medagamage Aruna Chaminda Fernando Carrying
on business as sole proprietor of Chalana Enterprises made
defualt in payment due on Mortgage Bond No. 876 dated
07th June, 2006 and Mortgage Bond No. 1025 dated 15th
December, 2006, attested by Mrs. Imiyage Dona Himali Lalani
Perera, Notary Public of Colombo by which Madagamage Aruna
Chaminda Fernando as Obligor mortgage the property morefully
described in the schedule hereon and in the said Mortgage bond
No. 876 and 1025 and in favour of the People’s Bank and there
is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Eight
Million Seven Hundred Ninety-three Thousand One Hundred
Eleven (Rs. 8,793,111.00) together with interest on the said
Bond. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
Powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961
as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said
Mortgage Bond No. 875 and 1025 be sold by Public Auction by
Mr. E. S. Samaranayake, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for
recovery of the sum of Rupees Eight Million Seven Hundred
Ninety-three Thousand One Hundred Eleven (Rs. 8,793,111.00)
with further interest on Rupees Eight Million Seven Hundred
Forty-nine Thousand Six Hundred Thirteen (Rs. 8,749,613.00)
at the rate Nineteen (19%) per annum from 30.10.2008 and date
of sale and costs of sale less payments (if any) since received.
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THE FIRST SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 160/97 dated 28.12.1997 made by R. V.
Wijethunga, Licensed Surveyor, of the land  called Delgahawatta
bearing Assessment No. 89/31, Ragama-Horape Road situated at
Horape (Horapethuduwa) within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Wattala (Sub Office Welisara) in Ragama Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale
in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot 1
is bounded on the North by Road, East by Road, South by Land of
Vincent Jayamanne and on the West by Ela and Containing in extent
Thirty-three decimal Naught Four perches (0A., 0R., 33.04) according
to the said Plan No. 160/97 and registered at the Colombo Land
Registry under B 1011/53.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 549 dated 20.09.1975 made by D. Joy de Silva,
Licensed Surveyor, of the land called Kahatagahawatta together with
buildings, plantations and everything standing thereon, bearing
Assessment No. 65, Jayagath Road situated at Navinna within the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Maharagama in Palle Pattu of Salpiti
Korale, Colombo District, Western Province and which said Lot 1
is bounded on the North-east by Jayagath Road, South-east by Lot
6 (reservation for road-12 feet wide), South-west by Lot 2 and on
the North-west by Land of R. A. Perera and containing in extent
Eighteen perches (0A., 0R., 18P.) according to the said Plan No. 549
and registered at the Mount Lavinia Land Registry under M 2274/
266.

Together with the right of way in over and along the road
reservation described as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 6
(reservation for road) depicted in Plan No. 549 aforesaid of the land
called Kahatagahawatta situated at Navinna aforesaid and which said
Lot 6 is bounded on the North-east by Jayagath Road, South-east
by Land of A. W. Lewis Perera, South-west by Lot 5 and on the
North-west by Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4 and containing in extent Twelve
perches (0A., 0R., 12P.) according to the said Plan No. 549 and
registered at the Mount Lavinia Land Registry under M 2953/220.

By order of the Board of Directors of People’s Bank,

Chief  Manager,
Corporate Credit-02.

People’s Bank,
Corporate Banking Division,
No. 35, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.

06-593

PEOPLE’S    BANK—OLCOTT    MAWATHA
BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of  Directors of the People’s Bank, under
Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act No.29 of 1961 as amended
by the Act No.32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 24.10.2008.

Whereas, Chamara Vinivida Corner Sole Proprietor Addara
Pathirana Ge Pathirana has made default in payment due on
Mortgage Bond No. 3059 dated 03.05.2007 attested by
Mrs. A. D. R. Mendis Notary Public of Colombo and  in favour
of the People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the
People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Million Six Hundred
Thousand only (Rs.1,600,000) on the said Bond No. 3059. The
Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the powers vested
in them by the People’s Bank Act No.29 of 1961 as amended by
Act, No.32 of  1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Mortgage Bond
No.3059 be sold by Public Auction by E. S. Ramanayaka,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the sum of
Rupees One Million Six hundred thousand only with further
interest on Rupees One Million six hundred thousand only at the
rate of sixteen point seven five percent(16.75%) per annum from
03.10.2007 to date of sale with costs and other charges of sale less
payment (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that undivided Western portion in extent Twenty Perches
(0A., 0R., 20P) from and out of Lot 90 more correctly Lot 9 depicted
in Plan No. 738 of 21.07.1980 made by C. De S. Gunathilake,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called and known as “Kongahawatta
alias Ambagahawatta” situated At Battaramulla within the limits of
Battaramulla unit of Kaduwela Pradeshiya Sabha in Palle Pattu of
Hewagam Korale in the district of Colombo, Western Province and
which said “Lot 90 more correctly Lot 9” is bounded on the  North
by Lot 7, on the East by land of Kolonne, on the South by land of
Sumithraarachchige Herbert, and on the West by Lot 6 and containing
in extent Thirty Four decimal seven four Perches (0A., 0R., 34.74P)
together with buildings, plantations and everything else standing
thereon, and registered under G 1506/56 at the land Registry
Homagama.

Which said undivided portion has now been resurveyed according
to Plan No.1009 as described below :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked as “Lot 1”
depicted in Plan No. 1009 dated 29th day of February, 1996 made
by S. R. A. Jayasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called and
known as “Kongahawatta alias Ambagahawatta, situated at
Battaramulla as aforesaid and which said “Lot1” is bounded on the
North by Private Road 3-Meters wide, on the East by Premises
bearing, Assessment No.89, Kotte Road, Godaparagahaowita of
Samarakoon, on the South by Godaparagahaowita of Samarakoon
and on the West by Road leading to houses and containing in extent
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Nineteen Decimal One Three Perches (0A., 0R., 19.13P) together
will buildings, plantations and everything esle standing thereon.

Together with the road reservation (10ft.wide) over the Lot A and
Lot B in Plan No. 738C.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
(Colombo North)

Zonal Head Office - (Western Zone - 01),
No.11, Duke Street,
Colombo 01.

06-591

COMMERCIAL     BANK    OF    CEYLON    PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Reg. No. PQ 116)
under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Account No. : 1760015141.
Loan Account No. : 338107.

AT a meeting held on 23rd January, 2009 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and unanimously
as follows :-

“Whereas Amarasinghe Arachchige Geetha Manel carrying
on business under the name style and firm of Jayaramya Medical
Stores as the Obligor has made default in the payment on Bond
No. 2458 dated 26th December, 2006 attested by K. Kannangara,
Notary Public of Horana in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon
Limited now known as Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and
there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon
PLC as at 30th November 2008 a sum of Rupees Three Million
Five hundred and Fifty-two Thousand Eight Hundred and Three
and cents Seventy-two (Rs. 3,552,803.72) on the said Bond and
the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under
the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by
the said Bond No. 2458 be sold by Public auction by Mr. L. B.
Senanayake, Licensed Auctioneer of No. 99, Hulftsdorp Street,
Colombo 12 for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees three
Million Five Hundred and Fifty-two Thousand Eight Hundred
and Three and cents Seventy-two (Rs. 3,552,803.72) with
further interest on a sum of (Rs. 927,197.69) at 21% per annum
and on a sum of Rs. 2,166,771.40 at 28% per annum from
01st December, 2008 to date of sale together with costs of
Advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.”

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No. 1
its soil, plantation building and everything else standing thereon
depicted in Plan No. 917 dated 17th July 2004 made by B. U. S.
Fernando, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called
Kendalanda situated at Homagama within the Homagama Pradeshiya
Sabha Limits in the Palle Pattu of the Hewagam Korale in the District
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot No. 1 is bounded
on the North by High Level Road, on the East by High Level Road
and Kendalanda Presently bearing Assessment No. 191, on the South
by High Level road and Kendalanda Presently bearing Assessment
No. 170/1 and on the West by Road and within these boundaries
containing in extent Nine Decimal Six Nine Perches (0A, 0R, 9.69P).

The aforesaid Lot No. 1 is a divided and defined allotment of land
from and out of the larger land called Kendalanda, which is morefully
described as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot
No. 9 its soil plantation building and everything else standing thereon
depicted in Plan No. 1806 dated 20th December 1989 made by
G. L. B. Nanayakkare, Licensed Surveyor situated at Homagama
within the Homagama Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in the Palle Pattu of
the Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Westen Province and
which said Lot No. 9 is bounded on the North by High Level Road
and Road Reservation, on the East by Lot No. 8 of the same land,
on the South by Lot No. 10 of the same land and on the West by Lot
12 of the same land (Road reservation ) and within these boundaries
containing in extent Ten Decimal Five Six Perches (0A, 0R, 10.56P)
and registered in G. 1487/262 at the Homagama Land Registry.

And also the right to use in over along as a Common right of way
marked  Lot No. 12 depicted in the aforesaid Plan No. 1806.

Mrs. R. R. DUNUWILLE,
Company Secretary.

06-583

DFCC     VARDHANA     BANK

Notice of Resolution passed  by the DFCC Vardhana Bank
Limited under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that following
resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas  Liyanaarachchige Don Anton Samantha Appuhamy
and Madawanage Meerian Sudeera Chathurani Fernando carrying
on business in Partnership at Negombo under the name style and
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firm of Aquarium Marine Fishes have made default in payments
due on Mortgage Bond No. 4343 dated 25th September, 2007,
4344 dated 25th September, 2007, 3937 dated 20th February,
2007 and 4938 dated 11th September, 2008 all attested by
Chandanie Dayaratne, Notary Public of Negombo and all in
favour of the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited and whereas there
is as at 28th February, 2009 due and owing from the said
Liyanaarachchige Don Anton Samantha Appuhamy and
Madawanage Meerian Sudeera Chathurani Fernando to the
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
Nos. 4343, 4344, 3937 and 4938 a sum of Rupees Sixteen Million
Five Hundred and Twenty-seven Thousand Two Hundred and
Seventy-six and cents Sixty-five (Rs. 16,527,276.65) together
with interest thereon from 1st March, 2009 to the date of sale on
a sum of Rupees Fifteen Million (Rs. 15,000,000) at the rate of
Twenty-eight point One Four per centum (28.14%) per annum
and whereas the Board of Directors of DFCC Vardhana Bank
Limited under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do
hereby resolve that the land premises and assets described below
mortgaged to the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited by the aforesaid
Mortgage Bond Nos. 4343, 4344, 3937 and 4938 be sold by
Public Auction by M/s Schokman and Samarawickreme, Licensed
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the sum of Rupees
Sixteen Million Five Hundred and Twenty-seven Thousand Two
Hundred and Seventy-six and cents Sixty-five (Rs. 16,527,276.65)
together with interest thereon from 01st March, 2009 to the date
of sale on a sum of Rupees Fifteen Million (Rs. 15,000,000) at
the rate of Twenty-eight point One four per centum (28.14%) per
annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale
together with the costs of advertising and selling the said land
premises and assets and all moneys expended and costs and
charges incurred by the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited in
accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE ASSETS MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 4343 AND 4344

1. Boat Reg. No. IMUL-A-0489NVO
Engine No. Yanmar-6CH-HP190-6786
Engine Power 190 Horse Power

2. Boat Reg. No. IMUL-A-0527NVO
Engine No. EBGKM 703228
Engine Power 160 Horse Power

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 3937 AND 4938

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1B
depicted in Plan No. 6742/1995 dated 17.10.1995 made by H. L.
Croos Dabarerea, Licensed Surveyor and re-surveyed by the said
Licensed Surveyor on 16.01.2007 of the land called Thaladuwa
Estate now bearing Assessment No. 197/21st Division Kurana
within the Municipal Council Limits of Negombo in the Registration
Division of Negombo in the District of Gampaha Western Province
and which said Lot 01B is bounded on the North by land of

M. Margaret Hamy, K. D. P. Fernando and E. M. D. P. Fernando,
East by Lot 02, South by land of Sharmalee Peiris, West by Lots 1C
and 1A and containing in extent Twelve point Two perches
(0A., 0R., 12.2P.) together with everything standing thereon and
registered at the Land Registry, Negombo.

Together with the right of way as described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 01C
(Reservation for 12 feet wide road) depicted in Plan No. 6742/1995
dated 17.10.1995 and re-surveyed on 16.01.2007 made by H. L.
Croos Dabarera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Thaladuwa
Estate aforesaid and bounded on the North by Lot 1A, East by Lot
1B, South by land of Sharmalee Peiris, West by Road and containing
in extent Three Point Three perches (0A., 0R., 3.3P.) and registered
at the Land Registry, Negombo.

L. G. PERERA,
Managing Director/

Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited,
No. 73, W. A. D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

06-564/4

SAMPATH    BANK    PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

Chandra Ice Cream Company - A/C No. 0018 1000 5501.

AT a meeting held on 31st January, 2008 by the Board of Directors
of  Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Whereas Nandana Gamini Chandraratne and Suneetha
Chandraratne both of  No. 15/1A, 7th Lane, Broadway Road,
Kawdana, Dehiwala in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka being the Partners of the business carried on at No. 15/1A,
7th Lane, Broadway Road, Kawdana, Dehiwala under the name,
style and firm of “Chandra Ice Cream Company” in the said
Republic as the Obligors have made default in the repayment of
the credit facilities granted against the security of the property
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 1343 and 1345
both dated 17th February, 2004 both attested by W. G. K.
Wijetunge of Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank
Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited
as at 31st October, 2007 a sum of Rupees Two Million One
Hundred and Sixty-one Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-one
only (Rs. 2,161,591/-) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the
total amount outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of
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Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the powers vested by
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath
Bank Limited as security for the said credit facilities by the said
Bonds bearing Nos. 1343 and 1345 to be sold in Public Auction
by Schokman and Samarawickreme, Licensed Auctioneers of
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two Million
One Hundred and Sixty-one Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety
One only (Rs. 2,161,591) together with further interest on a sum
of Rupees Two Million Twenty-eight Thousand Forty-seven
and cents One only (Rs. 2,028,047.01) at the rate of Seventeen
per centum (17%) per annum from 01st November, 2007 to date
of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing
Nos. 1343 and 1345 together with costs of advertising and other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot B1
depicted in Plan No. 861A dated 16th January, 1982 made by
S. H. P. Kottegoda, Licensed Surveyor of the land called
“Ambagahakumburawatta, Dawatagahawatta, Bakmeegahakumbura,
Midellakumbura and Wattekumbura” together with the soil, trees,
plantations and everything else standing thereon with all rights,
ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto
belonging bearing Assessment No. 15/1A, 7th Lane, Broadway Road
situated at Dehiwala within the Municipal Council Limits of
Dehiwala Mount Lavinia in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the
District of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot B1 is
bounded on the North - East by Lot 4B2 in Plan No. 262, on the South
- East by 7th Lane, on the South-West by Lot B2 and on the North
- West by Lot A1 and containing in extent Nineteen decimal Nine
Perches (0A., 0R., 19.9P.) according to the said Plan No. 861A and
registered in Volume/Folio M 2745/92 at the Land Registry Mount
Lavinia.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/8

SAMPATH    BANK   PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/C No. : 1024 5322 2227.

AT a meeting held on 27th December, 2007 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously.

Whereas Meegamuge Nandathilake and Malani Senanayake
both of  No. 135, Negombo Road, Demanhandiya in the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the said
Meegamuge Nandathilaka of No. 135, Negombo Road,
Demanhandiya aforesaid as the Mortgagor have made default in
the repayment of the credit facility granted against the security
of the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond
No. 1976 dated 26th March, 2007 attested by R. Alahendra of
Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank Limited and
there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank Limited as at 10
October, 2007 a sum of Rupees Three Million Two Hundred and
Seventy-three Thousand Three Hundred and Eleven and Cents
Seventy-seven only (Rs. 3,273,311.77) of lawful money of Sri
Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and
the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under the
powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security for the
said credit faculity by the said Bond bearing No. 1976 to be sold
in Public Auction by Schokman Samarawickrame, Licensed
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Three Million Two Hundred and Seventy-three Thousand
Three Hundred and Eleven and cents Seventy-seven only
(Rs. 3,273,311.77) together with further interest on a sum of
Rupees Three Million only (Rs. 3,000,000) at the rate of Twenty
decimal Five per centum (20.5%) per annum from 11th October,
2007 to date of satisfaction of the total debt upon the said Bond
bearing No. 1976 together with costs of advertising and other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 19
depicted in Plan No. 4733 dated 03rd December, 2001 made by W.
S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Mudukatuwa
Division of Keenakele Estate” together with soil, trees, plantations,
buildings and everything else standing thereon with all rights, ways,
privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenance thereon situated
at Mudukatuwa Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and
Divisional Secretariat Division of Nattandiya in Meda Palatha Pattu
of Naththandiya Division in Pitigal Korale South in the District of
Puttalam North Western Province and which said Lot 19 is bounded
on the North  by Lot 20, on the East by Lot 3, on the South by Lot
18 and on the West by Lots 24 and 23 and containing in extent Ten
Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) according to the said Plan No. 4733 and
registered in Volume/Folio J 80/102 at the Land Registry Marawila.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 20
depicted in Plan No. 4733 dated 03rd December, 2001 made by
W. S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Mudukatuwa
Division of Keenakele Estate” together with soil, trees, plantations,
buildings and everything else standing thereon with all rights, ways,
privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenance thereon situated
at Mudukatuwa Village aforesaid and which said Lot 20 is bounded
on the North  by Lot 21, on the East by Lot 2, on the South by Lot
19 and on the West by Lots 23 and 22 and containing in extent Ten
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Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and registered in Volume/Folio J 80/103 at
the Land Registry Marawila.

Together with the right of way over and along :-

Lot 13 (Reservation for road 12m wide) depicted in the said Plan
No. 4733 and registered in J 79/257 at the Land Registry Marawila.

Together with drains and all other similar rights in over and along
Lots 1-6, 7/1, 7/2 and 8-10 in the said Plan No. 4733.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/4

DFCC   VARDHANA    BANK   LIMITED

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Vardhana Bank
Limited under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Ginthota Arachchige Don Thusitha Nayanappriya
Hemachandra alias Ginthota Arachchilage Don Thusitha
Nayanappriya Hemachandra of Ganemulla (herein after referred
to as the Borrower) has made default in payments due on Morgage
Bond No. 9609 dated 17th March, 2008 attested by W. K.
Nishani Priyangani Withana, Notary Public in favour of the
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited and whereas there is as at 28th
February, 2009 due and owing from the said Ginthota Arachchige
Don Thusitha Nayanappriya Hemachandra alias Ginthota
Arachchilage Don Thusitha Nayanappriya Hemachandra to the
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
No. 9609 a sum of Rupees One Million Seven Hundred and
Thirty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Six and cents
Eighty -six (Rs. 1,738,906.86) togethe with interest thereon from
01st March, 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Seven
Hundred and Twenty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and
Eighty-four and cents Forty-nine (Rs. 729,284.49) at the rate of
Thirty-six per centum (36%) per annum and on a sum of Rupees
Eight Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand  Eight Hundred and
Ninety-two (Rs. 888,892) at the rate of Twenty-eight decimal
Three Five per centum (28.35%) per annum and whereas the
Board of Directors of DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited under the
powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that

the land and premises described below mortgaged to the DFCC
Vardhana Bank Limited by the aforesaid  Mortgage Bond
No. 9609 be sold by Public Auction by M/s. Schokman &
Samarawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the
recovery of the sum of Rupees One Million Seven Hundred and
Thirty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Six and cents Eighty-
six (Rs. 1,738,906.86) together with interest thereon from
01st March 2009 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Seven
Hundred and Twenty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty-
four and cents Forty-nine (Rs. 729,284.49) at the rate of Thirty-
six per centum (36%) per annum and on a sum of Rupees Eight
Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand  Eight Hundred and Ninety-
two (Rs. 888,892) at the rate of Twenty-eight decimal Three Five
per centum (28.35%) per annum or any portion thereof remaining
unpaid at the time of sale together with the costs of advertising
and selling the said land and premises and all monies expended and
costs and charges incurred by the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited
in accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond
in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 9609

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No. 01
depicted in Plan No. 5508 dated 20th January, 2007 made by S. D.
Chandrathilake, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Thunhaul
Delgaha Kuruduwatta and Ambagaha Kurunduwatta situated at
Mahara Kendaliyaddapaluwa village in Adikari Pattu of Siyane
Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said
Lot No. 01 is bounded  on the North by Road, on the East by Lot
No. 12 in Plan No. 1265, on the South by land of Y. M. Siripala, on
the West by Lot No. 10 in Plan No. 1265 and containing in extent
Twelve decimal Four Naught Perches (0A.,0R.,12.40P.) together
with the trees, plantations and everything else thereon.

Which said Lot No. 01 is a resurvey of an allotment of land marked
Lot No. 11 depicted in Plan No. 1265 dated 3rd March 1994 made
by S. P. R. Pathiraja, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Thunhaul
Delgaha Kurunduwatta and Ambagaha Kurunduwatta situated at
Mahara Kendaliyaddapaluwa village in Adikari Pattu of Siyane
Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said
Lot No. 11 is bounded on the North-East by: Lot No. 13, on the South-
East by: Lot No. 12, on the South-West by: Lot No. X in Plan
No. 11364 claimed by Y. M. Siripala, on the North-West by: Lot
No. 10 and containing in extent Twelve decimal Seven Naught
Perches (0A.,0R.,12.70P.) together with the trees plantations and
everything else thereon and registered at the Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with user right of way over and along following road
reservations:

Lot No. 13 in Plan No. 1265 dated 03.03.1994 made by S. P. R.
Pathiraja, Licensed Surveyor and Lot No. 22 depicted in Plan
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No. 1237 dated 22.01.1994 made by S.P.R. Pathiraja, Licensed
Surveyor.

L. G. PERERA,
Managing Director/

Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited,
No. 73, W. A. D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

06-564/3

PEOPLE’S     BANK—KOGGALA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 29.08.2008.

Whereas Ajith Priyantha Pushpanath has made default in
payment due on the Bond No. 1520 and Bond No. 1521 dated
09.10.2006 both attested by M. G. C. Aroshini, Notary Public
of Galle, in favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and
owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Eighteen Million
Sixty-one Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents
Two (Rs. 1,861,458.02) and Rupees Four Hundred Ninety-eight
Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-eight and cents Eleven
(Rs. 498,558.11) on the said Bond. The Board of Directors of the
People’s Bank under the powers vested in them by the People’s
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986
do hereby resolve that the property and premises mortgage to the
said Bank by the said Bond Nos. 1520 and 1521 be sold by Public
Auction by G. P. Ananda, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of
the sum of Rupees Eighteen Million Sixty-one Thousand Four
Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Two (Rs. 1,861,458.02) with
further interest on Rupees Eighteen Million Sixty-one Thousand
Four Hundred and Fifty-eight and cents Two (Rs. 1,861,458.02)
at 16.5% per centum per annum from 01.05.2008 and Rupees
Four Hundred Ninety-eight Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-eight
and cents Eleven (Rs. 498,558.11) with further interest on
Rupees Four Hundred Ninety-eight Thousand Five Hundred
Fifty-eight and cents Eleven (Rs. 498,558.11) at 17.5% per
centum per annum from 31.07.2008 to date of sale and costs and
moneys recoverable under Section ‘29L’ of the said People’s
Bank Act less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A of
the land called Peragastuduwa alias Neralu Uyana Watta, together
with the buildings, plantations and everything else standing thereon
situated at Talgasyaya in Ganegoda within the Four Gravets of

Akmeemana in Galle District, Southern Province and which said Lot
A is bounded on the North by Lot 5a of the same land, East by Lot
6 of the same land , South by Lots 5C, B and Part of 5D of the same
land and on the West by Balance portion of Lot 5B and containing
in extent Four Acres (4A.,0R.,0P.) as per Plan No. 575A dated
22.03.2005 made by C. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor and
registered under B 181/85 at the Land Registry, Galle.

Together with the right of way in over and along land marked Lots
D and E depicted in aforesaid Plan No. 575A.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

06-589

PEOPLE’S    BANK—IMADUWA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the
Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 28.11.2008:

Whereas Waniga Chinthamani Mohottige Bandula Pathma
Kumara, Weerasinghe Jayawathi have made default in payment
due on the Bond No. 1739 dated 24.01.2007 attested by M. G.
C. Aroshini, Notary Public of Galle, in favour of the People’s
Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum
of Rupees Three Hundred Seventy-five Thousand Six Hundred
and Fourteen and cents Fifty-four (Rs. 375,614.54) on the said
Bond. The Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under the
powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961
as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that
the property and premises mortgage to the said Bank by the said
Bond No. 1739 be sold by Public Auction by G. P. Ananda,
Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the sum of Rupees Three
Hundred Seventy-five Thousand Six Hundred and Fourteen and
cents Fifty-four (Rs. 375,614.54) with further interest on Rupees
Three Hundred Seventy-five Thousand Six Hundred and Fourteen
and cents Fifty-four  (Rs. 375,614.54) at 22% per centum per
annum from 10.08.2008 to date of sale and costs and moneys
recoverable under Section ‘29L’ of the said People’s Bank Act
less payment (if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 1442 dated 21.11.2004 made by H. L. R.
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Jayasundara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Meegaha
Kumburagodahena, together with all the trees, buildings, plantations
and everything else standing thereon and situated at Paragoda within
the Limits of Imaduwa Pradeshiya Sabha in Talpe Pattu, Galle
District, Southern Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the
North by Lot 268 of the same land, on the East by Lot 18 of the same
land, on the South by Meegahakumbura and on the West by Lot 20
of the same land and containing in extent Three Roods Fifteen
Decimal Eight Perches (0A.,3R.15.8P.) and registered under
D 702/35 at Galle District Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Galle.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 22, Lower Dickson Road,
Galle.

06-587

SAMPATH    BANK    PLC
(Formerly Known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath
Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

A/c No.: 0079 1000 0203

AT a meeting held on  8th May, 2008 by the Board of Directors of
Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Don Manuel Mudiyanselage Stanley Reginold
Andradi, Kalutarage Sumana Hemalatha Fernando, Gamlathge
Ajith Kumarasiri and Andradi Mudiyanselage Dona Gayani all
of No. 42, Sri Sumanatissa Mawatha, Colombo 12, in the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka being the Partners of
the business carried on at No. 42, Sri Sumanatissa Mawatha,
Colombo 12, under the name, style and firm of “Actimo Hortico
Industries” in the said Republic as the Obligors and the said
Andradi  Mudiyanselage Dona Gayani of No. 42, Sri Sumanatissa
Mawatha, Colombo 12, aforesaid as the Mortgagor have made
default in the repayment of the credit Facilities granted against
the security of the property and premises morefully described
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the
Mortgage Bond No. 1443 dated 21st April, 2006 attested by
R. Alahendra, Notary Public of Colombo  in favour of Sampath
Bank Limited and there is now due and owing to Sampath Bank
Limited as at 08th January, 2008 a sum of Rupees One Million
Seven Hundred and Seventy Thousand Six Hundred and Thirty-
nine and cents Sixty-eight only (Rs. 1,770,639.68) of lawful
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the said

Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank Limited under
the powers vestes by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank Limited as security for the
said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing No. 1443 to be sold
in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya Licensed Auctioneers of
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Million
Seven Hundred and Seventy Thousand Six Hundred and Thirty
-nine and cents Sixty-eight only (Rs. 1,770,639.68) together with
further interest on a sum of Rupees One Million Seven Hundred
and Forty-one Thousand Six Hundred and Eighteen and cents
Sixty-nine only (Rs. 1,741,618.69) at the rate of Nine per centum
(9%) per annum from 09th January, 2008 to date of satisfaction
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 1443 together
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less payments
(if any) since received.

SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A1
depicted in Plan No. 3091 dated 05th February, 2006 made by
G. L. W. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kadakkara
Tottam alias Elabodawatta” together with the soil, trees, plantations,
buildings and everything else standing thereon and together with all
rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenances
thereto belonging bearing assessment No. 101, L. T. P. Manju Sri
Mawatha situated at formerly Ganegama presently Aluthgama
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Beruwala of Aluthgama Sub-
office in  Aluthgama Badda of Kalutara Totamune South in Kalutara
District Western Province and which said Lot A1 is bounded on the
North by Welle Elabodawatta, on the East by premises of Kalutara
Aluthgama Vidyalaya Govt. Junior School and Lot A2 on the South
by Lot A2 and L. T. P. Manju Sri Mawatha and on the West by
Gangaboda Mawatha and containing in extent Twenty-one decimal
Two Three Perches (0A., 0R., 21.23P.) according to the said Plan
No. 3091 and registered in Volume/Folio H255/241 at the Land
Registry Kalutara.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A2
depicted in Plan No. 3091 dated 5th February, 2006 made by G. L.
W. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kadakkara Tottam
alias Elabodwatta” together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings
and everything else standing thereon and together with all rights,
ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto
belonging bearing assessment No. 101, L. T. P. Manju Sri Mawatha,
situated at formerly Ganegama presently Aluthgama aforesaid and
which said Lot A2 is bounded on the North by Lot A1 on the East
by Premises of Kalutara Aluthgama Vidyalaya Govt. Junior School
on the South by L. T. P. Manju Sri Mawatha and on the West by Lot
A1 and containing in extent Eleven Decimal Three Nine Perches
(0A., 0R., 11.39P.) according to the said Plan No. 3091 and registered
in Volume/Folio H 255/242 at the Land Registry Kalutara.

By order of the Board,

Company Secretary.

06-568/7
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DFCC    VARDHANA     BANK   LIMITED

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Vardhana Bank
Limited under Section 4 of the recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of
DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Spantech Systems(Private) Limited a company duly
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 and having its registered
office at No. 919/AChilaw Road, Daluwakotuwa Kochchikade
(hereinafter referred to as the company) has made default in
payments due on Morgage Bond No. 4401 dated 19th October,
2007 attested by C. Dayaratne Notary Public  of Negombo in
favour of the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited and whereas there
is as at 31st August, 2008 due and owing from the said Company
to the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited on the aforesaid Mortgage
Bond No. 4401 a sum of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred and
Eighty-three Thousand Three Hundred and Forty-six and cents
Three (Rs. 1,983,346.03) together with interest thereon from
01st September, 2008 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Eight
Hundred and Seventy-three Thousand Three Hundred and Eighty
-nine and cents Fifty-Nine (Rs. 873,389,59) at the rate of Thirty-
six per centum (36%) per annum and on a sum of Rupees One
Million and Twenty Thousand One Hundred and Sixty-one and
cents Sixty-eight (Rs.1,020,161.68) at the rate of Twenty Six
(26%) per annum and whereas the Board of Directors of DFCC
Vardhana Bank Limited under the powers vested in them by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 do hereby resolve that the land and premises described
below morgaged to the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited by the
aforesaid morgaged Bond No. 4401 be sold by Public Auction by
M/s. Schokman & Samarawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of
Colombo for the recovery of the sum of Rupees One Million Nine
Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand Three Hundred and
Forty -six and cents Three (Rs. 1,983,346.03) together with
interest thereon from 01st September, 2008 to the date of sale on
a sum of Rupees Eight Hundred and Seventy-three Thousand
Three Hundred and Eighty-nine and cents Fifty-nine
(Rs. 873,389.59) at the rate of Thirty-six per centum (36%) per
annum and on a sum of Rupees One Million and Twenty
Thousand One Hundred and Sixty-one and cents Sixty-eight
(Rs.1,020,161.68) at the rate of Twenty-six per centum (26%)
per annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time
of sale together with the costs of advertising and selling the said
land and premises and all monies expended and costs and charges
incurred by the DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited in accordance with
the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond in terms of Section
13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 4401

All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 42 depicted in Plan
No. 1409 dated 12th June, 2000 made by S. G. Gunathilake Licensed
Surveyor of the land called “Sekkuwatte” situated at Katana West
in Dunagaha Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha
Western Province and which said Lot 42 is bounded on the North by
Lot 41, East by Lot 13C, South by Ltos 13C and 111, West by Lot
111 and containing in extent Fourteen Decimal Five Naught Perches
(0A.,0R,14.50P.) together with everything standing thereon and
registered at the Negombo Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over the allotments of land
described below:

01. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 13C(Reservation
for 20 feet wide road) depicted in Plan No. 1409 dated
05.08.2000 made by S. G. Gunatilake, Licensed Surveyor of
the land called “Sekkuwatte” aforesaid and which said Lot
13C is bounded on the North by Lot 13B, East by Lots 14 to
22, South by Lot 13F, West by Lots 41, 42 and 111 and
containing in extent Thirty-seven decimal Two Naught Perches
(0A.,0R.,37.20P.) together with everything standing thereon
and registered at the land Registry Negombo.

02. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 111 (Reservation
for 20 feet wide road) depicted in Plan No. 4768A dated
22.07.1989 made by Walter A. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor
of the land called “Sekkuwatte” aforesaid and which said Lot
111 is bounded on the North by Lot 13B, East by Lots 41, 42
and 13B, South by Lot 13F, West by Lots 29 to 40 and
containing in extent Thirty Nine Decimal Nine naught Perches
(0A.,0R.,39.90P.) together with everything standing thereon
and registred at the Land Registry Negombo.

03. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 13F(Reservation
for 20 feet wide road) depicted in Plan No. 1409 dated
03.08.2000 and 05.08.2000 made by S. G. Gunathilake,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Sekkuwatte” aforesaid
and which said Lot 13F is bounded on the North by Lots 28,
27, 24, 23, 22, 13C, 111, 29, 68, 69 70 and 13, East by Road,
South by Lots 106 to 110, 96, 135, 112, 113, 13G, 144 and
145, West by: Lots 87 and 88 and containing in extent One
Rood and Twenty One Decimal Three Naught Perches
(0A.,1R.,21.30P.)  together with everything standing thereon
and registred at the Land Registry Negombo.

04. All that divided and defined allotment of Lot 13G (Reservation
for 20 feet wide road) depicted in Plan No. 1409 dated
03.08.2000  and 05.08.2000 made by S. G. Gunathilake,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Sekkuwatte” aforesaid
and which said Lot 13G is bounded on the North by Lot 13F,
East by Lots 144, 146 to 158, South by Canal, West by 113,
114, 116, 119, 121, 122, 134, 143, 139, 140, 136, 135, 13N
and 159 and containing in extent One Rood and Thirteen
Decimal One Naught Perched  (0A.,1R.,13.10P.) together
with everything standing thereon and registred at the Land
Registry Negombo.
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Also the right of way over the bridge over the connecting Lot 13G
aforesaid and Lot 168 in Plan No. 1410 dated 03.08.2000 made by
S. G. Gunatilake, Licensed Surveyor.

L. G. PERERA,
Managing Director/

Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Vardhana Bank Limited,
No. 73, W. A. D. Ramanayake Mawatha,
Colombo 2.

06-564/2

HATTON    NATIONAL    BANK    PLC—KANDY
BRANCH

(Formerly known as Hatton National Bank Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 26th February, 2009 it was resolved specially and unanimously:

“Whereas Provincial Carriers (Private Limited as the Obligor
and Percy Wilfred Pelpola as the Mortgagor, Mortgaged and
hypothecated properties morefully described in the 1st Schedule
hereto by Mortgage Bond Nos. 14339 dated 21st February, 1991,
14340 dated 21st February 1991, 14485 dated 12th August 1991,
15146 dated 22nd January, 1994, 165 dated 4th October 1994,
15434 dated 2nd May, 1995, 15987 dated 25th September, 1997
all attested by J. L. P. Perera Notary Public of Kandy and Bond
No. 996 dated 11th August, 1993 attested by K. D. Elangasinha
Notary Public of Kandy in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC
as security for repayment loans granted by Hatton National Bank
PLC, to provincial Carrriers (Private) Limited.

Whereas the aforesaid Percy Wilfred Pelpola is the virtual
owner and the person who is in control of the aforesaid Provincial
Carriers(Private) Limited in as much as the aforesaid Percy
Wilfred Pelpola holds almost all the shares of the said Provincial
Carriers (Private) Limited and  as a Director of Provincial
Carriers(Private) Limited is control and management of the said
Company and accordingly, the aforesaid Percy Wilfred Pelpola
is the actual beneficiary of the financial accommodation granted
by the Hatton National Bank PLC to Provincial Carriers (Private)
Limited.

And whereas part of the money due under the said Bonds
being repaid to the said Bank and the Bank being satisfied that the
remainder of the property mortgaged by the said Bond
Nos. 14339, 14340, 14485, 15146, 165, 15434, 15987 & 996  is
sufficient security for the recovery of the balance sums of money
due upon the loans, released Lot No.2B in Plan No. 702 dated 16th

November, 1970 made by D. A. Jayagoda, Licensed Surveyor by
Deed of Release No. 3384 dated 24th May, 2007 attested by
M. P. M. Mohotti, Notary Public of Colombo out of the land
mortgaged and described in the First Schedule hereto:

And whereas the land and premises and machinery described
in the 2nd Schedule hereto continue to be  mortgaged and
hypothecated with the Hatton National Bank PLC under the said
Mortgage Bonds as security for the repayment of balance sum
due upon the loans granted.

And whereas Provincial carriers(Private) Limited and Percy
Wilfred Pelpola have made default in payment of the balance sum
due to Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now due and owing
tothe Hatton National Bank PLC as at 31st July, 2008 a sum of
Rupees Twelve Million and Twenty-three Thousand Four
Hundred and Eight and cents Nine (Rs. 12,023,408.09) on the said
Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that
the property and machinery morefully described in the Second
Schedule, hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank PLC by
the said Bond Nos. 14439, 14340, 14485, 15146, 165, 15434,
15987 and 996 be sold by Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of
Rs. 12,023,408.09 together with further interest from
01st August, 2008 to date of sale together with costs of advertising
and other charges incurred less payments  (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

1. All those two divided and defined contiguous portions of
Sodawatte alias Radagaspanawewatta marked Lots 1 and 2 in
Plan No. 597 dated 17th March, 1985 made by C. D.
Adhihetty of Kandy Licensed Surveyor (being portions of
Lots 1 and 2 in Plan No. 1260/56 dated 18th January, 1956
made by T. P. Murray Licensed Surveyor) situated at Ampitiya
Pallegama in Gandahaya Korale North of Pata Hewaheta in
the District of Kandy Central Province and together bounded
on the North by Elhenawatta of Mr. Gunasekera on the South-
East by Ellehenewatte on the South-West by remaining
portion of same land and Mala Ela and on the West by Mala
Ela containing in extent Three Acres Three Roods and Eight
Decimal Two Perches (3A.,3R.,8.2P.) Registered in
G 344/81.

2. All that divided portion of Sodawatte alias
Radagaspanawewatta marked Lot 3 in the said Plan No. 597
sitauted at Ampitiya Pallegama aforesaid and which said Lot
3 is  bouned on the North by Ellahenawatta on the East by
Mala Ela and on the South by Mala Ela and on the West by
Budumewatta containing in extent Three Decimal Two Perches
(0A.,0R.,3.2P.) Registered in G 357/33.

3. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 2 in Plan No. 6781 dated 21 st October, 1986 made
by R. C. O. De La Motte of Kandy Licensed Surveyor (being
Lot 1 and portions of Lots 2 and 3 in Plan No. 11 dated
26th June, 1981 made by K. Weerapane, License Surveyor)
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situated at Ampitiya Ulpothakumbura in Gandahaya Korale
of Pata Hewaheta aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded
on the North-West by Lot 1, Lot 19 of Radagaspanawewatenna
of Mrs. N. S. De Silva Lot 18 of Radagaspana Wewatenna of
M. D. H. Wickremanayake Lot 17 of Radagaspanawewatenna
of D. A. Weerasinghe and Ela on the East by Ela and
Sodamolewatta of Mr. Pelpola on the South-East by: remaining
portion of Radagaspana Wewatenna and on the West by: Road
leading from Kandy to Talatuoya containing in extent (exclusive
of the Ela passing through the same) One Acre One Rood and
Thirty-eight perches (1A.,1R.,38P.) Registered in
G 322/225.

4. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 1 Plan No. 673/1 dated 22nd December, 1986
made by K. M. H. Navaratne of Kandy Licensed Surveyor
situated at Ampitiya Pallegama aforesaid and which said Lot
1 is bounded on the North by: part of same land on the East
by Ela on the South-West by: remaining portion of same land
and on the North-West by: P. W. D. Road leading from
Talatuoya to Kandy containing in extent Thirty One Perches
(0A., 0R., 31P.) or 0.0784 Hectares. Registered in G (262)322/
226.

5. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 6781/B dated 10th October, 1987
made by the said R. C. O. De La Motte Licensed Surveyor
situated at Ketawela Ulpothakumbura in Gandahaya Korale
aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by
Sodamewatta correctly Sodamolewatta of Mr. Pelpola on the
East by: Radagaspanawatta belonging to Banda on the South
by remaining portion of same land and Lot 2 and on the West
by remaining portion of same land containing in extent
(exclusive of the Ela passing through the same) Two Roods
and Fifteen Perches (0A., 2R., 15P.) Registered in G 289/271.

6. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatenna
marked Lot 2 [(Access) 10 feet wide] in the said Plan No. 6781/
B situated at Ketawala aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is
bounded on the North by: Lot 1 in the said plan on the East
by: remaining portion of same land on the South by: Road from
Kandy to Talatuoya and on the West by remaining portion of
same land containing in extent Five Perches (0A.,0R.,05P.)
Registered in G 289/272.

7. All that divided and defined portion of land marked Lot 2B in
Plan  No. 702 dated 16th November, 1970 made by D. A.
Jayagoda of Kandy Licensed Surveyor out of the land called
Radagaspanawewatenna (being part of Ampitiya Group)
marked Lot 14 in Plan dated November, 1993 made V. J. C.
Jonklaaz Licensed Surveyor) situated at Ampitiya Pallegama
aforesaid and which said Lot 2B is bounded on the North and
North-East by remaining portion marked Lot 2A on the East
by P. W. D. Road from Talatuoya to Kandy on the South by
Lot 2C and on the West by remaining portion marked Lot 8
containing in extent One Acre (1A.,0R.,0P.) Registered in
G 287/155.

Which said Land is depicted in Plan No. 220 dated 21st March,
1990 made by S. M. Abeyratne of Kandy Licensed Surveyor and
described as all that allotment of land being a portion of
Radagaspanawewatenna (being part of Ampitiya Group) depicted
as sub-divided Lot 2B in Plan No. 702 dated 22.03.1972 by D. A.
Jayagoda Licensed Surveyor situated at Ampitiya (in
Ulpothakumbura) Pallegama aforesaid and bounded on the North-
East by remaining portion (Lot 2A in Plan No. 702) on the South-
East by Road (Highways) from Talatuoya to Kandy on the South-
West by remaining portion (Lot 2C in Plan No. 702) and on the
North-West by remaining portion (Lot 10 in Plan No. 702) and
remaining portion (Lot 8 in Plan No. 702) containing in extent one
Acre (1A.,0R.,0P.) Registered in G 287/155.

List of Machinery Quantity

Christy & Norris Pulveriser 1No.
Tyco Pulveriser 3Nos.
Prabath Stone Crusher 1No.
Parker Stone Crusher 2Nos.
Electric Generator 1No.

SECOND SCHEDULE

1. All those two divided and defined contiguous portions of
Sodawatte alias Radagaspanawewatta marked Lots 1 and 2 in
Plan No. 597 dated 17th March, 1985 made by C. D.
Adhihetty of Kandy Licensed Surveyor (being portions of
Lots 1 and 2 in Plan No. 1260/56 dated 18th January, 1956
made by T. P. Murray Licensed Surveyor) situated at Ampitiya
Pallegama in Gandahaya Korale North of Pata Hewaheta in
the District of Kandy Central Province and together bounded
on the North by Elhenawatta of Mr. Gunasekera on the South-
East by Ellehenewatte on the South-West by: remaining
portion of same land and Mala Ela and on the West by Mala
Ela containing in extent Three Acres Three Roods and Eight
Decimal Two Perches (3A.,3R.,8.2P.) Registered in
G 344/81.

2. All that divided portion of Sodawatte alias
Radagaspanawewatta marked Lot 3 in the said Plan No. 597
sitauted at Ampitiya Pallegama aforesaid and which said Lot
3 is  bounded on the North by: Ellahenawatta on the East by:
Mala Ela and on the South by: Mala Ela and on the West by:
Budumewatta containing in extent Three decimal Two Perches
(0A.,0R.,3.2P.) Registered in G 357/33.

3. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 2 in Plan No. 6781 dated 21 st October, 1986 made
by R. C. O. De La Motte of Kandy Licensed Surveyor (being
Lot 1 and portions of Lots 2 and 3 in Plan No. 11 dated
26th June, 1981 made by K. Weerapane, License Surveyor)
situated at Ampitiya Ulpothakumbura in Gandahaya Korale
of Pata Hewaheta aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded
on the North-West by Lot 1, Lot 19 of Radagaspana Wewatenna
of Mrs. N. S. De Silva Lot 18 of Radagaspana Wewatenna of
M. D. H. Wickremanayake Lot 17 of Radagaspanawewatenna
of D. A. Weerasinghe and Ela on the East by Ela and
Sodamolewatta of Mr. Pelpola on the South-East by remaining
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portion of Radagaspana Wewatenna and on the West by Road
leading from Kandy to Talatuoya containing in extent (exclusive
of the Ela passing through the same) One Acre One Rood and
Thirty-eight perches (1A.,1R.,38P.) Registered in
G 322/225.

4. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 1 Plan No. 673/1 dated 22nd December, 1986
made by K. M. H. Navaratne of Kandy Licensed Surveyor
situated at Ampitiya Pallegama aforesaid and which said Lot
1 is bounded on the North by: part of same land on the East
by: Ela on the South-West by: remaining portion of same land
and on the North-West by: P. W. D. Road leading from
Talatuoya to Kandy containing in extent Thirty-one Perches
(0A.,0R.,31P.) or 0.0784 Hectares. Registered in G (262)322/
226.

5. All that divided and defined portion of Radagaspanawewatta
marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 6781/B dated 10th October, 1987
made by the said R. C. O. De La Motte Licensed Surveyor
situated at Ketawela Ulpothakumbura in Gandahaya Korale
aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by
Sodamewatta correctly Sodamolewatta of Mr. Pelpola on the
East by: Radagaspanawatta belonging to Banda on the South
by remaining portion of same land and Lot 2 and on the West
by remaining portion of same land containing in extent
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(exclusive of the Ela passing through the same) Two Roods
and Fifteen Perches (0A.,2R.,15P.) Registered in G 289/271.

6. All that divided and defined portion of
Radagaspanawewatenna marked Lot 2 [(Access) 10 feet
wide] in the said Plan No. 6781/B situated at Ketawala
aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by:
Lot 1 in the said plan on the East by: remaining portion of same
land on the South by Road from Kandy to Talatuoya and on
the West by: remaining portion of same land containing in
extent Five Perches (0A.,0R.,05P.) Registered in G 289/272.

List of Machinery Quantity

Christy & Norris Pulveriser 1No.
Tyco Pulveriser 3Nos.
Prabath Stone Crusher 1No.
Parker Stone Crusher 2Nos.
Electric Generator 1No.

By order of the Board,

INDRANI GOONESEKERA,
DGM(Legal)/Board Secretary.
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